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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  

POTOMAC ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY  
   
(15) QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)  

The quarterly data presented below reflect all adjustments necessary in the opinion of management for a fair presentation of the interim results. 
Quarterly data normally vary seasonally because of temperature variations and differences between summer and winter rates. Therefore, 
comparisons by quarter within a year are not meaningful.  
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     2009   

     
First  

Quarter     
Second 
Quarter     

Third  
Quarter     

Fourth 
Quarter     Total   

     (millions of dollars)   

Total Operating Revenue     $ 577     $ 518     $ 648     $ 488     $ 2,231   
Total Operating Expenses       522 (a)     465       527 (a)     444       1,958   
Operating Income       55       53       121       44       273   
Other Expenses       (22 )      (23 )      (23 )      (23 )      (91 )  
Income Before Income Tax Expense       33       30       98       21       182   
Income Tax Expense       14       13       40       9       76   
Net Income     $ 19     $ 17     $ 58     $ 12     $ 106   

     2008   

     
First  

Quarter     
Second 
Quarter     

Third  
Quarter     

Fourth 
Quarter     Total   

     (millions of dollars)   

Total Operating Revenue     $ 525     $ 539     $ 728     $ 530     $ 2,322   
Total Operating Expenses       482       475 (b)     627 (d)      482       2,066   
Operating Income       43       64       101       48       256   
Other Expenses       (18 )      (19 )      (21 )      (18 )      (76 )  
Income Before Income Tax Expense       25       45       80       30       180   
Income Tax Expense       10       14 (c)      34       6 (e)     64   
Net Income     $ 15     $ 31     $ 46     $ 24     $ 116   
  
(a) Includes gains during the first and third quarters related to settlement of Mirant bankruptcy claims of $14 million ($8 million after-tax) and 

$26 million ($16 million after-tax), respectively. 
(b) Includes a $4 million adjustment to correct an understatement of operating expenses for prior periods dating back to February 2005 where 

late payment fees were incorrectly recognized. 
(c) Includes $3 million of after-tax interest income related to the tentative settlement of the IRS mixed service cost issue and $2 million of 

after-tax interest income received in 2008 on the Maryland state tax refund. 
(d) Includes a $3 million charge related to an adjustment in the accounting for certain restricted stock awards granted under the Long-Term 

Incentive Plan (LTIP). 
(e) Includes $2 million of after-tax net interest income on uncertain and effectively settled tax positions, and a benefit of $3 million (including 

a $2 million correction of prior period errors) related to additional analysis of deferred tax balances completed in 2008. 
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

The management of DPL is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is 
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over 
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to 
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.  

Management assessed its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 based on the framework in Internal Control – 
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on its assessment, the 
management of DPL concluded that DPL’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2009.  

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements of DPL included in this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, has also issued its attestation report on the effectiveness of DPL’s internal control over financial reporting, which 
is included herein.  
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  

To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of Delmarva Power & Light Company  

In our opinion, the financial statements listed in the accompanying index appearing under Item 15(a)(i) present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Delmarva Power & Light Company (a wholly owned subsidiary of Pepco Holdings, Inc.) at December 31, 2009 and 
December 31, 2008, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009 in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement 
schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in 
conjunction with the related financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial 
statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial statement schedule and on the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting based on our audits, which was an integrated audit in 2009. We conducted our audits in accordance with 
the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control 
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
   

245  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 2 of 2 
Page 2202 of 7002



Table of Contents  

DPL 
   
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  
Washington, DC  
February 26, 2010  
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DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  

STATEMENTS OF INCOME  
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.  
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For the Year Ended December 31,    2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

Operating Revenue         

Electric     $ 1,135     $ 1,221     $ 1,205   
Natural Gas       268       318       291   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total Operating Revenue       1,403       1,539       1,496   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Operating Expenses         

Purchased energy       751       821       839   
Gas purchased       193       245       220   
Other operation and maintenance       238       222       206   
Depreciation and amortization       76       72       74   
Other taxes       35       35       36   
Gain on sale of assets       —          (4 )      (1 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total Operating Expenses       1,293       1,391       1,374   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Operating Income       110       148       122   

Other Income (Expenses)         

Interest and dividend income       1       2       1   
Interest expense       (44 )     (40 )      (43 )  
Other income       1       3       2   
Other expenses       —          —          —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total Other Expenses       (42 )     (35 )      (40 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  

Income Before Income Tax Expense       68       113       82   

Income Tax Expense       16       45       37   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net Income     $ 52     $ 68     $ 45   
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DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  

BALANCE SHEETS  
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.  
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ASSETS    

December 31, 
 

2009     

December 31, 
 

2008   
     (millions of dollars)   

CURRENT ASSETS       

Cash and cash equivalents     $ 26     $ 138   
Accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible accounts of $12 million and $10 million, 

respectively       193       202   
Inventories       40       52   
Prepayments of income taxes       64       34   
Prepaid expenses and other       19       18   

       
  

      
  

Total Current Assets       342       444   
       

  
      

  

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS       

Goodwill       8       8   
Regulatory assets       207       244   
Prepaid pension expense       157       184   
Other       28       21   

       
  

      
  

Total Investments and Other Assets       400       457   
       

  
      

  

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT       

Property, plant and equipment       2,807       2,656   
Accumulated depreciation       (860 )     (827 )  

       
  

      
  

Net Property, Plant and Equipment       1,947       1,829   
       

  
      

  

TOTAL ASSETS     $ 2,689     $ 2,730   
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DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  

BALANCE SHEETS  
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.  
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    
December 31,  

2009    
December 31,  

2008 
     (millions of dollars, except shares) 

CURRENT LIABILITIES        

Short-term debt     $ 105    $ 246 
Current portion of long-term debt       31      —   
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities       106      108 
Accounts payable due to associated companies       14      34 
Taxes accrued       3      7 
Interest accrued       6      6 
Liabilities and accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions       —        13 
Derivative liabilities       15      13 
Other       64      56 

              

Total Current Liabilities       344      483 
              

DEFERRED CREDITS        

Regulatory liabilities       290      277 
Deferred income taxes, net       489      446 
Investment tax credits       7      8 
Other postretirement benefit obligation       23      4 
Above-market purchased energy contracts and other electric restructuring liabilities       17      19 
Derivative liabilities       13      14 
Liabilities and accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions       20      17 
Other       23      24 

              

Total Deferred Credits       882      809 
              

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES        

Long-term debt       655      686 
              

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 15)        

EQUITY        

Common stock, $2.25 par value, 1,000 shares authorized, 1,000 shares outstanding       —        —   
Premium on stock and other capital contributions       336      304 
Retained earnings       472      448 

              

Total Equity       808      752 
              

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     $ 2,689    $ 2,730 
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DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.  
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For the Year Ended December 31,    2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

OPERATING ACTIVITIES         

Net income     $ 52     $ 68     $ 45   
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:         

Depreciation and amortization       76       72       74   
Deferred income taxes       60       33       27   
Investment tax credit adjustments       (1 )      (1 )      (1 )  
Other       —          (4 )      (1 )  
Changes in:         

Accounts receivable       10       (44 )      (1 )  
Inventories       12       (7 )      (5 )  
Prepaid expenses       1       (7 )      7   
Regulatory assets and liabilities, net       29       27       (18 )  
Prepaid pension expense, excluding contributions       37       (6 )      (6 )  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities       (26 )      (19 )      62   
Pension contributions       (10 )      —          —      
Taxes accrued       (37 )      12       (10 )  
Other assets and liabilities       10       (1 )      (4 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net Cash From Operating Activities       213       123       169   
       

  
      

  
      

  

INVESTING ACTIVITIES         

Investment in property, plant and equipment       (193 )      (150 )      (133 )  
Proceeds from sale of assets       1       54       —      
Changes in restricted cash equivalents       —          4       (4 )  
Net other investing activities       1       (1 )      2   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities       (191 )      (93 )      (135 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  

FINANCING ACTIVITIES         

Dividends paid to Parent       (28 )      (52 )      (39 )  
Redemption of preferred stock       —          —          (18 )  
Capital contribution from Parent       32       62       —      
Issuances of long-term debt       —          400       —      
Reacquisitions of long-term debt       —          (116 )      (65 )  
(Repayments) issuances of short-term debt, net       (141 )      (190 )      90   
Net other financing activities       3       (7 )      1   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net Cash (Used By) From Financing Activities       (134 )      97       (31 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net (Decrease) Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents       (112 )      127       3   
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year       138       11       8   

       
  

      
  

      
  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR     $ 26     $ 138     $ 11   
       

  

      

  

      

  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION         

Cash paid for interest (net of capitalized interest of $1 million for each year presented)     $ 41     $ 37     $ 42   
Cash (received) paid for income taxes       (17 )      1       20   
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DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  

STATEMENTS OF EQUITY  
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.  
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(millions of dollars, except shares) 

   Common Stock    Premium 
 

on Stock   

  Retained 
 

Earnings      Shares    Par Value      

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006     1,000    $ —      $ 243     $ 427   
Net Income     —        —        —          45   
Preferred stock redemption     —        —        —          (1 ) 
Dividends:             

Common stock     —        —        —          (39 )  
Capital distribution to Parent     —        —        (1 )      —      

                   
  

      
  

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2007     1,000      —        242       432   
Net Income     —        —        —          68   
Dividends:             

Common stock     —        —        —          (52 )  
Capital contribution from Parent     —        —        62        —      

                   
  

      
  

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2008     1,000      —        304        448   
Net Income     —        —        —          52   
Dividends:             

Common stock     —        —        —          (28 )  
Capital contribution from Parent     —        —        32        —      

                   
  

      
  

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009     1,000    $ —      $ 336      $ 472   
                   

  

      

  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 2 of 2 
Page 2208 of 7002



Table of Contents  

DPL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  

(1) ORGANIZATION  

Delmarva Power & Light Company (DPL) is engaged in the transmission and distribution of electricity in Delaware and portions of Maryland 
and provides gas distribution service in northern Delaware. Additionally, DPL provides Default Electricity Supply, which is the supply of 
electricity at regulated rates to retail customers in its territories who do not elect to purchase electricity from a competitive supplier, in both 
Delaware and Maryland. Default Electricity Supply is known as Standard Offer Service (SOS) in both Delaware and Maryland. DPL is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Conectiv, which is wholly owned by Pepco Holdings, Inc. (Pepco Holdings or PHI).  

In January 2008, DPL completed the sale of its retail electric distribution assets and the sale of its wholesale electric transmission assets, both 
located on Virginia’s Eastern Shore.  

(2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Use of Estimates  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) 
requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, 
and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Although DPL believes that its 
estimates and assumptions are reasonable, they are based upon information available to management at the time the estimates are made. Actual 
results may differ significantly from these estimates.  

Significant matters that involve the use of estimates include the assessment of contingencies, the calculation of future cash flows and fair value 
amounts for use in asset impairment evaluations, fair value calculations (based on estimated market pricing) associated with derivative 
instruments, pension and other postretirement benefits assumptions, unbilled revenue calculations, the assessment of the probability of recovery 
of regulatory assets, and income tax provisions and reserves. Additionally, DPL is subject to legal, regulatory, and other proceedings and claims 
that arise in the ordinary course of its business. DPL records an estimated liability for these proceedings and claims when the loss is determined 
to be probable and is reasonably estimable.  

Change in Accounting Principle  

After the completion of the July 1, 2009 goodwill impairment test, DPL adopted a new accounting policy whereby DPL’s annual impairment 
review of goodwill will be performed as of November 1 each year. Management believes that DPL’s new annual impairment testing date is 
preferable because it better aligns the timing of the test with management’s annual update of its long-term financial forecast. This change in 
accounting principle has had no effect on DPL’s financial statements.  

Change in Accounting Estimates  

During 2007, as a result of the depreciation study presented as part of DPL’s Maryland rate case, the Maryland Public Service Commission 
(MPSC) approved new lower depreciation rates for DPL’s Maryland distribution assets.  
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  
   

Revenue Recognition  

DPL recognizes revenues upon delivery of electricity and gas to its customers, including amounts for services rendered, but not yet billed 
(unbilled revenue). DPL recorded amounts for unbilled revenue of $68 million and $52 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
These amounts are included in Accounts Receivable. DPL calculates unbilled revenue using an output based methodology. This methodology is 
based on the supply of electricity or gas intended for distribution to customers. The unbilled revenue process requires management to make 
assumptions and judgments about input factors such as customer sales mix, temperature, and estimated line losses (estimates of electricity and 
gas expected to be lost in the process of its transmission and distribution to customers), all of which are inherently uncertain and susceptible to 
change from period to period, and if the actual results differ from the projected results, the impact could be material. Revenues from non-
regulated electricity and gas sales are included in Electric revenues and Natural Gas revenues, respectively.  

Taxes related to the consumption of electricity and gas by its customers, such as fuel, energy, or other similar taxes, are components of DPL’s 
tariffs and, as such, are billed to customers and recorded in Operating Revenues. Accruals for these taxes by DPL are recorded in Other Taxes. 
Excise tax related generally to the consumption of gasoline by DPL in the normal course of business is charged to operations, maintenance or 
construction, and is not material.  

Taxes Assessed by a Governmental Authority on Revenue-Producing Transactions  

Taxes included in DPL’s gross revenues were $17 million, $15 million and $13 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  

Accounting for Derivatives  

DPL uses derivative instruments (forward contracts, futures, swaps, and exchange-traded and over-the-counter options) primarily to reduce gas 
commodity price volatility while limiting its customers’ exposure to increases in the market price of gas. DPL also manages commodity risk 
with physical natural gas and capacity contracts that are not classified as derivatives. The primary goal of these activities is to reduce the 
exposure of its regulated retail gas customers to natural gas price fluctuations. All premiums paid and other transaction costs incurred as part of 
DPL’s natural gas hedging activity, in addition to all gains and losses related to hedging activities, are fully recoverable through the fuel 
adjustment clause approved by the Delaware Public Service Commission (DPSC), and are deferred under Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) guidance on regulated operations (Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 980) until recovered. At December 31, 2009, there was a 
net deferred derivative liability of $39 million, offset by a $42 million regulatory asset. At December 31, 2008, there was a net deferred 
derivative liability of $55 million, offset by a $56 million regulatory asset.  

Long-Lived Asset Impairment Evaluation  

DPL evaluates certain long-lived assets to be held and used (for example, equipment and real estate) to determine if they are impaired whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Examples of such events or changes include a 
significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset or a significant adverse change in the manner an asset is being used or its physical 
condition. A long-lived asset to be held and used is written down to fair value if the sum of its expected future undiscounted cash flows is less 
than its carrying amount.  

For long-lived assets that can be classified as assets to be disposed of by sale, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its fair value including costs to sell.  
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  
   

Income Taxes  

DPL, as an indirect subsidiary of Pepco Holdings, is included in the consolidated federal income tax return of PHI. Federal income taxes are 
allocated to DPL based upon the taxable income or loss amounts, determined on a separate return basis.  

On May 2, 2007, the FASB issued guidance on how an enterprise should determine whether a tax position is effectively settled for the purpose 
of recognizing previously unrecognized tax benefits. DPL applied the guidance on January 1, 2007.  

The financial statements include current and deferred income taxes. Current income taxes represent the amount of tax expected to be reported on 
DPL’s state income tax returns and the amount of federal income tax allocated from Pepco Holdings.  

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities represent the tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement basis and tax basis of 
existing assets and liabilities, and are measured using presently enacted tax rates. The portion of DPL’s deferred tax liability applicable to its 
utility operations that has not been recovered from utility customers represents income taxes recoverable in the future and is included in 
Regulatory assets on the Balance Sheets. See Note (7), “Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities,” for additional information.  

Deferred income tax expense generally represents the net change during the reporting period in the net deferred tax liability and deferred 
recoverable income taxes.  

DPL recognizes interest on under over payments of income taxes, interest on uncertain tax positions, and tax-related penalties in income tax 
expense.  

Investment tax credits are being amortized to income over the useful lives of the related property.  

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities  

In accordance with FASB guidance on variable interest entities (ASC 810), DPL consolidates those variable interest entities with respect to 
which DPL is the primary beneficiary. The guidance addresses conditions under which an entity should be consolidated based upon variable 
interests rather than voting interests.  

DPL Wind Transactions  

PHI, through its DPL subsidiary, has entered into four wind PPAs in amounts up to a total of 350 megawatts. Three of the PPAs are with land-
based facilities and one of the PPAs is with an offshore facility. When completed and operational, DPL is obligated to purchase energy and 
renewable energy credits (RECs) from the four wind facilities and capacity from one of the wind facilities. The RECs help DPL fulfill a portion 
of its requirements under the State of Delaware’s Renewable Energy Portfolio Standards Act, which requires that 20 percent of total load needed 
in Delaware be produced from renewable sources by 2019. The DPSC has approved the four agreements, each of which sets forth the prices to 
be paid by DPL over the life of the contract, and has approved the recovery of DPL’s purchase costs through customer rates.  

One of the land-based facilities became operational and went into service in December 2009. DPL is obligated to purchase energy and RECs 
from this facility over 15 years in amounts generated and delivered not to exceed 50.25 megawatts at rates that are fixed. Payments under the 
other agreements are currently expected to start in 2010 for the other two land-based contracts and 2014 for the offshore contract, if the projects 
are ultimately completed and operational.  
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  
   
The terms of the agreements, with facilities that are not yet operational, range between 20 and 25 years. When they become operational, DPL is 
obligated to purchase energy and RECs in amounts generated and delivered by the sellers at rates that are primarily fixed under these 
agreements. Recent disruptions in the capital and credit markets, as well as permitting delays, could result in setbacks in the construction 
schedules and the operational start dates of the wind facilities. If the wind facilities are not operational by specified dates, DPL has the right to 
terminate the PPAs.  

DPL concluded that consolidation is not required for any of these PPAs under FASB guidance on the consolidation of variable interest entities 
(ASC 810). DPL will need to reassess its accounting conclusions if there are material changes to the contractual arrangements or wind facilities.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash invested in money market funds, and commercial paper held with original maturities of 
three months or less. Additionally, deposits in PHI’s “money pool,” which DPL and certain other PHI subsidiaries use to manage short-term cash 
management requirements, are considered cash equivalents. Deposits in the money pool are guaranteed by PHI. PHI deposits funds in the money 
pool to the extent that the pool has insufficient funds to meet the needs of its participants, which may require PHI to borrow funds for deposit 
from external sources.  

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts  

DPL’s accounts receivable balance primarily consists of customer accounts receivable, other accounts receivable, and accrued unbilled revenue. 
Accrued unbilled revenue represents revenue earned in the current period but not billed to the customer until a future date (usually within one 
month after the receivable is recorded).  

DPL maintains an allowance for uncollectible accounts and changes in the allowance are recorded as an adjustment to Other Operation and 
Maintenance expense in the Statements of Income. DPL determines the amount of the allowance based on specific identification of material 
amounts at risk by customer and maintains a general reserve based on its historical collection experience. The adequacy of this allowance is 
assessed on a quarterly basis by evaluating all known factors such as the aging of the receivables, historical collection experience, the economic 
and competitive environment, and changes in the creditworthiness of its customers. Although management believes its allowance is adequate, it 
cannot anticipate with any certainty the changes in the financial condition of its customers. As a result, DPL records adjustments to the 
allowance for uncollectible accounts in the period in which the new information that requires an adjustment becomes known.  

Inventories  

Included in inventories are:  
   

   

DPL utilizes the weighted average cost method of accounting for inventory items. Under this method, an average price is determined for the 
quantity of units acquired at each price level and is applied to the ending quantity to calculate the total ending inventory balance. Materials and 
supplies inventory are generally charged to inventory when purchased and then expensed or capitalized to plant, as appropriate, when installed.  

The cost of natural gas, including transportation costs, is included in inventory when purchased and charged to Gas purchased when used.  
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  •   transmission and distribution materials and supplies; and  
  •   natural gas.  
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  
   

Goodwill  

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired at the acquisition date. All of 
DPL’s goodwill was generated by DPL’s acquisition of Conowingo Power Company in 1995. DPL tests its goodwill for impairment annually 
and whenever an event occurs or circumstances change in the interim that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of DPL below its 
carrying amount. After the completion of its July 1, 2009 annual impairment test, DPL changed the date of its annual impairment test to 
November 1. Factors that may result in an interim impairment test include, but are not limited to: a change in the identified reporting units; an 
adverse change in business conditions; an adverse regulatory action; or an impairment of DPL’s long-lived assets. As described in Note (6), 
“Goodwill,” no impairment charge has been recorded for the year ended December 31, 2009.  

Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities  

Certain aspects of DPL’s business are subject to regulation by the DPSC and the MPSC, and, until the sale of its Virginia assets on January 2, 
2008, were regulated by the Virginia State Corporation Commission. The transmission and wholesale sale of electricity by DPL are regulated by 
the Federal Energy regulatory Commission (FERC). DPL’s interstate transportation and wholesale sale of natural gas are regulated by FERC.  

Based on the regulatory framework in which it has operated, DPL has historically applied, and in connection with its transmission and 
distribution business continues to apply, FASB guidance on regulated operations (ASC 980). The guidance allows regulated entities, in 
appropriate circumstances, to establish regulatory assets and to defer the income statement impact of certain costs that are expected to be 
recovered in future rates. Management’s assessment of the probability of recovery of regulatory assets requires judgment and interpretation of 
laws, regulatory commission orders, and other factors. If management subsequently determines, based on changes in facts or circumstances, that 
a regulatory asset is not probable of recovery, the regulatory asset will be eliminated through a charge to earnings.  

Effective June 2007, the MPSC approved a bill stabilization adjustment mechanism (BSA) for retail customers. For customers to whom the BSA 
applies, DPL recognizes distribution revenue based on an approved distribution charge per customer. From a revenue recognition standpoint, the 
BSA has the effect of decoupling the distribution revenue recognized in a reporting period from the amount of power delivered during the 
period. Pursuant to this mechanism, DPL recognizes either (a) a positive adjustment equal to the amount by which revenue from Maryland retail 
distribution sales falls short of the revenue that DPL is entitled to earn based on the approved distribution charge per customer, or (b) a negative 
adjustment equal to the amount by which revenue from such distribution sales exceeds the revenue that DPL is entitled to earn based on the 
approved distribution charge per customer (a Revenue Decoupling Adjustment). A net positive Revenue Decoupling Adjustment is recorded as a 
regulatory asset and a net negative Revenue Decoupling Adjustment is recorded as a regulatory liability.  

Property, Plant and Equipment  

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at original cost, including labor, materials, asset retirement costs and other direct and indirect costs 
including capitalized interest. The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is evaluated for impairment whenever circumstances indicate 
the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable. Upon retirement, the cost of regulated property, net of salvage, is charged to 
accumulated depreciation. For additional information regarding the treatment of retirement obligations, see the “Asset Removal Costs” section 
included in this Note.  

The annual provision for depreciation on electric and gas property, plant and equipment is computed on the straight-line basis using composite 
rates by classes of depreciable property. Accumulated  
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depreciation is charged with the cost of depreciable property retired, less salvage and other recoveries. Property, plant and equipment other than 
electric and gas facilities is generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets. The system-wide composite 
depreciation rates for 2009, 2008 and 2007 for DPL’s transmission and distribution system property were approximately 2.8%, 2.8% and 2.9%, 
respectively.  

Capitalized Interest and Allowance for Funds Used During Construction  

In accordance with FASB guidance on regulated operations (ASC 980), utilities can capitalize as Allowance for Funds Used During 
Construction (AFUDC) the capital costs of financing the construction of plant and equipment. The debt portion of AFUDC is recorded as a 
reduction of “interest expense” and the equity portion of AFUDC is credited to “other income” in the accompanying Statements of Income.  

DPL recorded AFUDC for borrowed funds of $1 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007.  

DPL recorded amounts for the equity component of AFUDC of zero, $1 million and zero for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 
2007, respectively.  

Leasing Activities  

DPL’s lease transactions can include plant, office space, equipment, software and vehicles. In accordance with FASB guidance on leases (ASC 
840), these leases are classified as operating leases.  

Operating Leases  

An operating lease generally results in a level income statement charge over the term of the lease, reflecting the rental payments required by the 
lease agreement. If rental payments are not made on a straight-line basis, DPL’s policy is to recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term unless another systematic and rational allocation basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the leased property is 
physically employed.  

Amortization of Debt Issuance and Reacquisition Costs  

DPL defers and amortizes debt issuance costs and long-term debt premiums and discounts over the lives of the respective debt issues. When 
refinancing existing debt, any unamortized premiums, discounts and debt issuance costs are classified as regulatory assets and are amortized 
generally over the life of the original issue. Any costs associated with the redemption of the existing debt are amortized over the life of the 
original issue.  

Asset Removal Costs  

In accordance with FASB guidance on asset retirement obligations (ASC 410), asset removal costs are recorded as regulatory liabilities. At 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, $239 million and $234 million, respectively, are included within regulatory liabilities in the accompanying 
Balance Sheets.  

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans  

Pepco Holdings sponsors a non-contributory retirement plan that covers substantially all employees of DPL (the PHI Retirement Plan) and 
certain employees of other Pepco Holdings subsidiaries. Pepco Holdings also provides supplemental retirement benefits to certain eligible 
executives and key employees through nonqualified retirement plans and provides certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits 
for eligible retired employees.  
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The PHI Retirement Plan is accounted for in accordance with FASB guidance on retirement benefits (ASC 715).  

Dividend Restrictions  

All of DPL’s shares of outstanding common stock are held by Conectiv, its parent company. In addition to its future financial performance, the 
ability of DPL to pay dividends to its parent company is subject to limits imposed by: (i) state corporate laws, which impose limitations on the 
funds that can be used to pay dividends, and (ii) the prior rights of holders of existing and future preferred stock, mortgage bonds and other long-
term debt issued by DPL and any other restrictions imposed in connection with the incurrence of liabilities. DPL has no shares of preferred stock 
outstanding. DPL had approximately $472 million and $448 million of retained earnings available for payment of common stock dividends at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  

Subsequent Events  

DPL has evaluated all subsequent events through February 26, 2010, the date of issuance of the financial statements.  

Reclassifications and Adjustments  

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified in order to conform to the current period presentation. The following adjustments have been 
recorded which are not considered material either individually or in the aggregate.  

In 2009, DPL recorded additional revenue of $14 million related to the unbilled portion of the Gas Cost Rate (GCR) revenue, which was not 
previously recognized. Because the GCR revenue is deferred, an additional expense of $14 million has also been recorded in 2009. 
Consequently, there is no impact on net income as a result of this adjustment.  

During 2009, DPL recorded an adjustment to correct certain errors in the BSA calculation. The adjustment resulted in a decrease in revenue of 
$1 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.  

During 2008, DPL recorded adjustments to correct errors in Other Operation and Maintenance expenses for prior periods dating back to May 
2006 during which (i) customer late payment fees were incorrectly recognized and (ii) stock-based compensation expense related to certain 
restricted stock awards granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan was understated. These adjustments resulted in a total increase in Other 
Operation and Maintenance expenses of $5 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, all of which related to prior periods.  

(3) NEWLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS  

Business Combinations (ASC 805)  

The accounting guidance on business combinations was amended by the FASB effective beginning January 1, 2009. The amendment did not 
change the fundamental concepts that the acquisition method of accounting be used and that an acquirer must be identified for each business 
combination. However, the guidance expanded the definition of a business subject to this guidance and also requires the acquirer to recognize 
changes in the amount of its deferred tax benefits that are realizable because of a business combination either in income from continuing 
operations or directly in contributed capital, depending on the circumstances.  
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On April 1, 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance to clarify the accounting for the initial recognition and measurement, subsequent 
measurement and accounting, and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in a business combination. The additional 
guidance requires that assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination that arise from contingencies be measured at fair value if 
the acquisition date fair value of that asset and liability can be determined during the measurement period. If the acquisition date fair value 
cannot be determined, then the asset or liability would be measured in accordance with FASB guidance on contingencies (ASC 450).  

The new guidance applied prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date was on or after January 1, 2009. The adoption 
of the guidance did not have a material impact on DPL’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.  

Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures (ASC 820)  

There is a variety of new accounting guidance from the FASB that was effective for different financial reporting periods during 2009. 
Nonrecurring fair value measurement guidance for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities was effective beginning January 1, 2009 for 
DPL. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the fair value measurements of DPL’s nonfinancial assets and non-
financial liabilities.  

New FASB guidance for the fair value measurement of liabilities issued with inseparable third-party credit enhancements was also effective 
beginning January 1, 2009 for DPL. The guidance applies to liabilities such as debt, derivatives, and other instruments that are guaranteed by 
third parties. The effect of the credit enhancement may not be included in the fair value measurement of the liability, even if the liability has an 
inseparable third-party credit enhancement. The issuer is required to disclose the existence of the inseparable third-party credit enhancement on 
the issued liability. The adoption of the guidance did not have a material impact on DPL’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or 
cash flows.  

DPL adopted new FASB guidance in the second quarter of 2009 for fair value measurement when markets are inactive and distressed. This 
guidance was effective for interim periods ending after June 15, 2009. The guidance outlines a two-step test to identify inactive and distressed 
markets and provides a fair value application example for financial instruments when both conditions are met. The guidance primarily applies to 
DPL’s valuation of derivatives valued using information from inactive and distressed markets. Use of such information requires management to 
exercise judgment regarding how the market information is incorporated into the measurement of fair value. This guidance did not have a 
material impact on DPL’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.  

Effective beginning with its June 30, 2009 financial statements, DPL began disclosing the fair value of debt issued by DPL on a quarterly basis 
in Note (14), “Fair Value Disclosures,” in accordance with FASB guidance which was effective for interim reporting periods ending after 
June 15, 2009.  

The FASB issued new guidance on the fair value measurement of liabilities when there is a lack of observable market information. The guidance 
clarifies that, when a quoted price is not available for the identical liability, an entity can use the quoted price of the identical liability when it is 
traded as an asset, the quoted price for a similar liability, or the quoted price for a similar liability when it is traded as an asset. If these prices are 
not available, then entities can employ an income or market valuation approach that considers what the entity would pay to transfer the identical 
liability or would receive to enter into the identical liability. The guidance was effective for DPL starting October 1, 2009, and it did not have an 
impact on DPL’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.  
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Derivatives and Hedging Disclosures (ASC 815)  

The FASB issued new disclosure requirements for derivatives and hedging effective for financial statement reporting periods beginning 
January 1, 2009 for DPL. Some of the new disclosures include derivative objectives and strategies, derivative volumes by product type, 
classification and gross fair values of derivative assets and liabilities, classification and amounts of gains and losses on derivatives and related 
hedged items, and credit-risk-related contingent features in derivatives. DPL adopted the new requirements beginning with its March 31, 2009 
financial statements with comparative disclosures for prior reporting periods. The disclosures are included within Note (13), “Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities.”  

Subsequent Events (ASC 855)  

Beginning with its June 30, 2009 financial statements, DPL adopted new FASB guidelines for the disclosure of events that occur after the 
balance sheet reporting date, but before the financial statements are issued. The new guidance requires the disclosure of the date through which 
DPL has assessed the impact of subsequent events on the financial statements. The new guidance was effective for interim or annual financial 
periods ending after June 15, 2009. DPL has disclosed this subsequent events date in Note (2), “Significant Accounting Policies.”  

FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC 105)  

The ASC identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of 
nongovernmental financial statements presented under GAAP. In addition, it replaces the reference system for standards and guidance with a 
new numerical designation system known as the ASC. The ASC is the single source reference system for all authoritative GAAP.  

The ASC is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. DPL adopted the ASC 
guidance and referencing system for GAAP in its September 30, 2009 financial statements. Entities are not required to revise previous financial 
statements for the change in references to GAAP. The adoption of ASC did not result in a change in accounting principle for DPL; therefore, it 
did not have a material impact on DPL’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.  

(4) RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, NOT YET A DOPTED  

Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)  

The FASB issued new guidance that removes the concept of a qualifying special-purpose entity (QSPE) from the current guidance on transfers 
and servicing and the QSPE scope exception in current guidance on consolidation. The new guidance also changes the requirements for 
derecognizing financial assets and requires additional disclosures about a transferor’s continuing involvement in transferred financial assets.  

The new guidance is effective for transfers of financial assets occurring in fiscal periods beginning after November 15, 2009; therefore, this 
guidance will be effective on January 1, 2010 for DPL. DPL does not expect this standard will have a material impact on its overall financial 
condition and financial statements.  

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (ASC 810)  

The FASB issued new consolidation guidance regarding variable interest entities that eliminates the existing quantitative analysis requirement 
and adds new qualitative factors to determine whether consolidation is required. The new qualitative factors would be applied on a quarterly 
basis to interests in variable interest entities. Under the new guidance, the holder of the interest with the power to direct the  
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most significant activities of the entity and the right to receive benefits or absorb losses significant to the entity would consolidate. The new 
guidance retained the existing provision that allowed entities created before December 31, 2003 to be scoped out from a consolidation 
assessment if exhaustive efforts are taken and there is insufficient information to determine the primary beneficiary.  

The new guidance is effective for fiscal periods beginning after November 15, 2009 for existing and newly created entities; therefore, this 
guidance will be effective on January 1, 2010 for DPL. DPL does not expect that the new guidance will result in a material change in accounting 
or disclosures in its financial statements.  

Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures (ASC 820)  

The FASB issued new disclosure requirements for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements. Some of the requirements will be 
effective for DPL beginning with its March 31, 2010 financial statements and include: (i) a disaggregation of balance sheet categories that are 
measured at fair value into classes (i.e. subsets of assets or liabilities within a balance sheet line item), (ii) a description of pricing inputs and 
valuation methodologies for instruments with Level 2 and 3 valuation inputs, and (iii) a reconciliation of transfers of instruments between Level 
1 and 2 valuation categories. Beginning with its March 31, 2011 financial statements, DPL will be required to disaggregate the Level 3 fair value 
measurement reconciliations into separate categories for purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements. DPL is evaluating the impact of this new 
guidance on its financial statement footnote disclosures.  

(5) SEGMENT INFORMATION  

The company operates its business as one regulated utility segment, which includes all of its services as described above.  

(6) GOODWILL  

DPL’s goodwill balance of $8 million was unchanged during the year ended December 31, 2009. All of DPL’s goodwill was generated by its 
acquisition of Conowingo Power Company in 1995.  

DPL’s annual impairment test as of November 1, 2009 indicated that goodwill was not impaired at October 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2009, 
after review of its significant assumptions in the goodwill impairment analysis, DPL concluded that there were no events requiring DPL to 
perform an interim goodwill impairment test. DPL performed an interim impairment test as of December 31, 2008, which indicated that goodwill 
was not impaired.  

In order to estimate the fair value of DPL’s business, DPL reviews the results from two discounted cash flow models. The models differ in the 
method used to calculate the terminal value of the reporting unit. One model estimates terminal value based on a constant annual cash flow 
growth rate that is consistent with DPL’s long-term view of the business, and the other model estimates terminal value based on a multiple of 
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA) that management believes is consistent with EBITDA multiples for 
comparable utilities. The models use a cost of capital appropriate for a regulated utility as the discount rate. DPL has consistently used this 
valuation approach to estimate the fair value of DPL’s business.  

The estimation of fair value is dependent on a number of factors that are derived from the DPL business forecast, including but not limited to 
interest rates, growth assumptions, returns on rate base, operating and capital expenditure requirements, and other factors, changes in which 
could materially affect the results of impairment testing. Assumptions used in the models were consistent with historical experience, including 
assumptions concerning the recovery of operating costs and capital expenditures. Sensitive, interrelated and uncertain variables that could 
decrease the estimated fair value of the DPL business include utility sector market performance, sustained adverse business conditions, changes 
in forecasted revenues, higher operating and capital expenditure requirements, a significant increase in the cost of capital and other factors.  
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With the continuing volatile general market conditions and the disruptions in the credit and capital markets, DPL will continue to closely 
monitor for indicators of goodwill impairment.  

(7) REGULATORY ASSETS AND REGULATORY LIABILITIES  

The components of DPL’s regulatory asset balances at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:  
   

The components of DPL’s regulatory liability balances at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:  
   

A description for each category of regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities follows:  

Deferred Energy Supply Costs: This regulatory asset represents primarily deferred energy costs associated with a net under-recovery of Default 
Electricity Supply costs incurred in Maryland and deferred fuel costs for DPL’s gas business. The gas deferred fuel costs are recovered over a 
twelve month period and include a return component. The regulatory liability represents primarily deferred energy and transmission costs 
associated with a net over-recovery of Default Electricity Supply costs incurred in Delaware and does not earn a return.  

Deferred Income Taxes: Represents a receivable from our customers for tax benefits DPL has previously flowed through before the company 
was ordered to account for the tax benefits as deferred income taxes. As the temporary differences between the financial statement basis and tax 
basis of assets reverse, the deferred recoverable balances are reversed. There is no return earned on these deferrals.  

Deferred Debt Extinguishment Costs: Represents the costs of debt extinguishment for which recovery through regulated utility rates is 
considered probable and, if approved, will be amortized to interest expense during the authorized rate recovery period. A return is earned on 
these deferrals.  

Phase In Credits: Represented phase-in credits for participating Maryland and Delaware residential and small commercial customers to mitigate 
the immediate impact of significant rate increases due to energy costs in 2006. The deferral period for Delaware was May 1, 2006 to January 1, 
2008 with recovery occurring over a 17-month period beginning January 2008. The Delaware deferral was recovered from  
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     2009    2008 
     (millions of dollars) 
Deferred energy supply costs     $ 6    $ 19 
Deferred income taxes       68      74 
Deferred debt extinguishment costs       18      19 
Phase in credits       —        10 
COPCO acquisition adjustment       35      38 
Gas derivatives       42      56 
Other       38      28 

              

Total Regulatory Assets     $ 207    $ 244 
              

     2009    2008 
     (millions of dollars) 
Deferred income taxes due to customers     $ 38    $ 39 
Deferred energy supply costs       11      1 
Asset removal costs       239      234 
Other       2      3 

              

Total Regulatory Liabilities     $ 290    $ 277 
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participating customers on a straight-line basis. The deferral period for Maryland was June 1, 2006 to June 1, 2007, with the recovery occurring 
over an 18-month period beginning June 2007. Recovery of all deferred amounts was completed during 2009. There was no return earned on 
these deferrals.  

COPCO Acquisition Adjustment: On July 19, 2007, the MPSC issued an order which provided for the recovery of a portion of DPL’s goodwill. 
As a result of this order, $41 million in DPL goodwill was transferred to a regulatory asset. This item earns a 12.95% return and will be 
amortized from August 2007 through August 2018.  

Gas derivatives: Represents losses associated with the hedge of gas transactions that are recoverable through the Gas Cost Rate approved by the 
Delaware Public Service Commission. A return is earned on these deferrals.  

Other: Represents miscellaneous regulatory assets that are generally being amortized over 1 to 20 years and generally do not earn a return.  

Deferred Income Taxes Due to Customers: Represents the portions of deferred income tax liabilities applicable to DPL’s utility operations that 
have not been reflected in current customer rates, for which future payment to customers is probable. As temporary differences between the 
financial statement basis and tax basis of assets reverse, deferred recoverable income taxes are amortized. There is no return earned on these 
deferrals.  

Asset Removal Costs: DPL’s depreciation rates include a component for removal costs, as approved by its federal and state regulatory 
commissions. DPL has recorded a regulatory liability for their estimate of the difference between incurred removal costs and the level of 
removal costs recovered through rates. There is no return earned on these deferrals.  

Other: Includes over-recovery of administrative costs associated with Default Electricity Supply in Delaware and Maryland. There is no return 
earned on these deferrals.  

(8) LEASING ACTIVITIES  

DPL leases an 11.9% interest in the Merrill Creek Reservoir. The lease is an operating lease and payments over the remaining lease term, which 
ends in 2032, are $102 million in the aggregate. DPL also has long-term leases for certain other facilities and equipment. Total future minimum 
operating lease payments for DPL, including the Merrill Creek Reservoir lease, as of December 31, 2009, are $18 million in 2010, $7 million in 
each of the years 2011 through 2014, and $97 million thereafter.  

Rental expense for operating leases, including the Merrill Creek Reservoir lease, was $9 million, $9 million and $10 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  
   

263  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 2 of 2 
Page 2220 of 7002



Table of Contents  

DPL 
   

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  
   
(9) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

Property, plant and equipment is comprised of the following:  
   

The balances of all property, plant and equipment, which are primarily electric transmission and distribution property, are stated at original cost. 
Utility plant is generally subject to a first mortgage lien.  

Asset Sales  

In January 2008, DPL completed (i) the sale of its retail electric distribution assets on the Eastern Shore of Virginia for a purchase price of 
approximately $49 million, and (ii) the sale of its wholesale electric transmission assets located on the Eastern Shore of Virginia for a purchase 
price of approximately $5 million.  

(10) PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS  

DPL accounts for its participation in the Pepco Holdings benefit plans as participation in a multi-employer plan. For 2009, 2008, and 2007, DPL 
was responsible for $25 million, $3 million and $4 million, respectively, of the pension and other postretirement net periodic benefit cost 
incurred by Pepco Holdings. DPL made discretionary, tax-deductible contributions of $10 million to the PHI Retirement Plan for the year ended 
December 31, 2009. No contributions were made for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. In addition, DPL made contributions of $10 
million, $9 million and $9 million, respectively to the other postretirement benefit plans for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. 
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, DPL’s prepaid pension expense of $157 million and $184 million, and other postretirement benefit obligation 
of $23 million and $4 million, effectively represent assets and benefit obligations resulting from DPL’s participation in the Pepco Holdings 
benefit plans.  
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At December 31, 2009    

Original 
 

Cost    

Accumulated 
 

Depreciation    
Net  

Book Value 
     (millions of dollars) 
Distribution     $ 1,430    $ 411    $ 1,019 
Transmission       684      211      473 
Gas       398      116      282 
Construction work in progress       92      —        92 
Non-operating and other property       203      122      81 

                     

Total     $ 2,807    $ 860    $ 1,947 
                     

At December 31, 2008                

Distribution     $ 1,358    $ 393    $ 965 
Transmission       641      205      436 
Gas       386      110      276 
Construction work in progress       71      —        71 
Non-operating and other property       200      119      81 

                     

Total     $ 2,656    $ 827    $ 1,829 
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(11)  DEBT  

Long-Term Debt  

Long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 is presented below:  
   

The outstanding First Mortgage Bonds issued by DPL are subject to a lien on substantially all of DPL’s property, plant and equipment.  

Type of Debt    Interest Rate     Maturity     2009     2008   
                 (millions of dollars)   

First Mortgage Bonds           

   6.40 %    2013      $ 250     $ 250   
   5.20 %    2019 (c)      31       —      
   4.90 %    2026 (b)(c)      35       —      
   5.22 %    2016 (c)      100       —      
           

  
      

  

         416       250   
           

  
      

  

Unsecured Tax-Exempt Bonds           

   5.20 %    2019 (d)      —          31   
   5.50 %    2025 (a)      15       15   
   4.90 %    2026 (b)(d)      —          35   
   5.65 %    2028 (a)      16       16   
           

  
      

  

         31       97   
           

  
      

  

Medium-Term Notes (unsecured)           

   7.56%-7.58 %    2017        14       14   
   6.81 %    2018        4       4   
   7.61 %    2019        12       12   
   7.72 %    2027        10       10   
           

  
      

  

         40       40   
           

  
      

  

Notes (unsecured)           

   5.00 %    2014        100       100   
   5.00 %    2015        100       100   
   5.22 %    2016 (e)      —          100   
           

  
      

  

         200       300   
           

  
      

  

Total long-term debt           687       687   
Unamortized discount           (1 )      (1 )  
Current portion of long -term debt           (31 )      —      

           
  

      
  

Total net long-term debt         $ 655     $ 686   
           

  

      

  

  
(a) The bonds are subject to mandatory tender on July 1, 2010. 
(b) The bonds are subject to mandatory tender on May 1, 2011. 
(c) Represents a series of First Mortgage Bonds issued by DPL (Collateral First Mortgage Bonds) as collateral for an outstanding series of 

senior notes issued by the company or tax-exempt bonds issued for the benefit of the company. The maturity date, optional and mandatory 
prepayment provisions, if any, interest rate, and interest payment dates on each series of senior notes or the obligations in respect of the 
tax-exempt bonds are identical to the terms of the corresponding series of Collateral First Mortgage Bonds. Payments of principal and 
interest on a series of senior notes or the company’s obligations in respect of the tax-exempt bonds satisfy the corresponding payment 
obligations on the related series of Collateral First Mortgage Bonds. Because each series of senior notes and tax-exempt bonds and the 
corresponding series of Collateral First Mortgage Bonds securing that series of senior notes or tax-exempt bonds effectively represents a 
single financial obligation, the senior notes and the tax-exempt bonds are not separately shown on the table. 

(d) In September 2009, DPL issued Collateral First Mortgage Bonds to secure its reimbursement obligations under a bond insurance policy 
insuring the principal and interest payments on this series of tax-exempt bonds previously issued for the benefit of DPL. Because this 
series of tax-exempt bonds and the related series of Collateral First Mortgage Bonds effectively represents a single financial obligation, the 
tax-exempt bonds are no longer shown as outstanding on the table and instead the debt obligation is represented by the related series of 
Collateral First Mortgage Bonds. 

(e) In September 2009, DPL issued Collateral First Mortgage Bonds to secure its reimbursement obligations under a bond insurance policy 
insuring the principal and interest payments on this series of notes previously issued by DPL. Because this series of notes and the related 
series of Collateral First Mortgage Bonds effectively represent a single financial obligation, the notes are no longer shown as outstanding 
on the table and instead the debt obligation is represented by the related series of Collateral First Mortgage Bonds. 
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Maturities of long-term debt and sinking fund requirements during the next five years are as follows: $31 million in 2010, $35 million in 2011, 
zero in 2012, $250 million in 2013, $100 million in 2014, and $271 million thereafter.  

DPL’s long-term debt is subject to certain covenants. DPL is in compliance with all requirements.  

Short-Term Debt  

DPL has traditionally used a number of sources to fulfill short-term funding needs, such as commercial paper, short-term notes, and bank lines of 
credit. Proceeds from short-term borrowings are used primarily to meet working capital needs, but may also be used to temporarily fund long-
term capital requirements. A detail of the components of DPL’s short-term debt at December 31, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:  
   

Commercial Paper  

DPL maintains an ongoing commercial paper program of up to $500 million. The commercial paper notes can be issued with maturities up to 
270 days from the date of issue. The commercial paper program is backed by DPL’s borrowing capacity under the $1.5 billion credit facility 
described below under the heading “Credit Facility.”  

DPL had no commercial paper outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008. The weighted average interest rates for commercial paper issued 
during 2009 and 2008 were 0.56% and 3.88%, respectively. The weighted average maturity for commercial paper issued during 2009 and 2008 
was five days.  

Variable Rate Demand Bonds  

Variable Rate Demand Bonds (VRDBs) are subject to repayment on the demand of the holders and, for this reason, are accounted for as short-
term debt in accordance with GAAP. However, bonds submitted for purchase are remarketed by a remarketing agent on a best efforts basis. DPL 
expects the bonds submitted for purchase will continue to be remarketed successfully due to the credit worthiness of the company and because 
the remarketing agent resets the interest rate to the then-current market rate. The company also may utilize one of the fixed rate fixed term 
conversion options of the bonds to establish a maturity which corresponds to the date of final maturity of the bonds. On this basis, DPL views 
VRDBs as a source of long-term financing. The VRDBs outstanding in 2009 mature as follows: 2017 ($26 million), 2024 ($33 million), 2028 
($16 million), and 2029 ($30 million). The weighted average interest rate for VRDBs was 1.78% during 2009 and 3.24% during 2008. Of the 
$105 million in VRDBs, $72 million of DPL’s obligations are secured by Collateral First Mortgage Bonds, which provide collateral to the 
investors in the event of a default by DPL.  
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     2009    2008 
     (millions of dollars) 
Variable Rate Demand Bonds     $ 105    $ 96 
Bank Loan       —        150 

              

Total     $ 105    $ 246 
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Credit Facility  

PHI, Potomac Electric Power Company (Pepco), DPL and Atlantic City Electric Company (ACE) maintain an unsecured credit facility to 
provide for their respective short-term liquidity needs. The aggregate borrowing limit under this credit facility is $1.5 billion, all or any portion 
of which may be used to obtain loans or to issue letters of credit. PHI’s credit limit under the facility is $875 million. The credit limit of each of 
Pepco, DPL and ACE is the lesser of $500 million and the maximum amount of debt the company is permitted to have outstanding by its 
regulatory authorities, except that the aggregate amount of credit used by Pepco, DPL and ACE at any given time collectively may not exceed 
$625 million. The interest rate payable by each company on utilized funds is, at the borrowing company’s election, (i) the greater of the 
prevailing prime rate and the federal funds effective rate plus 0.5% or (ii) the prevailing Eurodollar rate, plus a margin that varies according to 
the credit rating of the borrower. The facility also includes a “swingline loan sub-facility” pursuant to which each company may make same day 
borrowings in an aggregate amount not to exceed $150 million. Any swingline loan must be repaid by the borrower within seven days of receipt 
thereof.  

The facility commitment expiration date is May 5, 2012, with each company having the right to elect to have 100% of the principal balance of 
the loans outstanding on the expiration date continued as non-revolving term loans for a period of one year from such expiration date.  

The facility is intended to serve primarily as a source of liquidity to support the commercial paper programs of the respective companies. The 
companies also are permitted to use the facility to borrow funds for general corporate purposes and issue letters of credit. In order for a borrower 
to use the facility, certain representations and warranties must be true and correct, and the borrower must be in compliance with specified 
covenants, including (i) the requirement that each borrowing company maintain a ratio of total indebtedness to total capitalization of 65% or less, 
computed in accordance with the terms of the credit agreement, which excludes from the definition of total indebtedness certain trust preferred 
securities and deferrable interest subordinated debt (not to exceed 15% of total capitalization), (ii) a restriction on sales or other dispositions of 
assets, other than certain sales and dispositions, and (iii) a restriction on the incurrence of liens on the assets of a borrower or any of its 
significant subsidiaries other than permitted liens. As of December 31, 2009, each borrower was in compliance with the covenants of the credit 
facility.  

The absence of a material adverse change in the borrower’s business, property, and results of operations or financial condition is not a condition 
to the availability of credit under the facility. The facility does not include any rating triggers.  

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the amount of cash, plus borrowing capacity under the PHI credit facilities available to meet the liquidity needs 
of PHI’s utility subsidiaries was $582 million and $843 million, respectively.  
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(12) INCOME TAXES  

DPL, as an indirect subsidiary of PHI, is included in the consolidated federal income tax return of PHI. Federal income taxes are allocated to 
DPL pursuant to a written tax sharing agreement that was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the 
establishment of PHI as a holding company. Under this tax sharing agreement, PHI’s consolidated federal income tax liability is allocated based 
upon PHI’s and its subsidiaries’ separate taxable income or loss.  

The provision for income taxes, reconciliation of income tax rate, and components of deferred income tax liabilities (assets) are shown below.  

Provision for Income Taxes  
   

Reconciliation of Income Tax Rate  
   

In March 2009, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) issued a Revenue Agent’s Report (RAR) for the audit of PHI’s consolidated federal income 
tax returns for the calendar years 2003 to 2005. The IRS has proposed adjustments to PHI’s tax returns, including adjustments to DPL’s 
capitalization of overhead costs for tax purposes and the deductibility of certain DPL casualty losses. In conjunction with PHI, DPL has appealed 
certain of the proposed adjustments and believes it has adequately reserved for the adjustments included in the RAR.  
   

268  

     For the Year Ended December 31,   
     2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

Current Tax (Benefit) Expense         

Federal     $ (26 )    $ 11     $ 12   
State and local       (17 )      2       (1 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total Current Tax (Benefit) Expense       (43 )      13       11   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Deferred Tax Expense (Benefit)         

Federal       58       25       21   
State and local       2       8       6    
Investment tax credit amortization       (1 )     (1 )     (1 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total Deferred Tax Expense       59       32       26   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Total Income Tax Expense     $ 16     $ 45     $ 37   
       

  

      

  

      

  

     For the Year Ended December 31,   
     2009     2008     2007   
Federal statutory rate     35.0 %    35.0 %    35.0 %  

Increases (decreases) resulting from         

Depreciation     3.1      1.0      2.9    
State income taxes, net of federal effect     5.4      5.8      5.2    
State tax benefit related to prior years’  asset dispositions     (19.3 )    —        —      
Tax credits     (1.2 )    (0.7 )    (1.0 )  
Change in estimates and interest related to uncertain and 

effectively settled tax positions     (1.5 )    (2.6 )    (1.2 )  
Adjustment to prior years’  taxes     2.5      2.0      3.9    
Other, net     (0.5 )    (0.7 )    0.3    

     
  

    
  

    
  

Effective Income Tax Rate     23.5 %    39.8 %    45.1 %  
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In November 2009, DPL received a refund of prior years’ Federal income taxes of $10 million. The refund results from the carry back of a 2008 
net operating loss for tax reporting purposes that reflected, among other things, significant tax deductions related to accelerated depreciation, the 
pension plan contributions paid in 2009 (which were deducted in 2008) and the cumulative effect of adopting a new method of tax reporting for 
certain repairs.  

During 2008, DPL completed an analysis of its current and deferred income tax accounts and, as a result, recorded a $2 million charge to income 
tax expense in 2008, which is primarily included in “Adjustments to prior years’ taxes” in the reconciliation provided above. In addition, during 
2008, DPL recorded after-tax net interest income of $3 million under FASB guidance on income taxes (ASC 740) primarily related to the 
reversal of previously accrued interest payable resulting from a favorable tentative settlement of the mixed service cost issue with the IRS.  

Reconciliation of Beginning and Ending Balances of Unrecognized Tax Benefits  
   

Unrecognized Benefits That, If Recognized, Would Affect the Effective Tax Rate  

Unrecognized tax benefits represent those tax benefits related to tax positions that have been taken or are expected to be taken in tax returns that 
are not recognized in the financial statements because management has either measured the tax benefit at an amount less than the benefit 
claimed, or expected to be claimed, or has concluded that it is not more likely than not that the tax position will be ultimately sustained. For the 
majority of these tax positions, the ultimate deductibility is highly certain, but there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. At 
December 31, 2009, DPL had no unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would lower the effective tax rate.  

Interest and Penalties  

DPL recognizes interest and penalties relating to its uncertain tax positions as an element of income tax expense. For the years ended 
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, DPL recognized $3 million of interest income pre-tax ($2 million after-tax), $5 million of interest income 
pre-tax ($3 million after-tax), and $2 million of interest expense pre-tax ($1 million after-tax), respectively, as a component of income tax 
expense. As of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, DPL had $1 million, $3 million and $6 million, respectively, of accrued interest payable 
related to effectively settled and uncertain tax positions.  

Possible Changes to Unrecognized Tax Benefits  

It is reasonably possible that the amount of the unrecognized tax benefit with respect to certain of DPL’s unrecognized tax positions will 
significantly increase or decrease within the next 12 months. The final settlement of the mixed service cost issue or other federal or state audits 
could impact the balances significantly. At this time, other than the mixed service cost issue, an estimate of the range of reasonably possible 
outcomes cannot be determined. The unrecognized benefit related to the mixed service cost issue could decrease by $22 million within the next 
12 months upon final resolution of the tentative settlement with the IRS. See Note (15), “Commitments and Contingencies,” for additional 
information.  
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     2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

Beginning balance as of January 1,     $ 54     $ 41     $ 43    
Tax positions related to current year:         

Additions       —          —          1    
Tax positions related to prior years:         

Additions       10       35       7    
Reductions       (25 )      (22 )      —      

Settlements       —          —          (10 ) 
       

  
      

  
      

  

Ending balance as of December 31,     $ 39     $ 54     $ 41    
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Tax Years Open to Examination  

DPL, as an indirect subsidiary of PHI, is included on PHI’s consolidated federal tax return. DPL’s federal income tax liabilities for all years 
through 1999 have been determined, subject to adjustment to the extent of any net operating loss or other loss or credit carrybacks from 
subsequent years. The open tax years for the significant states where DPL files state income tax returns (Maryland, Delaware, and Virginia) are 
the same as for the federal returns.  

Components of Deferred Income Tax Liabilities (Assets)  
   

The net deferred tax liability represents the tax effect, at presently enacted tax rates, of temporary differences between the financial statement 
basis and tax basis of assets and liabilities. The portion of the net deferred tax liability applicable to DPL’s operations, which has not been 
reflected in current service rates, represents income taxes recoverable through future rates, net, and is recorded as a regulatory asset on the 
balance sheet. No valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was required or recorded at December 31, 2009 and 2008.  

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 repealed the investment tax credit (ITC) for property placed in service after December 31, 1985, except for certain 
transition property. ITC previously earned on DPL’s property continues to be amortized to income over the useful lives of the related property.  

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes  

Taxes other than income taxes for each year are shown below. These amounts are recoverable through rates.  
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     As of December 31,   
     2009     2008   
     (millions of dollars)   

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Assets)       

Depreciation and other basis differences related to plant and equipment     $ 408     $ 339   
Deferred taxes on amounts to be collected through future rates       14       14   
State net operating losses       (7 )      —      
Pension and other postretirement benefits       52       72   
Other       11       15   

       
  

      
  

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities, net       478       440   
Deferred tax assets included in Other Current Assets       9       8   
Deferred tax liabilities included in Other Current Liabilities       2       (2 )  

       
  

      
  

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities, net - non-current     $ 489     $ 446   
       

  

      

  

     2009    2008    2007 
     (millions of dollars) 
Gross Receipts/Delivery     $ 17    $ 17    $ 17 
Property       18      18      18 
Environmental, Use and Other       —        —        1 

                     

Total     $ 35    $ 35    $ 36 
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(13) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES  

DPL uses derivative instruments in the form of forward contracts, futures, swaps, and exchange-traded and over-the-counter options primarily to 
reduce gas commodity price volatility and limit its customers’ exposure to increases in the market price of gas. DPL also manages commodity 
risk with physical natural gas and capacity contracts that are not classified as derivatives. All premiums paid and other transaction costs incurred 
as part of DPL’s natural gas hedging activity, in addition to all gains and losses related to hedging activities, are deferred under FASB guidance 
on regulated operations (ASC 980) until recovered based on the fuel adjustment clause approved by the DPSC.  

The table below identifies the balance sheet location and fair values of derivative instruments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008:  
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     As of December 31, 2009   

Balance Sheet Caption    

Derivatives 
Designated 
as Hedging 
Instruments     

Other  
Derivative  

Instruments     

Gross  
Derivative  

Instruments     

Effects of 
Cash  

Collateral 
and  

Netting     

Net  
Derivative  

Instruments   
     (millions of dollars)   

Derivative Assets (current assets)     $ —        $ —        $ —        $ —        $ —      
Derivative Assets (non-current assets)       —          —          —          —          —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total Derivative Assets       —          —          —          —          —      
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Derivative Liabilities (current liabilities)       (10 )     (15 )     (25 )     10       (15 ) 
Derivative Liabilities (non-current liabilities)       —          (14 )     (14 )     1       (13 ) 

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total Derivative Liabilities       (10 )     (29 )     (39 )     11       (28 ) 
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Net Derivative (Liability) Asset     $ (10 )   $ (29 )   $ (39 )   $ 11      $ (28 ) 
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

     As of December 31, 2008   

Balance Sheet Caption    

Derivatives 
Designated 
as Hedging 
Instruments     

Other  
Derivative  

Instruments     

Gross  
Derivative  

Instruments     

Effects of 
Cash  

Collateral 
and  

Netting     

Net  
Derivative  

Instruments   
     (millions of dollars)   

Derivative Assets (current assets)     $ —        $ 3      $ 3      $ (3 )    $ —      
Derivative Assets (non-current assets)       —          —          —          —          —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total Derivative Assets       —          3        3        (3 )      —      
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Derivative Liabilities (current liabilities)       (31 )      (13 )      (44 )      31        (13 )  
Derivative Liabilities (non-current liabilities)       —          (14 )      (14 )      —          (14 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total Derivative Liabilities       (31 )      (27 )      (58 )      31        (27 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Net Derivative (Liability) Asset     $ (31 )    $ (24 )    $ (55 )    $ 28      $ (27 )  
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Under FASB guidance on the offsetting of balance sheet accounts (ASC 210), DPL offsets the fair value amounts recognized for derivative 
instruments and fair value amounts recognized for related collateral positions executed with the same counterparty under a master netting 
arrangement. The amount of cash collateral that was offset against these derivative positions is as follows:  
   

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, DPL had no cash collateral pledged or received related to derivatives accounted for at fair value that was not 
entitled to be offset under master netting arrangements.  

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments  

Cash Flow Hedges  

As described above, all premiums paid and other transaction costs incurred as part of DPL’s natural gas hedging activity, in addition to all of 
DPL’s gains and losses related to hedging activities, are deferred under FASB guidance on regulated operations until recovered through a fuel 
adjustment clause approved by the DPSC. The following table indicates the amounts deferred as regulatory assets or liabilities and the location 
in the statements of income of amounts reclassified to income through the fuel adjustment clause for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 
2008:  
   

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, DPL had the following outstanding commodity forward contracts that were entered into to hedge forecasted 
transactions:  
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December 31, 
 

2009    

December 31, 
 

2008 
     (millions of dollars) 

Cash collateral pledged to counterparties with the right to reclaim     $ 11    $ 28 

     
For the Year Ended  

December 31,   
     2009     2008   
     (millions of dollars)   

Net Gain (Loss) Deferred as a Regulatory Asset (Liability)     $ 21     $ (29 ) 
Net (Loss) Gain Reclassified from Regulatory Liability to Purchased Energy or 

Gas Purchased       (39 )     (6 ) 

     Quantities 

Commodity    

December 31, 
 

2009    

December 31, 

 
2008 

Forecasted Purchases Hedges:        

Natural Gas (One Million British Thermal Units (MMBtu))     5,695,000    10,805,000 
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Other Derivative Activity  

DPL holds certain derivatives that do not qualify as hedges. Under FASB guidance on derivatives and hedging, these derivatives are recorded at 
fair value on the balance sheet with the gain or loss recorded in income. In accordance with FASB guidance on regulatory operations, offsetting 
regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities are recorded on the balance sheet and the recognition of the gain or recovery of the loss is deferred. For 
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the amounts of the derivative gain (loss) recognized by line item in the statements of income are 
provided in the table below:  
   

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, DPL had the following net outstanding natural gas commodity forward contracts that did not qualify for 
hedge accounting:  
   

Contingent Credit Risk Features  

The primary contracts used by DPL for derivative transactions are entered into under an International Swaps and Derivatives Association Master 
Agreement (ISDA) or similar agreements that closely mirror the principal credit provisions of the ISDA. The ISDAs include a Credit Support 
Annex (CSA) that governs the mutual posting and administration of collateral security. The failure of a party to comply with an obligation under 
the CSA, including an obligation to transfer collateral security when due or the failure to maintain any required credit support, constitutes an 
event of default under the ISDA for which the other party may declare an early termination and liquidation of all transactions entered into under 
the ISDA, including foreclosure against any collateral security. In addition, some of the ISDAs have cross default provisions under which a 
default by a party under another commodity or derivative contract, or the breach by a party of another borrowing obligation in excess of a 
specified threshold, is a breach under the ISDA.  

The collateral requirements under the ISDA or similar agreements generally work as follows. The parties establish a dollar threshold of 
unsecured credit for each party in excess of which the party is required to post collateral to secure its obligations to the other party. The amount 
of the unsecured credit threshold generally varies according to the senior, unsecured debt rating of the respective parties or that of a guarantor of 
the party’s obligations. The fair values of all transactions between the parties are netted under the master netting provisions. Transactions may 
include derivatives accounted for on the balance sheet or normal purchases and normal sales that are accounted for off-balance sheet. If the 
aggregate fair value of the transactions is a net loss position that exceeds the unsecured credit threshold, then collateral is required to be posted in 
an amount equal to the amount by which the unsecured credit threshold is exceeded. The obligations of DPL are stand-alone obligations without 
the guaranty of PHI. If DPL’s credit rating were to fall below “investment grade,” the unsecured credit threshold would typically be zero and 
collateral would be required for the entire net loss position. Exchange-traded contracts are required to be fully collateralized without regard to 
the credit rating of the holder.  
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For the Year Ended  

December 31,   
     2009     2008   
     (millions of dollars)   

Net Gain (Loss) Deferred as a Regulatory Asset (Liability)     $ (8 )   $ (13 ) 
Net Loss Reclassified from Regulatory Liability to Purchased Energy or Gas 

Purchased       (11 )     (1 ) 

     December 31, 2009    December 31, 2008 
Commodity    Quantity    Net Position    Quantity    Net Position 

Natural Gas (MMBtu)     10,442,546    Long    8,928,750    Long 
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The gross fair value of DPL’s derivative liabilities, excluding the impact of offsetting transactions or collateral under master netting agreements, 
with credit-risk-related contingent features on December 31, 2009, was $28 million. As of that date, DPL had posted cash collateral of less than a 
million dollars in the normal course of business against the gross derivative liability resulting in a net liability of $28 million before giving effect 
to offsetting transactions that are encompassed within master netting agreements that would reduce this amount. PHI’s net settlement amount in 
the event of a downgrade of DPL below “investment grade” as of December 31, 2009, would have been approximately $24 million after taking 
into account the master netting agreements.  

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the amount of cash, plus borrowing capacity under the $1.5 billion credit facility available to meet the liquidity 
needs of PHI’s utility subsidiaries was $582 million and $843 million, respectively.  

(14) FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES  

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Excluding Debt  

Effective January 1, 2008, DPL adopted FASB guidance on fair value measurement and disclosures (ASC 820) which established a framework 
for measuring fair value and expanded disclosures about fair value measurements.  

As defined in the guidance, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). DPL utilizes market data or assumptions that market participants would use in 
pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be 
readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Accordingly, DPL utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. DPL is able to classify fair value balances based on the observability of those 
inputs. The guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest 
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to 
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurement). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:  

Level 1 – Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. Active markets are those in 
which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.  

Level 2 – Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in level 1, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of 
the reporting date. Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using broker quotes in liquid markets, and other observable 
pricing data. Level 2 also includes those financial instruments that are valued using internally developed methodologies that have been 
corroborated by observable market data through correlation or by other means. Significant assumptions are observable in the marketplace 
throughout the full term of the instrument, can be derived from observable data or are supported by observable levels at which transactions are 
executed in the marketplace.  

Level 3 – Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less observable than those from objective sources. Level 3 includes those 
financial investments that are valued using models or other valuation methodologies. DPL’s level 3 instruments are natural gas options 
purchased as part of a natural gas hedging program approved by the DPSC. Some non-standard assumptions are used in their forward valuation 
to adjust for the pricing; otherwise, most of the options follow NYMEX valuation. A few of the options have no significant NYMEX 
components, and have to be priced using internal volatility assumptions.  
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Executive deferred compensation plan assets classified as Level 3 instruments consist of life insurance policies that are valued using the cash 
surrender value of the policies which does not represent a quoted price in an active market.  

The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy DPL’s financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value 
on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. As required by the guidance, financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety 
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. DPL’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to 
the fair value measurement requires the exercise of judgment, and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their placement 
within the fair value hierarchy levels.  
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     Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2009 

Description    Total    

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets  

for Identical  
Instruments  

(Level 1)    

Significant 
Other  

Observable 
Inputs  

(Level 2)    

Significant  
Unobservable 

Inputs  
(Level 3) 

     (millions of dollars) 
ASSETS              

Cash equivalents     $ 19    $ 19    $ —      $ —   
Executive deferred compensation plan assets       4      3      —        1 

                            

   $ 23    $ 22    $ —      $ 1 
                            

LIABILITIES              

Derivative instruments     $ 39    $ 10    $ —      $ 29 
Executive deferred compensation plan liabilities       1      —        1      —   

                            

   $ 40    $ 10    $ 1    $ 29 
                            

     Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2008 

Description    Total    

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets  

for Identical  
Instruments  

(Level 1)    

Significant 
Other  

Observable 
Inputs  

(Level 2)    

Significant  
Unobservable 

Inputs  
(Level 3) 

     (millions of dollars) 
ASSETS              

Cash equivalents     $ 129    $ 129    $ —      $ —   
Executive deferred compensation plan assets       4      3      —        1 

                            

   $ 133    $ 132    $ —      $ 1 
                            

LIABILITIES              

Derivative instruments     $ 55    $ 28    $ 3    $ 24 
Executive deferred compensation plan liabilities       1      —        1      —   

                            

   $ 56    $ 28    $ 4    $ 24 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  
   
Reconciliations of the beginning and ending balances of DPL’s fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the 
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 are shown below:  
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For the Year Ended  
December 31, 2009 

     

Net  
Derivative  

Instruments 
 

Asset  
(Liability)     

Deferred  
Compensation 

 
Plan Assets 

     (millions of dollars) 
Beginning balance as of January 1, 2009     $ (24 )   $ 1 
Total gains or (losses) (realized and unrealized):       

Included in income       —          —   
Included in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) 

income       —          —   
Included in regulatory liabilities       (18 )     —   

Purchases and issuances       —          —   
Settlements       13       —   
Transfers in (out) of Level 3       —          —   

       
  

      

Ending balance as of December 31, 2009     $ (29 )    $ 1 
       

  

      

     
For the Year Ended  
December 31, 2008 

     

Net  
Derivative  

Instruments 
 

Asset  
(Liability)     

Deferred  
Compensation 

 
Plan Assets 

     (millions of dollars) 
Beginning balance as of January 1, 2008     $ (11 )   $ 1 
Total gains or (losses) (realized and unrealized):       

Included in income       —          —   
Included in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) 

income       —          —   
Included in regulatory liabilities       (14 )     —   

Purchases and issuances       —          —   
Settlements       1       —   
Transfers in (out) of Level 3       —          —   

       
  

      

Ending balance as of December 31, 2008     $ (24 )    $ 1 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  
   

Fair Value of Debt Instruments  

The estimated fair values of DPL’s non-derivative financial instruments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are shown below:  
   

The fair values of the long-term debt, which includes First Mortgage Bonds, Unsecured Tax-Exempt Bonds, Medium-Term Notes, and 
Unsecured Notes, including amounts due within one year, were derived based on current market prices, or were based on discounted cash flows 
using current rates for similar issues with similar terms and remaining maturities for issues with no market price available.  

(15) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

Regulatory and Other Matters  

Rate Proceedings  

In recent electric service distribution base rate cases, DPL has proposed the adoption of revenue decoupling methods for retail customers. To 
date:  
   

   

   

Under the BSA, customer delivery rates are subject to adjustment (through a credit or surcharge mechanism), depending on whether actual 
distribution revenue per customer exceeds or falls short of the revenue-per-customer amount approved by the applicable public service 
commission. The BSA increases rates if actual distribution revenues fall below the approved level and decreases rates if actual distribution 
revenues are above the approved level. The result is that, over time, DPL collects its authorized revenues for distribution deliveries. As a 
consequence, a BSA “decouples” distribution revenue from unit sales consumption and ties the growth in distribution revenues to the growth in 
the number of customers. Some advantages of the BSA are that it (i) eliminates revenue fluctuations due to weather and changes in customer 
usage patterns and, therefore, provides for more predictable distribution revenues that are better aligned with costs, (ii) provides for more reliable 
fixed-cost recovery, (iii) tends to stabilize customers’ delivery bills, and (iv) removes any disincentives for DPL to promote energy efficiency 
programs for its customers, because it breaks the link between overall sales volumes and distribution revenues. The MFVRD adopted in 
Delaware provides for a fixed customer charge (i.e., not tied to the customer’s volumetric consumption) to recover the utility’s fixed costs, plus a 
reasonable rate of return. Although different from the BSA, DPL views the MFVRD as an appropriate distribution revenue decoupling 
mechanism.  
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     December 31, 2009    December 31, 2008 
     (millions of dollars) 

     

Carrying 
 

Amount    
Fair  

Value    

Carrying 
 

Amount    
Fair  

Value 

Long-Term Debt     $ 686    $ 733    $ 686    $ 682 

  •   A BSA has been approved and implemented for DPL electric service in Maryland.  

  
•   A modified fixed variable rate design (MFVRD) has been approved in concept for DPL electric service in Delaware and may be 

implemented in DPL’s pending electric base rate case.  

  
•   A MFVRD has been approved in concept for DPL natural gas service in Delaware and may be implemented either in the context of a 

pending decoupling case or DPL’s next Delaware natural gas distribution base rate case.  
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DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  
   

Delaware  

In August 2008, DPL submitted its 2008 GCR filing to the DPSC, requesting an increase in the level of GCR, which permits DPL to recover gas 
procurement costs through customer rates. In September 2008, the DPSC issued an initial order approving the requested increase, which became 
effective on November 1, 2008, subject to refund pending final DPSC approval after evidentiary hearings. Due to a significant decrease in 
wholesale gas prices, DPL in January 2009 submitted to the DPSC an interim GCR filing, requesting a decrease in the level of GCR. The 
proposed decrease became effective on a temporary basis on March 1, 2009, and when combined with the increase that became effective 
November 1, 2008, had the net effect of a 13.8% increase in the level of GCR. On October 6, 2009, the DPSC issued a final order approving the 
13.8% net increase, reflecting a settlement agreement among DPL, the DPSC staff and the Delaware Public Advocate.  

On August 31, 2009, DPL submitted its 2009 GCR filing to the DPSC, requesting a 10.2% decrease in the level of GCR, to become effective on 
a temporary basis on November 1, 2009. This rate proposal was approved by the DPSC on September 9, 2009, subject to refund and pending 
final DPSC approval.  

On September 18, 2009, DPL submitted an application with the DPSC to increase its electric distribution base rates. The filing seeks approval of 
an annual rate increase of approximately $28 million, assuming approval of the implementation of the MFVRD, based on a requested return on 
equity (ROE) of 10.75% (if implementation of the MFVRD is not approved, the increase would be $29 million, based on an ROE of 11.00%). 
DPL placed an increase of approximately $2.5 million annually into effect on a temporary basis on November 17, 2009, subject to refund and 
pending final DPSC approval of the entirety of the requested increase. As permitted by Delaware law, DPL currently anticipates that it will place 
the remaining $25.5 million of the requested increase into effect on April 19, 2010, subject to refund and pending the final DPSC order. The 
DPSC has established a procedural schedule that provides for hearings in April 2010 and a DPSC decision in July 2010.  

On June 25, 2009, DPL filed an application requesting approval for the implementation of the MFVRD for gas distribution rates. This filing is 
based on revenues established in DPL’s last gas distribution base rate case, and accordingly is revenue neutral. On August 4, 2009, the DPSC 
issued an order opening a docket for the matter. A similar application on June 25, 2009 requesting approval for the implementation of the 
MFVRD for electric distribution rates has been consolidated with the electric distribution base rate proceeding discussed above.  

Maryland  

On May 6, 2009, DPL filed an electric distribution base rate case in Maryland. The filing sought approval of an annual rate increase of 
approximately $14 million, based on a requested ROE of 11.25%. On December 2, 2009, the MPSC approved an annual increase of 
approximately $7.5 million, based on an overall rate of return of 7.96%, including an ROE of 10%. The MPSC rejected a proposed surcharge 
mechanism for pension, other postretirement benefits and uncollectible expenses. The rate increase was implemented through rates that are 
effective for electric usage on and after December 2, 2009.  

Environmental Litigation  

DPL is subject to regulation by various federal, regional, state, and local authorities with respect to the environmental effects of its operations, 
including air and water quality control, solid and hazardous waste disposal, and limitations on land use. In addition, federal and state statutes 
authorize governmental agencies to compel responsible parties to clean up certain abandoned or unremediated hazardous waste sites. DPL may 
incur costs to clean up currently or formerly owned facilities or sites found to be contaminated, as well as other facilities or sites that may have 
been contaminated due to past disposal practices. Although penalties assessed for violations of environmental laws and regulations are not 
recoverable from DPL’s customers, environmental clean-up costs incurred by DPL would be included in its cost of service for ratemaking 
purposes.  
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DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  
   
Ward Transformer Site . In April 2009, a group of potentially responsible parties (PRPs) with respect to the Ward Transformer site in Raleigh, 
North Carolina, filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of North Carolina, alleging cost recovery and/or contribution 
claims against DPL with respect to past and future response costs incurred by the PRP group in performing a removal action at the site. With the 
court’s permission, the plaintiffs filed amended complaints on September 1, 2009. DPL, as part of a group of defendants, filed a motion to 
dismiss on October 13, 2009. Although it is too early in the process to characterize the magnitude of the potential liability at this site, it does not 
appear that DPL had extensive business transactions, if any, with the Ward Transformer site.  

IRS Mixed Service Cost Issue  

During 2001, DPL changed its method of accounting with respect to capitalizable construction costs for income tax purposes. The change 
allowed the company to accelerate the deduction of certain expenses that were previously capitalized and depreciated. As a result of this method 
change, DPL generated incremental tax cash flow benefits of approximately $62 million.  

In 2005, the IRS issued Revenue Ruling 2005-53, which limited the ability of DPL to utilize its tax accounting method on its 2001 through 2004 
tax returns. In accordance with this Revenue Ruling, the RAR for the 2001 and 2002 tax returns disallowed substantially all of the incremental 
tax benefits that DPL had claimed on those returns.  

In March 2009, PHI reached a tentative settlement with the IRS for all years (2001 through 2004). The terms of the settlement reduced the tax 
benefits related to the mixed service costs deductions by $12 million for DPL.  

Contractual Obligations  

As of December 31, 2009, DPL’s contractual obligations under non-derivative fuel and power purchase contracts were $40 million in 2010, $77 
million in 2011 to 2012, $74 million in 2013 to 2014, and $368 million in 2015 and thereafter.  

(16)  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

PHI Service Company provides various administrative and professional services to PHI and its regulated and unregulated subsidiaries including 
DPL. The cost of these services is allocated in accordance with cost allocation methodologies set forth in the service agreement using a variety 
of factors, including the subsidiaries’ share of employees, operating expenses, assets, and other cost causal methods. These intercompany 
transactions are eliminated by PHI in consolidation and no profit results from these transactions at PHI. PHI Service Company costs directly 
charged or allocated to DPL for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $130 million, $121 million, and $118 million, 
respectively.  
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In addition to the PHI Service Company charges described above, DPL’s financial statements include the following related party transactions in 
its Statements of Income:  
   

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, DPL had the following balances on its balance sheets due (to) from related parties:  
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     For the Year Ended December 31,   
     2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

(Expense) Income     

Purchased power under Default Electricity Supply contracts with Conectiv Energy 
Supply, Inc. (a)     $ (88 )   $ (180 )    $ (263 )  

Purchased power under Default Electricity Supply contracts with Pepco Energy 
Services (a)       —          —          (6 )  

Intercompany lease transactions (b)       7       7       8   
Transcompany pipeline gas sales with Conectiv Energy Supply, Inc. (c)       —          1       3   
Transcompany pipeline gas purchases with Conectiv Energy Supply, Inc. (d)     $ (1 )   $ (3 )    $ (2 )  
  

  (a) Included in purchased energy expense. 
  (b) Included in electric revenue. 
  (c) Included in gas revenue. 
  (d) Included in gas purchased expense. 

     2009     2008   
     (millions of dollars)   

Asset (Liability)     

Receivable from (Payable to) Related Party (current)       

PHI Service Company     $ 22     $ (15 )  
PHI Parent Company       (27 )     —      
Conectiv Energy Supply, Inc.       (7 )     (14 )  
Pepco Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries (Pepco Energy Services) (a)       (3 )     (6 )  

The items listed above are included in the “Accounts payable due to associated 
companies” balances on the balance sheet of $14 million and $34 million at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.       

  

  
(a) DPL bills customers on behalf of Pepco Energy Services where customers have selected Pepco Energy Services as their 

alternative supplier. 
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(17) QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)  

The quarterly data presented below reflect all adjustments necessary in the opinion of management for a fair presentation of the interim results. 
Quarterly data normally vary seasonally because of temperature variations and differences between summer and winter rates. Therefore, 
comparisons by quarter within a year are not meaningful.  
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     2009   

     
First  

Quarter     
Second 
Quarter     

Third  
Quarter     

Fourth 
Quarter     Total   

     (millions of dollars)   

Total Operating Revenue     $ 452     $ 291      $ 339      $ 321     $ 1,403   
Total Operating Expenses       408       274        321        290       1,293   
Operating Income       44       17        18        31       110   
Other Expenses       (11 )      (10 )     (11 )      (10 )      (42 )  
Income Before Income Tax Expense       33       7        7        21       68   
Income Tax Expense (Benefit)       12       2        (7 )(a)      9       16   
Net Income     $ 21     $ 5      $ 14      $ 12     $ 52   

     2008   

     
First  

Quarter     
Second 
Quarter     

Third  
Quarter     

Fourth 
Quarter     Total   

     (millions of dollars)   

Total Operating Revenue     $ 411      $ 372      $ 401      $ 355      $ 1,539   
Total Operating Expenses       364        341        376 (d)      310        1,391   
Operating Income       47        31        25        45        148   
Other Expenses       (8 )      (7 )      (8 )      (12 )      (35 )  
Income Before Income Tax Expense       39        24        17        33        113   
Income Tax Expense       13 (b)      8 (c)      6        18 (e)      45   
Net Income     $ 26      $ 16      $ 11      $ 15      $ 68   
  
(a) Includes benefit of $13 million related to a change in the Maryland state income tax reporting for the disposition of certain assets in prior 

years. 
(b) Includes $3 million of after-tax net interest income on uncertain tax positions primarily related to casualty losses. 
(c) Includes $2 million of after-tax interest income related to the tentative settlement of the IRS mixed service cost issue. 
(d) Includes a $2 million charge related to an adjustment in the accounting for certain restricted stock awards granted under the Long-Term 

Incentive Plan (LTIP) and a $4 million adjustment to correct an understatement of operating expenses for prior periods dating back to May 
2006 where late payment fees were incorrectly recognized. 

(e) Includes $3 million of after-tax net interest expense on uncertain and effectively settled tax positions (primarily associated with the reversal 
of the majority of the interest income recognized on uncertain tax positions related to casualty losses in the first quarter), and a charge of 
$2 million to correct prior period errors related to additional analysis of deferred tax balances completed in 2008. 
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

The management of ACE is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is 
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over 
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to 
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.  

Management assessed its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 based on the framework in Internal Control – 
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on its assessment, the 
management of ACE concluded that ACE’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2009.  

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated financial statements of ACE 
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has also issued its attestation report on the effectiveness of ACE’s internal control over financial 
reporting, which is included herein.  
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  

To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of Atlantic City Electric Company  

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Atlantic City Electric Company (a wholly owned subsidiary of Pepco Holdings, Inc.) and its 
subsidiary at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in 
the period ended December 31, 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in 
our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the 
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company 
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in 
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The 
Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control 
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying 
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on 
the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits, which was an integrated 
audit in 2009. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the 
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our 
audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  
Washington, DC  
February 26, 2010  
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ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COMPANY  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME  
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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For the Year Ended December 31,    2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

Operating Revenue     $ 1,351     $ 1,633     $ 1,543   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Operating Expenses         

Purchased energy       1,076       1,178       1,051   
Other operation and maintenance       190       183       165   
Depreciation and amortization       102       104       80   
Other taxes       21       24       22   
Deferred electric service costs       (161 )     (9 )      66   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total Operating Expenses       1,228       1,480       1,384   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Operating Income       123       153       159   

Other Income (Expenses)         

Interest and dividend income       —          1       1   
Interest expense       (67 )     (62 )      (64 )  
Other income       2       3       5   
Other expenses       —          (1 )      —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total Other Expenses       (65 )     (59 )      (58 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  

Income Before Income Tax Expense       58       94       101   

Income Tax Expense       17       30       41   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net Income     $ 41     $ 64     $ 60   
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ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COMPANY  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.  
   

286  

ASSETS    

December 31, 
 

2009     

December 31, 
 

2008   
     (millions of dollars)   

CURRENT ASSETS       

Cash and cash equivalents     $ 7     $ 65   
Restricted cash equivalents       10       10   
Accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible accounts of $7 million and $6 million, 

respectively       176       195   
Inventories       15       15   
Prepayments of income taxes       38       47   
Prepaid expenses and other       12       16   

       
  

      
  

Total Current Assets       258       348   
       

  
      

  

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS       

Regulatory assets       712       768   
Restricted cash equivalents       4       5   
Assets and accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions       57       110   
Income taxes receivable       76       10   
Prepaid pension expense       63       6   
Other       9       12   

       
  

      
  

Total Investments and Other Assets       921       911   
       

  
      

  

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT       

Property, plant and equipment       2,328       2,216   
Accumulated depreciation       (699 )     (666 ) 

       
  

      
  

Net Property, Plant and Equipment       1,629       1,550   
       

  
      

  

TOTAL ASSETS     $ 2,808     $ 2,809   
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ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COMPANY  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    
December 31,  

2009    
December 31,  

2008 
     (millions of dollars, except shares) 
CURRENT LIABILITIES        

Short-term debt     $ 83    $ 23 
Current portion of long-term debt       35      32 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities       120      122 
Accounts payable due to associated companies       58      28 
Taxes accrued       5      7 
Interest accrued       13      14 
Liabilities and accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions       —        6 
Other       42      35 

              

Total Current Liabilities       356      267 
              

DEFERRED CREDITS        

Regulatory liabilities       178      377 
Deferred income taxes, net       604      549 
Investment tax credits       9      10 
Other postretirement benefit obligation       25      41 
Other       11      12 

              

Total Deferred Credits       827      989 
              

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES        

Long-term debt       609      610 
Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding       368      401 

              

Total Long-Term Liabilities       977      1,011 
              

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 14 )        

REDEEMABLE SERIAL PREFERRED STOCK       6      6 
              

EQUITY        

Common stock, $3.00 par value, 25,000,000 shares authorized, 8,546,017 shares outstanding       26      26 
Premium on stock and other capital contributions       473      344 
Retained earnings       143      166 

              

Total Equity       642      536 
              

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     $ 2,808    $ 2,809 
              

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 2 of 2 
Page 2245 of 7002



Table of Contents  

ACE 
   

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COMPANY  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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For the Year Ended December 31,    2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

OPERATING ACTIVITIES         

Net income     $ 41     $ 64     $ 60   
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:         

Depreciation and amortization       102       104       80   
Deferred income taxes       53       166       (31 )  
Investment tax credit adjustments       (1 )      (1 )      1   
Changes in:         

Accounts receivable       19       3       (35 )  
Inventories       —          (1 )      (1 )  
Prepaid expenses       (5 )      1       (1 )  
Regulatory assets and liabilities, net       (183 )      (43 )      55   
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities       43       10       —      
Pension contributions       (60 )      —          —      
Taxes accrued       (6 )      (159 )      24   
Interest accrued       (1 )      1       —      
Proceeds from sale of B.L. England emission allowances       —          —          48   
Other assets and liabilities       (10 )      8       (4 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net Cash (Used By) From Operating Activities       (8 )      153       196   
       

  
      

  
      

  

INVESTING ACTIVITIES         

Investment in property, plant and equipment       (141 )      (162 )      (149 )  
Proceeds from sale of assets       —          1       9   
Changes in restricted cash equivalents       1       (1 )      (1 )  
Net other investing activities       (1 )      1       10   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities       (141 )      (161 )      (131 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  

FINANCING ACTIVITIES         

Dividends paid to Parent       (64 )      (46 )      (50 )  
Capital contribution from Parent       129       35       —      
Issuances of long-term debt       —          250       —      
Reacquisitions of long-term debt       (32 )      (136 )      (46 )  
Issuances (repayments) of short-term debt, net       60       (29 )      28   
Costs of issuances       (1 )      (2 )      —      
Net other financing activities       (1 )      (6 )      5   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net Cash From (Used By) Financing Activities       91       66       (63 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net (Decrease) Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents       (58 )      58       2   
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year       65       7       5   

       
  

      
  

      
  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR     $ 7     $ 65     $ 7   
       

  

      

  

      

  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION         

Cash paid for interest (net of capitalized interest of $2 million for each year presented)     $ 65     $ 58     $ 62   
Cash (received) paid for income taxes       (42 )      21       38   
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY  
   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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(millions of dollars, except shares) 

   Common Stock    Premium 
 

on Stock 

   Retained 
 

Earnings      Shares    Par Value       

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006     8,546,017    $ 26    $ 306    $ 132   

Net Income     —        —        —        60   
Dividends:              

Common stock     —        —        —        (50 )  
Capital contribution from Parent     —        —        3      —      

                          
  

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2007     8,546,017      26      309      142   

Net Income     —        —        —        64   
Dividends:              

Common stock     —        —        —        (46 )  
Transfer of deferred income tax liabilities to Parent     —        —        —        6   

Capital contribution from Parent     —        —        35      —      
                          

  

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2008     8,546,017      26      344      166   

Net Income     —        —        —        41   
Dividends:              

Common stock     —        —        —        (64 )  
Capital contribution from Parent     —        —        129      —      

                          
  

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009     8,546,017    $ 26    $ 473    $ 143   
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(1) ORGANIZATION  

Atlantic City Electric Company (ACE) is engaged in the transmission and distribution of electricity in southern New Jersey. ACE provides 
Default Electricity Supply, which is the supply of electricity at regulated rates to retail customers in its service territory who do not elect to 
purchase electricity from a competitive supplier. Default Electricity Supply is also known as Basic Generation Service (BGS) in New Jersey. 
ACE is a wholly owned subsidiary of Conectiv, which is wholly owned by Pepco Holdings, Inc. (Pepco Holdings or PHI).  

(2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Consolidation Policy  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ACE and its wholly owned subsidiary ACE Transition Funding. All 
intercompany balances and transactions between subsidiaries have been eliminated. ACE uses the equity method to report investments, corporate 
joint ventures, partnerships, and affiliated companies where it holds a 20% to 50% voting interest and cannot exercise control over the operations 
and policies of the investee. Individual interests in several jointly owned electric plants previously held by ACE, and certain transmission and 
other facilities currently held are consolidated in proportion to ACE’s percentage interest in the facility.  

Use of Estimates  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) 
requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, 
and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Although ACE 
believes that its estimates and assumptions are reasonable, they are based upon information available to management at the time the estimates are 
made. Actual results may differ significantly from these estimates.  

Significant matters that involve the use of estimates include the assessment of contingencies, the calculation of future cash flows and fair value 
amounts for use in asset impairment evaluations, pension and other postretirement benefits assumptions, unbilled revenue calculations, the 
assessment of the probability of recovery of regulatory assets, and income tax provisions and reserves. Additionally, ACE is subject to legal, 
regulatory, and other proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of its business. ACE records an estimated liability for these 
proceedings and claims when the loss is determined to be probable and is reasonably estimable.  

Revenue Recognition  

ACE recognizes revenue upon delivery of electricity to its customers, including amounts for electricity delivered but not yet billed (unbilled 
revenue). ACE recorded amounts for unbilled revenue of $42 million and $45 million as of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, 
respectively. These amounts are included in Accounts Receivable. ACE calculates unbilled revenue using an output based methodology. This 
methodology is based on the supply of electricity intended for distribution to customers. The unbilled revenue process requires management to 
make assumptions and judgments about input factors such as customer sales mix, temperature, and estimated line losses (estimates of electricity 
expected to be lost in the process of its transmission and distribution to customers), all of which are inherently uncertain and susceptible to 
change from period to period, and if the actual results differ from the projected results, the impact could be material.  
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Taxes related to the delivery of electricity to its customers are a component of ACE’s tariffs and, as such, are billed to customers and recorded in 
Operating Revenues. Accruals for these taxes by ACE are recorded in Other Taxes. Excise tax related generally to the consumption of gasoline 
by ACE in the normal course of business is charged to operations, maintenance or construction, and is not material.  

Taxes Assessed by a Governmental Authority on Revenue-Producing Transactions  

Taxes included in ACE’s gross revenues were $22 million, $22 million and $23 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  

Long-Lived Asset Impairment Evaluation  

ACE evaluates certain long-lived assets to be held and used (for example, equipment and real estate) to determine if they are impaired whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Examples of such events or changes include a 
significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset or a significant adverse change in the manner an asset is being used or its physical 
condition. A long-lived asset to be held and used is written down to fair value if the sum of its expected future undiscounted cash flows is less 
than its carrying amount.  

For long-lived assets that can be classified as assets to be disposed of by sale, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its fair value including costs to sell.  

Income Taxes  

ACE, as an indirect subsidiary of PHI, is included in the consolidated federal income tax return of Pepco Holdings. Federal income taxes are 
allocated to ACE based upon the taxable income or loss amounts, determined on a separate return basis.  

On May 2, 2007, the FASB issued guidance on how an enterprise should determine whether a tax position is effectively settled for the purpose 
of recognizing previously unrecognized tax benefits. ACE applied the guidance on January 1, 2007.  

The consolidated financial statements include current and deferred income taxes. Current income taxes represent the amount of tax expected to 
be reported on ACE’s state income tax returns and the amount of federal income tax allocated from Pepco Holdings.  

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities represent the tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement basis and tax basis of 
existing assets and liabilities, and are measured using presently enacted tax rates. The portion of ACE’s deferred tax liability applicable to its 
utility operations that has not been recovered from utility customers represents income taxes recoverable in the future and is included in 
Regulatory assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note (6), “Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities,” for additional information.  

Deferred income tax expense generally represents the net change during the reporting period in the net deferred tax liability and deferred 
recoverable income taxes.  

ACE recognizes interest on under/over payments of income taxes, interest on uncertain tax positions, and tax-related penalties in income tax 
expense.  

Investment tax credits are being amortized to income over the useful lives of the related property.  
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Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities  

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) guidance on variable interest entities (Accounting Standards 
Codification (ASC) 810), ACE consolidates those variable interest entities with respect to which ACE is the primary beneficiary. The guidance 
addresses conditions when an entity should be consolidated based upon variable interests rather than voting interests.  

ACE has power purchase agreements (PPAs) with a number of entities, including three contracts with unaffiliated non-utility generators 
(NUGs). Due to a variable element in the pricing structure of the PPAs, ACE potentially assumes the variability in the operations of the plants 
operated by the NUGs and, therefore, has a variable interest in the entities. ACE continued, during 2009, to conduct exhaustive efforts to obtain 
information from these entities, but was unable to obtain sufficient information to conduct the analysis required under FASB guidance to 
determine whether these three entities were variable interest entities or if ACE was the primary beneficiary. As a result, ACE has applied the 
scope exemption from the guidance for enterprises that have conducted exhaustive efforts to obtain the necessary information, but have not been 
able to obtain such information.  

Net purchase activities under the PPAs for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, were approximately $282 million, $349 million 
and $327 million, respectively, of which approximately $262 million, $305 million and $292 million, respectively, consisted of power purchases 
under the PPAs. ACE does not have loss exposure under the NUGs because the costs are recoverable from ACE’s customers through regulated 
rates.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash invested in money market funds, and commercial paper held with original maturities of 
three months or less. Additionally, deposits in PHI’s “money pool,” which ACE and certain other PHI subsidiaries use to manage short-term 
cash management requirements, are considered cash equivalents. Deposits in the money pool are guaranteed by PHI. PHI deposits funds in the 
money pool to the extent that the pool has insufficient funds to meet the needs of its participants, which may require PHI to borrow funds for 
deposit from external sources.  

Restricted Cash Equivalents  

Restricted cash equivalents represents cash either held as collateral or pledged as collateral, and is restricted from use for general corporate 
purposes.  

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts  

ACE’s accounts receivable balance primarily consists of customer accounts receivable, other accounts receivable, and accrued unbilled revenue. 
Accrued unbilled revenue represents revenue earned in the current period but not billed to the customer until a future date (usually within one 
month after the receivable is recorded).  

ACE maintains an allowance for uncollectible accounts and changes in the allowance are recorded as an adjustment to Other Operation and 
Maintenance expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. ACE determines the amount of allowance based on specific identification of 
material amounts at risk by customer and maintains a general reserve based on its historical collection experience. The adequacy of this 
allowance is assessed on a quarterly basis by evaluating all known factors such as the aging of the receivables, historical collection experience, 
the economic and competitive environment, and changes in the creditworthiness of its customers. Although management believes its allowance 
is adequate, it cannot anticipate with any certainty the changes in the financial condition of its customers. As a result, ACE records adjustments 
to the allowance for uncollectible accounts in the period in which the new information that requires an adjustment becomes known.  
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Inventories  

Included in inventories are transmission and distribution materials and supplies. ACE utilizes the weighted average cost method of accounting 
for inventory items. Under this method, an average price is determined for the quantity of units acquired at each price level and is applied to the 
ending quantity to calculate the total ending inventory balance. Materials and supplies inventory are generally charged to inventory when 
purchased and then expensed or capitalized to plant, as appropriate, when installed.  

Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities  

Certain aspects of ACE’s business are subject to regulation by the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU). The transmission and 
wholesale sale of electricity by ACE are regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.  

Based on the regulatory framework in which it has operated, ACE has historically applied, and in connection with its transmission and 
distribution business continues to apply, FASB guidance on regulated operations (ASC 980). The guidance allows regulated entities, in 
appropriate circumstances, to establish regulatory assets and to defer the income statement impact of certain costs that are expected to be 
recovered in future rates. Management’s assessment of the probability of recovery of regulatory assets requires judgment and interpretation of 
laws, regulatory commission orders, and other factors. If management subsequently determines, based on changes in facts or circumstances, that 
a regulatory asset is not probable of recovery, the regulatory asset will be eliminated through a charge to earnings.  

Property, Plant and Equipment  

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at original cost, including labor, materials, asset retirement costs and other direct and indirect costs, 
including capitalized interest. The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is evaluated for impairment whenever circumstances indicate 
the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable. Upon retirement, the cost of regulated property, net of salvage, is charged to 
accumulated depreciation.  

The annual provision for depreciation on electric property, plant and equipment is computed on the straight-line basis using composite rates by 
classes of depreciable property. Accumulated depreciation is charged with the cost of depreciable property retired, less salvage and other 
recoveries. Property, plant and equipment other than electric facilities is generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the 
assets. The system-wide composite depreciation rates for 2009, 2008 and 2007 for ACE’s transmission and distribution system property were 
approximately 2.8%, 2.8% and 2.9%, respectively.  

Capitalized Interest and Allowance for Funds Used During Construction  

In accordance with FASB guidance on regulated operations (ASC 980), utilities can capitalize as Allowance for Funds Used During 
Construction (AFUDC) the capital costs of financing the construction of plant and equipment. The debt portion of AFUDC is recorded as a 
reduction of “interest expense” and the equity portion of AFUDC is credited to “other income” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of 
Income.  

ACE recorded AFUDC for borrowed funds of $2 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.  

ACE recorded amounts for the equity component of AFUDC of $1 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.  
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Leasing Activities  

ACE’s lease transactions can include plant, office space, equipment, software and vehicles. In accordance with FASB guidance on leases (ASC 
840), these leases are classified as operating leases.  

Operating Leases  

An operating lease generally results in a level income statement charge over the term of the lease, reflecting the rental payments required by the 
lease agreement. If rental payments are not made on a straight-line basis, ACE’s policy is to recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term unless another systematic and rational allocation basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the leased property is 
physically employed.  

Amortization of Debt Issuance and Reacquisition Costs  

ACE defers and amortizes debt issuance costs and long-term debt premiums and discounts over the lives of the respective debt issues. When 
refinancing existing debt, any unamortized premiums, discounts and debt issuance costs are classified as regulatory assets and are amortized 
generally over the life of the original issue. Any costs associated with the redemption of the existing debt are amortized over the life of the 
original issue.  

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans  

Pepco Holdings sponsors a non-contributory retirement plan that covers substantially all employees of ACE (the PHI Retirement Plan) and 
certain employees of other Pepco Holdings subsidiaries. Pepco Holdings also provides supplemental retirement benefits to certain eligible 
executives and key employees through nonqualified retirement plans and provides certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits 
for eligible retired employees.  

The PHI Retirement Plan is accounted for in accordance with FASB guidance on retirement benefits (ASC 715).  

Dividend Restrictions  

All of ACE’s shares of outstanding common stock are held by Conectiv, its parent company. In addition to its future financial performance, the 
ability of ACE to pay dividends to its parent company is subject to limits imposed by: (i) state corporate laws, which impose limitations on the 
funds that can be used to pay dividends and the regulatory requirement that ACE obtain the prior approval of the NJBPU before dividends can be 
paid if its equity as a percent of its total capitalization, excluding securitization debt, falls below 30%; (ii) the prior rights of holders of existing 
and future preferred stock, mortgage bonds and other long-term debt issued by ACE and any other restrictions imposed in connection with the 
incurrence of liabilities; and (iii) certain provisions of the charter of ACE which impose restrictions on payment of common stock dividends for 
the benefit of preferred stockholders. Currently, the restriction in the ACE charter does not limit its ability to pay common stock dividends. ACE 
had approximately $143 million and $166 million of retained earnings available for payment of common stock dividends at December 31, 2009 
and 2008, respectively.  

Subsequent Events  

ACE has evaluated all subsequent events through February 26, 2010, the date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements.  
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Reclassifications and Adjustments  

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified in order to conform to the current period presentation. The following adjustments have been 
recorded, which are not considered material either individually or in the aggregate.  

During 2009, ACE recorded adjustments to correct certain income tax errors related to prior periods. These adjustments resulted in a decrease in 
income tax expense of $1 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.  

During 2008, PHI identified an error in the accounting for certain of its restricted stock awards under the Long-Term Incentive Plan which 
resulted in an understatement of ACE’s stock-based compensation expense in 2006 and 2007. This error was corrected in 2008, resulting in an 
increase in ACE’s Other Operation and Maintenance expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 of $1 million.  

(3) NEWLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS  

Business Combinations (ASC 805)  

The accounting guidance on business combinations was amended by the FASB effective beginning January 1, 2009. The amendment did not 
change the fundamental concepts that the acquisition method of accounting be used and that an acquirer must be identified for each business 
combination. However, the guidance expanded the definition of a business subject to this guidance and also requires the acquirer to recognize 
changes in the amount of its deferred tax benefits that are realizable because of a business combination either in income from continuing 
operations or directly in contributed capital, depending on the circumstances.  

On April 1, 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance to clarify the accounting for the initial recognition and measurement, subsequent 
measurement and accounting, and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in a business combination. The additional 
guidance requires that assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination that arise from contingencies be measured at fair value if 
the acquisition date fair value of that asset and liability can be determined during the measurement period. If the acquisition date fair value 
cannot be determined, then the asset or liability would be measured in accordance with FASB guidance on contingencies (ASC 450).  

The new guidance applied prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date was on or after January 1, 2009. The adoption 
of the guidance did not have a material impact on ACE’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.  

Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures (ASC 820)  

There is a variety of new accounting guidance from the FASB that was effective for different financial reporting periods during 2009. 
Nonrecurring fair value measurement guidance for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities was effective beginning January 1, 2009 for 
ACE. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the fair value measurements of ACE’s nonfinancial assets and non-
financial liabilities.  

New FASB guidance for the fair value measurement of liabilities issued with inseparable third-party credit enhancements was also effective 
beginning January 1, 2009 for ACE. The guidance applies to liabilities such as debt, derivatives, and other instruments that are guaranteed by 
third parties. The effect of the credit enhancement may not be included in the fair value measurement of the liability, even if the liability has an 
inseparable third-party credit enhancement. The issuer is required to disclose the existence of the inseparable third-party credit enhancement on 
the issued liability. The adoption of the guidance did not have a material impact on ACE’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or 
cash flows.  
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ACE adopted new FASB guidance in the second quarter of 2009 for fair value measurement when markets are inactive and distressed. This 
guidance was effective for interim periods ending after June 15, 2009. The guidance outlines a two-step test to identify inactive and distressed 
markets and provides a fair value application example for financial instruments when both conditions are met. Use of such information requires 
management to exercise judgment regarding how the market information is incorporated into the measurement of fair value. This guidance did 
not have a material impact on ACE’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.  

Effective beginning with its June 30, 2009 financial statements, ACE began disclosing the fair value of debt issued by ACE on a quarterly basis 
in Note (13), “Fair Value Disclosures,” in accordance with FASB guidance which was effective for interim reporting periods ending after 
June 15, 2009.  

The FASB issued new guidance on the fair value measurement of liabilities when there is a lack of observable market information. The guidance 
clarifies that, when a quoted price is not available for the identical liability, an entity can use the quoted price of the identical liability when it is 
traded as an asset, the quoted price for a similar liability, or the quoted price for a similar liability when it is traded as an asset. If these prices are 
not available, then entities can employ an income or market valuation approach that considers what the entity would pay to transfer the identical 
liability or would receive to enter into the identical liability. The guidance was effective for ACE starting October 1, 2009, and it did not have an 
impact on ACE’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.  

Consolidation (ASC 810)  

The FASB established new accounting and reporting standards for a non-controlling interest (also called a “minority interest”) in a subsidiary 
and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. The new guidance clarified that a non-controlling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in 
the consolidated entity that should be separately reported in the consolidated financial statements.  

The guidance was effective prospectively for financial statement reporting periods beginning January 1, 2009 for ACE, except for the financial 
statement presentation and disclosure requirements which also apply to prior reporting periods presented. As of January 1, 2009, ACE adopted 
the provisions of this guidance and the provisions did not have a material impact on ACE’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or 
cash flows.  

Subsequent Events (ASC 855)  

Beginning with its June 30, 2009 financial statements, ACE adopted new FASB guidelines for the disclosure of events that occur after the 
balance sheet reporting date, but before the financial statements are issued. The new guidance requires the disclosure of the date through which 
ACE has assessed the impact of subsequent events on the financial statements. The new guidance was effective for interim or annual financial 
periods ending after June 15, 2009. ACE has disclosed this subsequent events date in Note (2), “Significant Accounting Policies.”  

FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC 105)  

The ASC identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the preparation of 
nongovernmental financial statements presented under GAAP. In addition, it replaces the reference system for standards and guidance with a 
new numerical designation system known as the ASC. The ASC is the single source reference system for all authoritative GAAP.  
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The ASC is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. ACE adopted the ASC 
guidance and referencing system for GAAP in its September 30, 2009 financial statements. Entities are not required to revise previous financial 
statements for the change in references to GAAP. The adoption of ASC did not result in a change in accounting principle for ACE; therefore, it 
did not have a material impact on ACE’s overall financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.  

(4) RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, NOT YET A DOPTED  

Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)  

The FASB issued new guidance that removes the concept of a qualifying special-purpose entity (QSPE) from the current guidance on transfers 
and servicing and the QSPE scope exception in current guidance on consolidation. The new guidance also changes the requirements for 
derecognizing financial assets and requires additional disclosures about a transferor’s continuing involvement in transferred financial assets.  

The new guidance is effective for transfers of financial assets occurring in fiscal periods beginning after November 15, 2009; therefore, this 
guidance will be effective on January 1, 2010 for ACE. ACE does not expect this standard will have a material impact on its overall financial 
condition and financial statements.  

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (ASC 810)  

The FASB issued new consolidation guidance regarding variable interest entities that eliminates the existing quantitative analysis requirement 
and adds new qualitative factors to determine whether consolidation is required. The new qualitative factors would be applied on a quarterly 
basis to interests in variable interest entities. Under the new guidance, the holder of the interest with the power to direct the most significant 
activities of the entity and the right to receive benefits or absorb losses significant to the entity would consolidate. The new guidance retained the 
existing provision that allowed entities created before December 31, 2003 to be scoped out from a consolidation assessment if exhaustive efforts 
are taken and there is insufficient information to determine the primary beneficiary.  

The new guidance is effective for fiscal periods beginning after November 15, 2009 for existing and newly created entities; therefore, this 
guidance will be effective on January 1, 2010 for ACE. ACE does not expect that the new guidance will result in a material change in accounting 
or disclosures in its financial statements.  

Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures (ASC 820)  

The FASB issued new disclosure requirements for recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements. Some of the requirements will be 
effective for ACE beginning with its March 31, 2010 financial statements and include: (i) a disaggregation of balance sheet categories that are 
measured at fair value into classes (i.e. subsets of assets or liabilities within a balance sheet line item), (ii) a description of pricing inputs and 
valuation methodologies for instruments with Level 2 and 3 valuation inputs, and (iii) a reconciliation of transfers of instruments between Level 
1 and 2 valuation categories. Beginning with its March 31, 2011 financial statements, ACE will be required to disaggregate the Level 3 fair value 
measurement reconciliations into separate categories for purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements. ACE is evaluating the impact of this new 
guidance on its financial statement footnote disclosures.  

(5) SEGMENT INFORMATION  

The company operates its business as one regulated utility segment, which includes all of its services as described above.  
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(6) REGULATORY ASSETS AND REGULATORY LIABILITIES  

The components of ACE’s regulatory asset balances at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:  
   

The components of ACE’s regulatory liability balances at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:  
   

A description for each category of regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities follows:  

Securitized Stranded Costs: Includes contract termination payments under a contract between ACE and an unaffiliated non-utility generator and 
costs associated with the regulated operations of ACE’s electricity generation business which are no longer recoverable through customer rates. 
The recovery of these stranded costs has been securitized through the issuance by Atlantic City Electric Transition Funding LLC (ACE Funding) 
of transition bonds (Transition Bonds). A customer surcharge is collected by ACE to fund principal and interest payments on the Transition 
Bonds. The stranded costs are amortized over the life of the Transition Bonds, which mature between 2010 and 2023. A return is earned on these 
deferrals with the exception of tax balances.  

Deferred Income Taxes: Represents a receivable from our customers for tax benefits ACE has previously flowed through before the company 
was ordered to account for the tax benefit as deferred income taxes. As the temporary differences between the financial statement basis and tax 
basis of assets reverse, the deferred recoverable balances are reversed. There is no return earned on these deferrals.  

Deferred Debt Extinguishment Costs: Represents the costs of debt extinguishment for which recovery through regulated utility rates is 
considered probable and, if approved, will be amortized to interest expense during the authorized rate recovery period. A return is earned on 
these deferrals.  

Unrecovered Purchased Power Contract Costs:  Represents deferred costs related to purchase power contracts entered into by ACE. The 
amortization period began in July 1994 and will end in May 2014. A return is earned on these deferrals.  

Deferred Other Postretirement Benefit Costs: Represents the non-cash portion of other postretirement benefit costs deferred by ACE during 
1993 through 1997. This cost is being recovered over a 15-year period that began on January 1, 1998. There is no return earned on this deferral.  
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     2009    2008 
     (millions of dollars) 
Securitized stranded costs     $ 620    $ 674 
Deferred income taxes       27      26 
Deferred debt extinguishment costs       13      14 
Unrecovered purchased power contract costs       7      9 
Deferred other postretirement benefit costs       7      10 
Other       38      35 

              

Total Regulatory Assets     $ 712    $ 768 
              

     2009    2008 
     (millions of dollars) 
Deferred energy supply costs     $ 89    $ 247 
Federal and New Jersey tax benefits, related to securitized stranded costs       25      28 
Excess depreciation reserve       58      74 
Gain from sale of divested assets       —        26 
Other       6      2 

              

Total Regulatory Liabilities     $ 178    $ 377 
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Other: Represents miscellaneous regulatory assets that generally are being amortized over 1 to 20 years and generally do not earn a return.  

Deferred Energy Supply Costs: This regulatory liability represents primarily deferred costs associated with a net over-recovery by ACE of 
Default Electricity Supply costs and other restructuring related costs incurred by ACE. There is no return earned on these deferrals.  

Federal and New Jersey Tax Benefits, Related to Securitized Stranded Costs: Securitized stranded costs include a portion of stranded costs 
attributable to the future tax benefit expected to be realized when the higher tax basis of the generating plants divested by ACE is deducted for 
New Jersey state income tax purposes, as well as the future benefit to be realized through the reversal of federal excess deferred taxes. To 
account for the possibility that these tax benefits may be given to ACE’s regulated electricity delivery customers through lower rates in the 
future, ACE established a regulatory liability. The regulatory liability related to federal excess deferred taxes will remain until such time as the 
Internal Revenue Service issues its final regulations with respect to normalization of these federal excess deferred taxes. There is no return 
earned on these deferrals.  

Excess Depreciation Reserve: The excess depreciation reserve was recorded as part of an ACE New Jersey rate case settlement. This excess 
reserve is the result of a change in estimated depreciable lives and a change in depreciation technique from remaining life to whole life. The 
excess is being amortized over an 8.25 year period, which began in June 2005. There is no return earned on these deferrals.  

Gain from Sale of Divested Assets : Represents (i) the balance of the net gain realized by ACE from the sale in 2006 of its interests in the 
Keystone and Conemaugh generating facilities and (ii) the balance of the net proceeds realized by ACE from the sale in 2007 of the B.L. 
England generating facility and the monetization of associated emission allowance credits. Both gains, including interest on the unamortized 
balance, have been returned to ACE’s ratepayers as a credit on their bills — the Keystone and Conemaugh gain over a 33-month period that 
began during the October 2006 billing period and the B.L. England and emission allowances proceeds over a 12-month period that began during 
the June 2008 billing period. There was no return earned on these deferrals.  

Other: Includes miscellaneous regulatory liabilities that generally do not earn a return.  

(7) LEASING ACTIVITIES  

ACE leases certain types of property and equipment for use in its operations. Rental expense for operating leases was $9 million, $9 million and 
$10 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  

Total future minimum operating lease payments for ACE as of December 31, 2009 are $9 million in 2010, $2 million in each of the years 2011 
through 2014, and $19 million thereafter.  
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(8) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

Property, plant and equipment is comprised of the following:  
   

The balances of all property, plant and equipment, which are primarily electric transmission and distribution property, are stated at original cost. 
Utility plant is generally subject to a first mortgage lien.  

Jointly Owned Plant  

ACE’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include its proportionate share of assets and liabilities related to jointly owned plant. At December 31, 2009 
and 2008, ACE’s subsidiaries had a $9 million net book value ownership interest in transmission and other facilities in which various parties also 
have ownership interests. ACE’s share of the operating and maintenance expenses of the jointly-owned plant is included in the corresponding 
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income. ACE is responsible for providing its share of the financing for the above jointly-owned 
facilities.  

Asset Sales  

In 2007, ACE completed the sale of the B.L. England generating facility for a price of $9 million. In 2008, ACE received an additional $4 
million in settlement of an arbitration proceeding concerning the terms of the purchase agreement. See Note (6), “Regulatory Assets and 
Regulatory Liabilities,” for treatment of gains from these sales.  

(9) PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS  

ACE accounts for its participation in the Pepco Holdings benefit plans as participation in a multi-employer plan. For 2009, 2008, and 2007, ACE 
was responsible for $20 million, $12 million and $11 million, respectively, of the pension and other postretirement net periodic benefit cost 
incurred by Pepco Holdings. ACE made discretionary tax-deductible contributions of $60 million to the PHI Retirement Plan for the year ended 
December 31, 2009. No contributions were made for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. In addition, ACE made contributions of $6 
million, $7 million and $7 million, respectively, to the other postretirement benefit plans for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. 
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, ACE’s prepaid pension  
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At December 31, 2009    

Original 
 

Cost    

Accumulated 
 

Depreciation    

Net Book 
 

Value 
     (millions of dollars) 

Generation     $ 10    $ 9    $ 1 
Distribution       1,413      420      993 
Transmission       651      182      469 
Construction work in progress       94      —        94 
Non-operating and other property       160      88      72 

                     

Total     $ 2,328    $ 699    $ 1,629 
                     

At December 31, 2008                

Generation     $ 10    $ 9    $ 1 
Distribution       1,316      379      937 
Transmission       658      190      468 
Construction work in progress       71      —        71 
Non-operating and other property       161      88      73 

                     

Total     $ 2,216    $ 666    $ 1,550 
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expense of $63 million and $6 million, and other postretirement benefit obligation of $25 million and $41 million, respectively, effectively 
represent assets and benefit obligations resulting from ACE’s participation in the Pepco Holdings benefit plans.  

(10) DEBT  

Long-Term Debt  

Long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 is presented below.  
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Type of Debt    Interest Rate     Maturity    2009     2008   
                (millions of dollars)   

First Mortgage Bonds            

   7.25%-7.63 %    2010-2014    $ 8      $ 8    
   6.63 %    2013      69        69    
   7.68 %    2015-2016      17        17    
   7.75 %    2018      250        250    
   6.80 % (a)    2021      39        39    
   5.60 % (a)    2025      4        4    
   5.80 % (a)(b)    2034      120        120    
   5.80 % (a)(b)    2036      105        105    
            

  
      

  

Total long-term debt            612        612    
Net unamortized discount            (2 )      (2 )  
Current portion of long -term debt            (1 )      —      

            
  

      
  

Total net long-term debt          $ 609      $ 610    
            

  

      

  

Transition Bonds Issued by ACE Funding            

   2.89 %    2011    $ —        $ 5    
   4.21 %    2013      34        57    
   4.46 %    2016      49        52    
   4.91 %    2017      118        118    
   5.05 %    2020      54        54    
   5.55 %    2023      147        147    
            

  
      

  

          402        433    
Net unamortized discount            —          —      
Current portion of long -term debt            (34 )      (32 )  

            
  

      
  

Total net long-term Transition Bonds Issued by ACE 
Funding          $ 368      $ 401    

            

  

      

  

  
(a) Represents a series of First Mortgage Bonds issued by ACE (Collateral First Mortgage Bonds) as collateral for an outstanding series of 

senior notes issued by the company or tax-exempt bonds issued by or for the benefit of ACE. The maturity date, optional and mandatory 
prepayment provisions, if any, interest rate, and interest payment dates on each series of senior notes or the obligations in respect of the 
tax-exempt bonds are identical to the terms of the corresponding series of Collateral First Mortgage Bonds. Payments of principal and 
interest on a series of senior notes or the company’s obligation in respect of the tax-exempt bonds satisfy the corresponding payment 
obligations on the related series of Collateral First Mortgage Bonds. Because each series of senior notes and tax-exempt bonds and the 
corresponding series of Collateral First Mortgage Bonds securing that series of senior notes or tax-exempt bonds effectively represents a 
single financial obligation, the senior notes and the tax-exempt bonds are not separately shown on the table. 

(b) Represents a series of Collateral First Mortgage Bonds issued by ACE that will, at such time as there are no First Mortgage Bonds of ACE 
outstanding (other than Collateral First Mortgage Bonds securing payment of senior notes), cease to secure the corresponding series of 
senior notes and will be cancelled. 
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The outstanding First Mortgage Bonds issued by ACE are subject to a lien on substantially all of ACE’s property, plant and equipment.  

ACE Funding was established in 2001 solely for the purpose of securitizing authorized portions of ACE’s recoverable stranded costs through the 
issuance and sale of Transition Bonds. The proceeds of the sale of each series of Transition Bonds have been transferred to ACE in exchange for 
the transfer by ACE to ACE Funding of the right to collect a non-bypassable transition bond charge from ACE customers pursuant to bondable 
stranded costs rate orders issued by the NJBPU in an amount sufficient to fund the principal and interest payments on the Transition Bonds and 
related taxes, expenses and fees (Bondable Transition Property). The assets of ACE Funding, including the Bondable Transition Property, and 
the Transition Bond charges collected from ACE’s customers are not available to creditors of ACE. The Transition Bonds are obligations of 
ACE Funding and are non-recourse to ACE.  

The aggregate principal amount of long-term debt including Transition Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2009, that will mature in each of 
2010 through 2014 and thereafter is as follows: $35 million in 2010, $35 million in 2011, $37 million in 2012, $108 million in 2013, $48 million 
in 2014, and $751 million thereafter.  

ACE’s long-term debt is subject to certain covenants. ACE is in compliance with all requirements.  

Short-Term Debt  

ACE has traditionally used a number of sources to fulfill short-term funding needs, such as commercial paper, short-term notes, and bank lines 
of credit. Proceeds from short-term borrowings are used primarily to meet working capital needs, but may also be used to temporarily fund long-
term capital requirements. A detail of the components of ACE’s short-term debt at December 31, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:  
   

Commercial Paper  

ACE maintains an ongoing commercial paper program of up to $250 million. The commercial paper notes can be issued with maturities up to 
270 days from the date of issue. The commercial paper program is backed by ACE’s borrowing capacity under the $1.5 billion credit facility 
described below under the heading “Credit Facility.”  

ACE had $60 million of commercial paper outstanding at December 31, 2009 and no commercial paper outstanding at December 31, 2008. The 
weighted average interest rates for commercial paper issued during 2009 and 2008 were .63% and 3.12%, respectively. The weighted average 
maturity for commercial paper issued during 2009 and 2008 was eight days and four days, respectively.  
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     2009    2008 
     (millions of dollars) 
Commercial paper     $ 60    $ —   
Variable rate demand bonds       23      1 
Bonds held under Standby Bond Purchase Agreement       —        22 

              

Total     $ 83    $ 23 
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Variable Rate Demand Bonds  

Variable Rate Demand Bonds (VRDBs) are subject to repayment on the demand of the holders and, for this reason, are accounted for as short-
term debt in accordance with GAAP. However, bonds submitted for purchase are remarketed by a remarketing agent on a best efforts basis. ACE 
expects the bonds submitted for purchase will be remarketed successfully due to the credit worthiness of the company and because the 
remarketing resets the interest rate to the then-current market rate. The company also may utilize one of the fixed rate fixed term conversion 
options of the bonds to establish a maturity which corresponds to the date of final maturity of the bonds. On this basis, ACE views VRDBs as a 
source of long-term financing. The VRDBs outstanding in 2009 mature as follows: 2014 ($19 million) and 2017 ($4 million). The weighted 
average interest rate for VRDBs was .81% and 3.29% during 2009 and 2008, respectively.  

In June 2009, ACE completed the remarketing of $23 million in VRDBs that are supported by letters of credit issued by The Bank of New York 
Mellon. The letters of credit will expire on June 23, 2010, unless extended. The expiration, cancellation, or termination of a letter of credit prior 
to the maturity of the related VRDBs will require ACE to repurchase the VRDBs.  

Credit Facility  

PHI, Potomac Electric Power Company (Pepco), Delmarva Power & Light Company (DPL) and ACE maintain an unsecured credit facility to 
provide for their respective short-term liquidity needs. The aggregate borrowing limit under this credit facility is $1.5 billion, all or any portion 
of which may be used to obtain loans or to issue letters of credit. PHI’s credit limit under the facility is $875 million. The credit limit of each of 
Pepco, DPL and ACE is the lesser of $500 million and the maximum amount of debt the company is permitted to have outstanding by its 
regulatory authorities, except that the aggregate amount of credit used by Pepco, DPL and ACE at any given time collectively may not exceed 
$625 million. The interest rate payable by each company on utilized funds is, at the borrowing company’s election, (i) the greater of the 
prevailing prime rate and the federal funds effective rate plus 0.5% or (ii) the prevailing Eurodollar rate, plus a margin that varies according to 
the credit rating of the borrower. The facility also includes a “swingline loan sub-facility” pursuant to which each company may make same day 
borrowings in an aggregate amount not to exceed $150 million. Any swingline loan must be repaid by the borrower within seven days of receipt 
thereof.  

The facility commitment expiration date is May 5, 2012, with each company having the right to elect to have 100% of the principal balance of 
the loans outstanding on the expiration date continued as non-revolving term loans for a period of one year from such expiration date.  

The facility is intended to serve primarily as a source of liquidity to support the commercial paper programs of the respective companies. The 
companies also are permitted to use the facility to borrow funds for general corporate purposes and issue letters of credit. In order for a borrower 
to use the facility, certain representations and warranties must be true, and the borrower must be in compliance with specified covenants, 
including (i) the requirement that each borrowing company maintain a ratio of total indebtedness to total capitalization of 65% or less, computed 
in accordance with the terms of the credit agreement, which excludes from the definition of total indebtedness certain trust preferred securities 
and deferrable interest subordinated debt (not to exceed 15% of total capitalization), (ii) a restriction on sales or other dispositions of assets, 
other than certain sales and dispositions, and (iii) a restriction on the incurrence of liens on the assets of a borrower or any of its significant 
subsidiaries other than permitted liens. As of December 31, 2009, each borrower was in compliance with the covenants of the credit facility.  

The absence of a material adverse change in the borrower’s business, property, and results of operations or financial condition is not a condition 
to the availability of credit under the facility. The facility does not include any rating triggers.  
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At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the amount of cash, plus borrowing capacity under the PHI credit facilities available to meet the liquidity needs 
of PHI’s utility subsidiaries was $582 million and $843 million, respectively.  

(11) INCOME TAXES  

ACE, as an indirect subsidiary of PHI, is included in the consolidated federal income tax return of PHI. Federal income taxes are allocated to 
ACE pursuant to a written tax sharing agreement that was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the 
establishment of PHI as a holding company. Under this tax sharing agreement, PHI’s consolidated federal income tax liability is allocated based 
upon PHI’s and its subsidiaries’ separate taxable income or loss.  

The provision for consolidated income taxes, reconciliation of consolidated income tax rate, and components of consolidated deferred income 
tax liabilities (assets) are shown below.  

Provision for Consolidated Income Taxes  
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     For the Year Ended December 31,   
     2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

Current Tax (Benefit) Expense         

Federal     $ (32 )    $ (98 )    $ 57   
State and local       (3 )      (37 )      15   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total Current Tax (Benefit) Expense       (35 )      (135 )      72   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Deferred Tax Expense (Benefit)         

Federal       42       121       (27 )  
State and local       11       45       (4 )  
Investment tax credit amortization       (1 )      (1 )      —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total Deferred Tax Expense (Benefit)       52       165       (31 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  

Total Consolidated Income Tax Expense     $ 17     $ 30     $ 41   
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Reconciliation of Consolidated Income Tax Rate  
   

During the first quarter of 2009, the New Jersey Department of Treasury denied ACE’s 2001-2003 amended returns requesting additional state 
only amortization of tax basis in those years. As a result, ACE recorded a $1.8 million charge to tax expense. The Company appealed the 
decision, and in December 2009 learned that New Jersey would in fact accept those returns. As a result, the $1.8 million charge recorded in the 
first quarter of 2009 was reversed.  

In March 2009, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) issued a Revenue Agent’s Report (RAR) for the audit of PHI’s consolidated federal income 
tax returns for the calendar years 2003 to 2005. The IRS has proposed adjustments to PHI’s tax returns, including adjustments to ACE’s 
capitalization of overhead costs for tax purposes and the deductibility of certain ACE casualty losses. In conjunction with PHI, ACE has 
appealed certain of the proposed adjustments, and believes it has adequately reserved for the adjustments proposed in the RAR.  

In November 2009, ACE received a refund of prior years’ Federal income taxes of $9 million. The refund results from the carry back of PHI’s 
2008 net operating loss for tax reporting purposes that reflected, among other things, significant tax deductions related to accelerated 
depreciation, the pension plan contributions paid in 2009 (which were deducted in 2008) and the cumulative effect of adopting a new method of 
tax reporting for certain repairs.  

During 2008, ACE completed an analysis of its current and deferred income tax accounts and, as a result, recorded a $7 million charge to income 
tax expense in 2008, which is included in Deferred tax adjustments in the reconciliation provided above. Also identified as part of the analysis 
were new uncertain tax positions for ACE under ASC 740 (primarily representing overpayments of income taxes in previously filed tax returns) 
that resulted in the recording of after-tax net interest income of $4 million, which is included as a reduction of income tax expense.  

In addition, during 2008, ACE recorded additional after-tax net interest income of $10 million under ASC 740 primarily related to the reversal of 
previously accrued interest payable resulting from a favorable tentative settlement of the mixed service cost issue with the IRS, and a claim made 
with the IRS related to the tax reporting of fuel over- and under-recoveries.  
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     For the Year Ended December 31,   
     2009     2008     2007   
Federal statutory rate     35.0 %    35.0 %    35.0 %  

Increases (decreases) resulting from         

State income taxes, net of federal effect     7.8      7.3      6.4    
Tax credits     (1.7 )    (1.1 )    0.1    
Change in estimates and interest related to uncertain and 

effectively settled tax positions     (9.1 )    (14.1 )    1.0    
Deferred tax adjustments     0.2      7.4      (0.5 )  
Adjustment to prior years’  taxes     (2.1 )    (2.0 )    0.1    
Other, net     (0.8 )    (0.6 )    (1.5 )  

     
  

    
  

    
  

Consolidated Effective Income Tax Rate     29.3 %    31.9 %    40.6 %  
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Reconciliation of Beginning and Ending Balances of Unrecognized Tax Benefits  
   

Unrecognized Benefits That, If Recognized, Would Affect the Effective Tax Rate  

Unrecognized tax benefits represent those tax benefits related to tax positions that have been taken or are expected to be taken in tax returns that 
are not recognized in the financial statements because management has either measured the tax benefit at an amount less than the benefit 
claimed, or expected to be claimed, or has concluded that it is not more likely than not that the tax position will be ultimately sustained. For the 
majority of these tax positions, the ultimate deductibility is highly certain, but there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. 
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2009, included $2 million that, if recognized, would lower the effective tax rate.  

Interest and Penalties  

ACE recognizes interest and penalties relating to its uncertain tax positions as an element of income tax expense. For the years ended 
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, ACE recognized $9 million of interest income pre-tax ($6 million after-tax), $24 million of interest income 
pre-tax ($14 million after-tax), and $2 million of interest income pre-tax ($1 million after-tax), respectively, as a component of income tax 
expense. As of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, ACE had $18 million of accrued interest receivable, $13 million of accrued interest 
receivable and $1 million of accrued interest payable, respectively, related to effectively settled and uncertain tax positions.  

Possible Changes to Unrecognized Tax Benefits  

It is reasonably possible that the amount of the unrecognized tax benefit with respect to certain of ACE’s unrecognized tax positions will 
significantly increase or decrease within the next 12 months. The final settlement of the mixed service cost issue or other federal or state audits 
could impact the balances significantly. At this time, other than the mixed service cost issue, an estimate of the range of reasonably possible 
outcomes cannot be determined. The unrecognized benefit related to the mixed service cost issue could decrease by $13 million within the next 
12 months upon final resolution of the tentative settlement with the IRS. See Note (14), “Commitments and Contingencies,” herein for additional 
information.  

Tax Years Open to Examination  

ACE’s federal income tax liabilities for all years through 1999 have been determined, subject to adjustment to the extent of any net operating 
loss or other loss or credit carrybacks from subsequent years. The open tax years for the significant states where PHI files state income tax 
returns (New Jersey and Pennsylvania) are the same as for the federal returns.  
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     2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

Beginning balance as of January 1,     $ 49     $ 152      $ 28    
Tax positions related to current year:         

Additions       1       1       34    
Tax positions related to prior years:         

Additions       10       40       94    
Reductions       (21 )      (144 )      (4 )  

Settlements       —          —          —      
       

  
      

  
      

  

Ending balance as of December 31,     $ 39     $ 49     $ 152    
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Components of Consolidated Deferred Income Tax Liabilities (Assets)  
   

The net deferred tax liability represents the tax effect, at presently enacted tax rates, of temporary differences between the financial statement 
basis and tax basis of assets and liabilities. The portion of the net deferred tax liability applicable to ACE’s operations, which has not been 
reflected in current service rates, represents income taxes recoverable through future rates, net, and is recorded as a regulatory asset on the 
balance sheet. No valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was required or recorded at December 31, 2009 and 2008.  

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 repealed the investment tax credit (ITC) for property placed in service after December 31, 1985, except for certain 
transition property. ITC previously earned on ACE’s property continues to be amortized to income over the useful lives of the related property.  

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes  

Taxes other than income taxes for each year are shown below. These amounts are recoverable through rates.  
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     As of December 31,   
     2009    2008   
     (millions of dollars)   

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Assets)        

Depreciation and other basis differences related to plant and equipment     $ 321    $ 255   
Deferred taxes on amounts to be collected through future rates       12      10   
Payment for termination of purchased power contracts with NUGs       64      68   
Electric restructuring liabilities       180      198   
Fuel and purchased energy       7      4   
Other       13      (1 )  

              
  

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities, net       597      534   
Deferred tax assets included in Other Current Assets       7      15   

              
  

Total Consolidated Deferred Tax Liabilities, net - non-current     $ 604    $ 549   
              

  

     2009     2008    2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

Gross Receipts/Delivery     $ 20     $ 21    $ 20   
Property       2       2      3   
Environmental, Use and Other       (1 )     1      (1 ) 

       
  

             
  

Total     $ 21     $ 24    $ 22   
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(12) PREFERRED STOCK  

The preferred stock amounts outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:  
   

Under the terms of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, ACE has authority to issue up to 799,979 shares of its $100 par value Cumulative 
Preferred Stock. The shares of each of the series are redeemable solely at the option of the issuer. In addition, ACE has authority to issue up to 
two million shares of No Par Preferred Stock and three million shares of Preference Stock without par value.  

(13) FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES  

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Excluding Debt  

Effective January 1, 2008, ACE adopted FASB guidance on fair value measurement and disclosures (ASC 820) which established a framework 
for measuring fair value and expanded disclosures about fair value measurements.  

As defined in the guidance, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). ACE utilizes market data or assumptions that market participants would use in 
pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be 
readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Accordingly, ACE utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. ACE is able to classify fair value balances based on the observability of those 
inputs. The guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest 
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to 
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurement). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:  

Level 1 – Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. Active markets are those in 
which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.  

Level 2 – Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in level 1, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of 
the reporting date. Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using broker quotes in liquid markets, and other observable 
pricing data. Level 2 also includes those financial instruments that are valued using internally developed methodologies that have been 
corroborated by observable market data through correlation or by other means. Significant assumptions are observable in the marketplace 
throughout the full term of the instrument, can be derived from observable data or are supported by observable levels at which transactions are 
executed in the marketplace.  
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Redemption 

 
Price 

   
Shares  

Outstanding    December 31, 
        2009    2008    2009    2008 
                    (millions of dollars) 
4.0% Series of 1944, $100 per share par value     $ 105.50    24,268    24,268    $ 2    $ 2 
4.35% Series of 1949, $100 per share par value     $ 101.00    2,942    2,942      —        —   
4.35% Series of 1953, $100 per share par value     $ 101.00    1,680    1,680      —        —   
4.10% Series of 1954, $100 per share par value     $ 101.00    20,504    20,504      2      2 
4.75% Series of 1958, $100 per share par value     $ 101.00    8,631    8,631      1      1 
5.0% Series of 1960, $100 per share par value     $ 100.00    4,120    4,120      1      1 

                           

Total Preferred Stock        62,145    62,145    $ 6    $ 6 
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Level 3 – Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less observable than those from objective sources. Level 3 includes those 
financial investments that are valued using models or other valuation methodologies.  

The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy ACE’s financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value 
on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. As required by the guidance, financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety 
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. ACE’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to 
the fair value measurement requires the exercise of judgment, and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their placement 
within the fair value hierarchy levels.  
   

Fair Value of Debt Instruments  

The estimated fair values of ACE’s non-derivative financial instruments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are shown below:  
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     Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2009 

Description    Total    

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets  

for Identical  
Instruments  

(Level 1)    

Significant 
Other  

Observable 
Inputs  

(Level 2)    

Significant  
Unobservable 

Inputs  
(Level 3) 

     (millions of dollars) 
ASSETS              

Cash equivalents     $ 17    $ 17    $ —      $ —   
                            

   $ 17    $ 17    $ —      $ —   
                            

LIABILITIES              

Executive deferred compensation plan liabilities     $ 1    $ —      $ 1    $ —   
                            

   $ 1    $ —      $ 1    $ —   
                            

     Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2008 

Description    Total    

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets  

for Identical  
Instruments  

(Level 1)    

Significant 
Other  

Observable 
Inputs  

(Level 2)    

Significant  
Unobservable 

Inputs  
(Level 3) 

     (millions of dollars) 
ASSETS              

Cash equivalents     $ 75    $ 75    $ —      $ —   
Executive deferred compensation plan assets       1      1      —        —   

                            

   $ 76    $ 76    $ —      $ —   
                            

LIABILITIES              

Executive deferred compensation plan liabilities     $ 1    $ —      $ 1    $ —   
                            

   $ 1    $ —      $ 1    $ —   
                            

     December 31, 2009    December 31, 2008 
     (millions of dollars) 

     

Carrying 
 

Amount    
Fair  

Value    

Carrying 
 

Amount    
Fair  

Value 

Long-Term Debt     $ 610    $ 674    $ 610    $ 638 
Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding       402      427      433      431 
Redeemable Serial Preferred Stock       6      4      6      4 
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The methods and assumptions below were used to estimate, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the fair value of each class of financial 
instruments shown above for which it is practicable to estimate a value.  

The fair value of Long-Term Debt issued by PHI and its utility subsidiaries was based on actual trade prices as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
or bid prices obtained from brokers if actual trade prices were not available. The fair values of Transition Bonds issued by ACE Funding, 
including amounts due within one year, were derived based on bid prices obtained from brokers if actual trade prices were not available or were 
based on discounted cash flows using current rates for similar issues with similar credit ratings, terms, and remaining maturities for issues with 
no market price available.  

The fair value of the Redeemable Serial Preferred Stock, excluding amounts due within one year, were derived based on quoted market prices or 
discounted cash flows using current rates of preferred stock with similar terms.  

(14) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

Regulatory and Other Matters  

Rate Proceedings  

On August 14, 2009, ACE submitted a petition to the NJBPU to increase its electric distribution base rates, including a request for the 
implementation of a bill stabilization adjustment mechanism (BSA). Based on a test year ending December 31, 2009, adjusted for known and 
measurable changes, ACE requested an annual net increase in its current retail distribution rates for electric service in the amount of 
approximately $54 million (which includes a reduction to its Regulatory Asset Recovery Charge) based on a requested return on equity (ROE) of 
11.50% (or an increase of approximately $52 million, based on an ROE of 11.25%, if the BSA is approved). Hearings are scheduled for late May 
and June 2010.  

Under the BSA, customer delivery rates are subject to adjustment (through a credit or surcharge mechanism), depending on whether actual 
distribution revenue per customer exceeds or falls short of the revenue-per-customer amount approved by the NJBPU. The BSA increases rates if 
actual distribution revenues fall below the approved level and decreases rates if actual distribution revenues are above the approved level. The 
result is that, over time, ACE would collect its authorized revenues for distribution deliveries. As a consequence, a BSA “decouples” distribution 
revenue from unit sales consumption and ties the growth in distribution revenues to the growth in the number of customers. Some advantages of 
the BSA are that it (i) eliminates revenue fluctuations due to weather and changes in customer usage patterns and, therefore, provides for more 
predictable distribution revenues that are better aligned with costs, (ii) provides for more reliable fixed-cost recovery, (iii) tends to stabilize 
customers’ delivery bills, and (iv) removes any disincentives for ACE to promote energy efficiency programs for its customers, because it breaks 
the link between overall sales volumes and distribution revenues.  

Sale of B.L. England Generating Facility  

In February 2007, ACE completed the sale of the B.L. England generating facility to RC Cape May Holdings, LLC (RC Cape May), an affiliate 
of Rockland Capital Energy Investments, LLC. In July 2007, ACE received a claim for indemnification from RC Cape May under the purchase 
agreement in the amount of $25 million. RC Cape May contends that one of the assets it purchased, a contract for terminal services (TSA) 
between ACE and Citgo Asphalt Refining Co. (Citgo), has been declared by Citgo to have been terminated due to a failure by ACE to renew the 
contract in a timely manner. The claim for indemnification seeks payment from ACE in the event the TSA is held not to be enforceable against 
Citgo.  

RC Cape May commenced an arbitration proceeding against Citgo seeking a determination that the TSA remains in effect and notified ACE of 
the proceedings. On July 1, 2009, the arbitrator issued its interim award, ruling that the TSA remains in effect and is enforceable by RC Cape 
May against Citgo. ACE believes this ruling invalidates RC Cape May’s indemnification claim against ACE, but cannot predict whether RC 
Cape May will continue to pursue indemnification.  
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Environmental Litigation  

ACE is subject to regulation by various federal, regional, state, and local authorities with respect to the environmental effects of its operations, 
including air and water quality control, solid and hazardous waste disposal, and limitations on land use. In addition, federal and state statutes 
authorize governmental agencies to compel responsible parties to clean up certain abandoned or unremediated hazardous waste sites. ACE may 
incur costs to clean up currently or formerly owned facilities or sites found to be contaminated, as well as other facilities or sites that may have 
been contaminated due to past disposal practices. Although penalties assessed for violations of environmental laws and regulations are not 
recoverable from ACE’s customers, environmental clean-up costs incurred by ACE would be included in its cost of service for ratemaking 
purposes.  

Delilah Road Landfill Site . In 1991, the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) identified ACE as a potentially 
responsible party (PRP) at the Delilah Road Landfill site in Egg Harbor Township, New Jersey. In 1993, ACE, along with two other PRPs, 
signed an administrative consent order with NJDEP to remediate the site. The soil cap remedy for the site has been implemented, and in 
August 2006, NJDEP issued a No Further Action Letter (NFA) and Covenant Not to Sue for the site. Among other things, the NFA requires the 
PRPs to monitor the effectiveness of institutional (deed restriction) and engineering (cap) controls at the site every two years. In 
September 2007, NJDEP approved the PRP group’s petition to conduct semi-annual, rather than quarterly, ground water monitoring for two 
years and deferred until the end of the two-year period a decision on the PRP group’s request for annual groundwater monitoring thereafter. In 
August 2007, the PRP group agreed to reimburse the costs of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in the amount of $81,400 in full 
satisfaction of EPA’s claims for all past and future response costs relating to the site (of which ACE’s share is one-third). Effective April 2008, 
EPA and the PRP group entered into a settlement agreement which will allow EPA to reopen the settlement in the event of new information or 
unknown conditions at the site. On November 23, 2008, Lenox, Inc., a member of the PRP group, filed a bankruptcy petition under Chapter 11 
of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. ACE has filed a proof of claim in the Lenox bankruptcy seeking damages resulting from the rejection by Lenox, 
Inc., of its cost sharing obligations to ACE. ACE believes that its liability for post-remedy operation and maintenance costs will not have a 
material adverse effect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows, regardless of the impact of the Lenox bankruptcy. Effective 
October 13, 2009, EPA deleted the Delilah Road Landfill site from the national priorities list, after determining that all appropriate response 
actions under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA) have been completed. Based 
on information currently available, ACE anticipates that its share of additional cost associated with this site for post-remedy operation and 
maintenance will be approximately $555,000 to $600,000.  

Frontier Chemical Site . In June 2007, ACE received a letter from the New York Department of Environmental Conservation (NYDEC) 
identifying ACE as a PRP at the Frontier Chemical Waste Processing Company site in Niagara Falls, N.Y. based on hazardous waste manifests 
indicating that ACE sent in excess of 7,500 gallons of manifested hazardous waste to the site. ACE has entered into an agreement with the other 
parties identified as PRPs to form a PRP group and has informed NYDEC that it has entered into good faith negotiations with the PRP group to 
address ACE’s responsibility at the site. In February 2010, ACE accepted the PRP group’s offer of a de minimis cash-out settlement under which 
ACE paid a total of $16,000 to receive a release from liability and be relieved from any further involvement at the site.  

Franklin Slag Pile Site . On November 26, 2008, ACE received a general notice letter from EPA concerning the Franklin Slag Pile site in 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, asserting that ACE is a PRP that may have liability with respect to the site. If liable, ACE would be responsible for 
reimbursing EPA for clean-up costs incurred and to be incurred by the agency and for the costs of implementing an EPA-mandated remedy. The 
EPA’s claims are based on ACE’s sale of boiler slag from the B.L. England generating facility to MDC Industries, Inc. (MDC) during the period 
June 1978 to May 1983 (ACE owned B.L. England at that time and MDC  
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formerly operated the Franklin Slag Pile site). EPA further claims that the boiler slag ACE sold to MDC contained copper and lead, which are 
hazardous substances under CERCLA, and that the sales transactions may have constituted an arrangement for the disposal or treatment of 
hazardous substances at the site, which could be a basis for liability under CERCLA. The EPA’s letter also states that as of the date of the letter, 
EPA’s expenditures for response measures at the site exceed $6 million. EPA estimates approximately $6 million as the cost for future response 
measures it recommends. ACE understands that the EPA sent similar general notice letters to three other companies and various individuals.  

ACE believes that the B.L. England boiler slag sold to MDC was a valuable material with various industrial applications, and therefore, the sale 
was not an arrangement for the disposal or treatment of any hazardous substances as would be necessary to constitute a basis for liability under 
CERCLA. ACE intends to contest any claims to the contrary made by the EPA. In a May 2009 decision arising under CERCLA, which did not 
involve ACE, the U.S. Supreme Court rejected an EPA argument that the sale of a useful product constituted an arrangement for disposal or 
treatment of hazardous substances. While this decision supports ACE’s position, at this time ACE cannot predict how EPA will proceed with 
respect to the Franklin Slag Pile site, or what portion, if any, of the Franklin Slag Pile site response costs EPA would seek to recover from ACE.  

Ward Transformer Site . In April 2009, a group of PRPs with respect to the Ward Transformer site in Raleigh, North Carolina, filed a complaint 
in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of North Carolina, alleging cost recovery and/or contribution claims against ACE with respect 
to past and future response costs incurred by the PRP group in performing a removal action at the site. With the court’s permission, the plaintiffs 
filed amended complaints on September 1, 2009. ACE, as part of a group of defendants, filed a motion to dismiss on October 13, 2009. Although 
it is too early in the process to characterize the magnitude of the potential liability at this site, it does not appear that ACE had extensive business 
transactions, if any, with the Ward Transformer site.  

Appeal of New Jersey Flood Hazard Regulations . In November 2007, NJDEP adopted amendments to the agency’s regulations under the Flood 
Hazard Area Control Act (FHACA) to minimize damage to life and property from flooding caused by development in flood plains. The amended 
regulations impose a new regulatory program to mitigate flooding and related environmental impacts from a broad range of construction and 
development activities, including electric utility transmission and distribution construction that was previously unregulated under the FHACA. 
These regulations impose restrictions on construction of new electric transmission and distribution facilities and increase the time and personnel 
resources required to obtain permits and conduct maintenance activities. In November 2008, ACE filed an appeal of these regulations with the 
Appellate Division of the Superior Court of New Jersey. The grounds for ACE’s appeal include the lack of administrative record justification for 
the FHACA regulations and conflict between the FHACA regulations and other state and federal regulations and standards for maintenance of 
electric power transmission and distribution facilities. The case is currently in the briefing process before the appellate court.  

IRS Mixed Service Cost Issue  

During 2001, ACE changed its method of accounting with respect to capitalizable construction costs for income tax purposes. The change 
allowed the company to accelerate the deduction of certain expenses that were previously capitalized and depreciated. As a result of this method 
change, ACE generated incremental tax cash flow benefits of approximately $49 million.  

In 2005, the IRS issued Revenue Ruling 2005-53, which limited the ability of ACE to utilize its tax accounting method on its 2001 through 2004 
tax returns. In accordance with this Revenue Ruling, the RAR for the 2001 and 2002 tax returns disallowed substantially all of the incremental 
tax benefits that ACE had claimed on those returns.  

In March 2009, PHI reached a tentative settlement with the IRS for all years (2001 through 2004). The terms of the settlement reduced the tax 
benefits related to the mixed service costs deductions by $6 million for ACE.  

Contractual Obligations  

As of December 31, 2009, ACE’s contractual obligations under non-derivative fuel and power purchase contracts were $273 million in 2010, 
$455 million in 2011 to 2012, $467 million in 2013 to 2014, and $1,961 million in 2015 and thereafter.  

(15) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

PHI Service Company provides various administrative and professional services to PHI and its regulated and unregulated subsidiaries including 
ACE. The cost of these services is allocated in accordance with cost allocation methodologies set forth in the service agreement using a variety 
of factors, including the subsidiaries’ share of employees, operating expenses, assets, and other cost causal methods. These intercompany 
transactions are eliminated by PHI in consolidation and no profit results from these transactions at PHI. PHI Service Company costs directly 
charged or allocated to ACE for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $100 million, $94 million and $87 million, 
respectively.  
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In addition to the PHI Service Company charges described above, ACE’s financial statements include the following related party transactions in 
its consolidated statements of income:  
   

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, ACE had the following balances due (to) from related parties:  
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     For the Year Ended December 31,   
     2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

(Expense) Income     

Purchased power under Default Electricity supply contracts with Conectiv Energy 
Supply, Inc. (a)     $ (185 )    $ (171 )    $ (99 )  

Meter reading services provided by Millennium Account Services LLC (b)       (4 )      (4 )      (4 )  
Intercompany use revenue (c)       6       3       2   
Intercompany use expense (c)       (2 )      (2 )      (2 )  
  

  (a) Included in purchased energy expense. 
  (b) Included in other operation and maintenance expense. 
  (c) Included in operating revenue. 

     2009     2008   
     (millions of dollars)   

Asset (Liability)     

Payable to Related Party (current)       

PHI Service Company     $ (38 )   $ (11 )  
PHI Parent Company       (3 )     —      
Conectiv Energy Supply, Inc.       (15 )     (16 )  

The items listed above are included in the “Accounts payable due to associated 
companies” balance on the consolidated balance sheets of $58 million and $28 
million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.       
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(16) QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)  

The quarterly data presented below reflect all adjustments necessary in the opinion of management for a fair presentation of the interim results. 
Quarterly data normally vary seasonally because of temperature variations and differences between summer and winter rates. Therefore, 
comparisons by quarter within a year are not meaningful.  
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     2009   

     
First  

Quarter     
Second 
Quarter     

Third  
Quarter     

Fourth 
Quarter     Total   

     (millions of dollars)   

Total Operating Revenue     $ 344     $ 287     $ 441     $ 279     $ 1,351   
Total Operating Expenses       328       258       387       255       1,228   
Operating Income       16       29       54       24       123   
Other Expenses       (16 )     (17 )     (16 )     (16 )     (65 ) 
Income Before Income Tax Expense       —          12       38       8       58   
Income Tax (Benefit) Expense       (2 )     4       15       —   (a)      17   
Net Income     $ 2     $ 8     $ 23     $ 8     $ 41   

     2008   

     
First  

Quarter     
Second 
Quarter     

Third  
Quarter     

Fourth 
Quarter     Total   

     (millions of dollars)   

Total Operating Revenue     $ 361     $ 387     $ 540     $ 345     $ 1,633   
Total Operating Expenses       346       330       494  (d)      310       1,480   
Operating Income       15       57       46       35       153   
Other Expenses       (13 )      (14 )      (13 )      (19 )      (59 )  
Income Before Income Tax Expense       2       43       33       16       94   
Income Tax (Benefit) Expense       (3 )(b)      16 (c)      13       4 (e)      30   
Net Income     $ 5     $ 27     $ 20     $ 12     $ 64   
  
(a) Includes a $2 million benefit related to the resolution of an uncertain state income tax position. 
(b) Includes $4 million of after-tax net interest income on uncertain tax positions primarily related to casualty losses. 
(c) Includes $2 million of after-tax interest income related to the tentative settlement of the IRS mixed service cost issue. 
(d) Includes a $1 million charge related to an adjustment in the accounting for certain restricted stock awards granted under the Long-Term 

Incentive Plan (LTIP). 
(e) Includes $8 million of after-tax net interest income on uncertain and effectively settled tax positions (primarily associated with a claim 

made with the IRS related to the tax reporting for fuel over- and under-recoveries, certain newly identified overpayments of income taxes 
in previously filed tax returns and the reversal of the majority of the interest income recognized on uncertain tax positions related to 
casualty losses in the first quarter), and a charge of $7 million to correct prior period errors related to additional analysis of deferred tax 
balances completed in 2008. 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 2 of 2 
Page 2272 of 7002



Table of Contents  

Pepco Holdings, Inc.  

None.  

Potomac Electric Power Company  

None.  

Delmarva Power & Light Company  

None.  

Atlantic City Electric Company  

None.  

   

Pepco Holdings, Inc.  

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

Under the supervision, and with the participation of management, including the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer, Pepco 
Holdings has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2009, and, 
based upon this evaluation, the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of Pepco Holdings have concluded that these controls and 
procedures are effective to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to Pepco Holdings and its subsidiaries that is required 
to be disclosed in reports filed with, or submitted to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as amended (the Exchange Act) (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC rules and 
forms and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to management, including its chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate 
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

See “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting” in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm  

See “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  
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Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, there was no change in Pepco Holdings’ internal control over financial reporting that has 
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Pepco Holdings’ internal controls over financial reporting.  

Potomac Electric Power Company  

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

Under the supervision, and with the participation of management, including the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer, Pepco has 
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2009, and, based upon this 
evaluation, the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of Pepco have concluded that these controls and procedures are effective to 
provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to Pepco that is required to be disclosed in reports filed with, or submitted to, the 
SEC under the Exchange Act (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC rules and forms 
and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to management, including its chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to 
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

See “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting” in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm  

See “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, there was no change in Pepco’s internal control over financial reporting that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Pepco’s internal controls over financial reporting.  

Delmarva Power & Light Company  

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

Under the supervision, and with the participation of management, including the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer, DPL has 
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2009, and, based upon this 
evaluation, the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of DPL have concluded that these controls and procedures are effective to 
provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to DPL that is required to be disclosed in reports filed with, or submitted to, the 
SEC under the Exchange Act (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC rules and forms 
and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to management, including its chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to 
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

See “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting” in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm  

See “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, there was no change in DPL’s internal control over financial reporting that has materially affected, 
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, DPL’s internal controls over financial reporting.  

Atlantic City Electric Company  

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

Under the supervision, and with the participation of management, including the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer, ACE has 
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2009, and, based upon this 
evaluation, the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of ACE have concluded that these controls and procedures are effective to 
provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to ACE and its subsidiaries that is required to be disclosed in reports filed with, 
or submitted to, the SEC under the Exchange Act (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the 
SEC rules and forms and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to management, including its chief executive officer and chief financial officer, 
as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

See “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting” in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm  

See “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, there was no change in ACE’s internal control over financial reporting that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, ACE’s internal controls over financial reporting.  
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Pepco Holdings, Inc.  

None.  

Potomac Electric Power Company  

None.  

Delmarva Power & Light Company  

None.  

Atlantic City Electric Company  

None.  
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Part III  
   

Pepco Holdings, Inc.  

The following information to be included in PHI’s definitive proxy statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting, which is expected to be filed with 
the SEC on or about April 1, 2010, is incorporated herein by reference:  
   

   

   

   

Executive Officers of PHI  

The names of the executive officers of PHI and their ages and the positions they held as of February 26, 2010, are set forth in the following table. 
The business experience of each executive during the past five years is set forth adjacent to his or her name under the heading “Office and 
Length of Service” in the following table and in the applicable footnote.  

PEPCO HOLDINGS  
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Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE 

  •   The information under the heading “Nominees for Election as Directors.”   

  
•   The information under the heading “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management — Section 16(a) Beneficial 

Ownership Reporting Compliance.”   

  
•   The information concerning PHI’s Corporate Business Policies under the heading “Where do I find the Company’s Corporate 

Business Policies, Corporate Governance Guidelines and Committee Charters?”   

  
•   The information regarding the membership and function of the Audit Committee and the financial expertise of its members under the 

heading “Board Committees — Audit Committee.”   

Name    Age    Office and Length of Service 

Joseph M. Rigby 
   

53 
   

Chairman of the Board, - 5/09 - Present,  
President - 3/08 - Present and Chief Executive Officer 3/09 - Present (1)  

David M. Velazquez 
   

50 
   

Executive Vice President  
3/09 - Present (2)  

Kirk J. Emge 
   

60 
   

Senior Vice President and General Counsel  
3/08 - Present (3)  

Anthony J. Kamerick 
   

62 
   

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  
6/09 - Present (4)  

Beverly L. Perry 
   

62 
   

Senior Vice President  
10/02 - Present  

Ronald K. Clark 
   

54 
   

Vice President and Controller  
8/05 - Present (5)  

Paul W. Friel 
   

61 
   

Vice President and General Auditor  
5/05 - Present (6)  

Ernest L. Jenkins 
   

55 
   

Vice President  
5/05 - Present (7)  
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Gary J. Morsches  
   

50 
   

President and Chief Executive Officer, Conectiv Energy Holding Company  
3/09 - Present (8)  

John U. Huffman  
   

50 
   

President - 6/06 - Present and Chief Executive Officer, Pepco Energy Services, Inc. - 3/09 - 
Present (9) 

  
(1) Mr. Rigby was Chief Operating Officer of PHI from September 2007 until February 28, 2009 and Executive Vice President of PHI from 

September 2007 until March 2008, Senior Vice President of PHI from August 2002 until September 2007 and Chief Financial Officer of 
PHI from May 2004 until September 2007. Mr. Rigby was President of ACE from July 2001 until May 2004 and Chief Executive Officer 
of ACE from August 2002 until May 2004. He served as President of DPL from August 2002 until May 2004. Mr. Rigby was President 
and Chief Executive Officer of ACE, DPL and Pepco from September 1, 2007 to February 28, 2009. Mr. Rigby has been Chairman of 
Pepco, DPL and ACE since March 1, 2009. 

(2) Mr. Velazquez served as President of Conectiv Energy Holding Company, an affiliate of PHI, from June 2006 to February 28, 2009, Chief 
Executive Officer of Conectiv Energy Holding Company from January 2007 to February 28, 2009 and Chief Operating Officer of Conectiv 
Energy Holding Company from June 2006 to December 2006. He served as a Vice President of PHI from February 2005 to June 2006 and 
as Chief Risk Officer of PHI from August 2005 to June 2006. From July 2001 to February 2005, he served as a Vice President of Conectiv 
Energy Supply, Inc., an affiliate of PHI. 

(3) Mr. Emge was Vice President, Legal Services of PHI from August 2002 until March 2008. Mr. Emge has served as General Counsel of 
ACE, DPL and Pepco since August 2002 and as Senior Vice President of Pepco and DPL since March 1, 2009. 

(4) Mr. Kamerick was Senior Vice President and Chief Regulatory Officer of PHI from March 2009 until June 2009. Mr. Kamerick was Vice 
President and Treasurer of PHI from August 2002 until February 28, 2009. 

(5) Mr. Clark has been employed by PHI since June 2005 and has also served as Vice President and Controller of Pepco and DPL and 
Controller of ACE since August 2005. From July 2004 until June 2005, he was Vice President, Financial Reporting and Policy for MCI, 
Inc., a telecommunications company not affiliated with PHI. 

(6) Mr. Friel was General Auditor of PHI from August 2002 until May 2005. 
(7) Mr. Jenkins was Vice President, People Strategy and Performance Improvement – PHI Power Delivery from 2004 until 2005. 
(8) Mr. Morsches was Executive Vice President of Conectiv Energy Supply, Inc. from January 2009 until February 28, 2009. Mr. Morsches 

was a Principal of the Boston Consulting Group, a management consulting firm, which is not affiliated with PHI, from June 2005 until 
January 2009 and was a self-employed consultant from January 2003 until June 2005. 

(9) Mr. Huffman has been employed by Pepco Energy Services since June 2003. He was Chief Operating Officer from April 2006 to 
February 28, 2009, Senior Vice President from February 2005 to March 2006 and Vice President from June 2003 to February 2005. 
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Each PHI executive officer is elected annually and serves until his or her respective successor has been elected and qualified or his or her earlier 
resignation or removal.  

INFORMATION FOR THIS ITEM IS NOT REQUIRED FOR PEPCO, DPL, AND ACE AS THEY MEET THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH 
IN GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS I(1)(a) AND (b) OF FORM 10-K AND THEREFORE ARE FILING THIS FORM WITH THE REDUCED 
FILING FORMAT.  

   

Pepco Holdings, Inc.  

The following information to be included in PHI’s definitive proxy statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting, which is expected to be filed with 
the SEC on or about April 1, 2010, is incorporated herein by reference:  
   

   

   

   

INFORMATION FOR THIS ITEM IS NOT REQUIRED FOR PEPCO, DPL, AND ACE AS THEY MEET THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH 
IN GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS I(1)(a) AND (b) OF FORM 10-K AND THEREFORE ARE FILING THIS FORM WITH THE REDUCED 
FILING FORMAT.  

   

Pepco Holdings, Inc.  

The information to be included under the heading “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in PHI’s definitive 
proxy statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting, which is expected to be filed with the SEC on or about April 1, 2010, is incorporated herein by 
reference.  

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2009, with respect to the shares of PHI’s common stock that may be issued under 
PHI’s existing equity compensation plans.  
   

321  

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

  •   The information under the heading “2009 Director Compensation.”   
  •   The information under the heading “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”   
  •   The information under the heading “Executive Compensation.”   
  •   The information under the heading “Compensation/Human Resources Committee Report.”   

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND  MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 
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Equity Compensation Plans Information  
   

INFORMATION FOR THIS ITEM IS NOT REQUIRED FOR PEPCO, DPL, AND ACE AS THEY MEET THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH 
IN GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS I(1)(a) AND (b) OF FORM 10-K AND THEREFORE ARE FILING THIS FORM WITH THE REDUCED 
FILING FORMAT.  
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Plan Category    

Number of  
Securities to 

be Issued  
Upon  

Exercise of  
Outstanding 

Options     

Weighted-Average 
Exercise Price of  

Outstanding  
Options     

Number of  
Securities  
Remaining  

Available for  
Future  

Issuance  
Under Equity  
Compensation 

Plans  
(Excluding  

Outstanding  
Options)   

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by 
Shareholders (a)     (b )    (b )    8,200,021    

Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by 
Shareholders     —        —        482,832  (c)  

     
  

    
  

    
  

Total     —        —        8,682,853    
     

  

    

  

    

  

  
(a) Consists solely of the Pepco Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan. 
(b) In connection with the acquisition by Pepco of Conectiv (i) outstanding options granted under the Potomac Electric Power Company Long-

Term Incentive Plan were converted into options to purchase shares of PHI common stock and (ii) options granted under the Conectiv 
Incentive Compensation Plan were converted into options to purchase shares of PHI common stock. As of December 31, 2009, options to 
purchase an aggregate of 346,504 shares of PHI common stock, having a weighted average exercise price of $22.0875, were outstanding. 

(c) Consists of shares of PHI common stock available for future issuance under the PHI Non-Management Directors Compensation Plan. 
Under this plan, each director who is not an employee of PHI or any of its subsidiaries (“non-management director”) is entitled to elect to 
receive his or her annual retainer, retainer for service as a committee chairman, if any, and meeting fees in: (i) cash, (ii) shares of PHI’s 
common stock, (iii) a credit to an account for the director established under PHI’s Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan or 
(iv) any combination thereof. The plan expires on December 31, 2014 unless terminated earlier by the Board of Directors. 
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Pepco Holdings, Inc.  

The information to be included under the heading “Board Review of Transactions With Related Parties” in PHI’s definitive proxy statement for 
the 2010 Annual Meeting, which is expected to be filed with the SEC on or about April 1, 2010, is incorporated herein by reference.  

INFORMATION FOR THIS ITEM IS NOT REQUIRED FOR PEPCO, DPL AND ACE AS THEY MEET THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH 
IN GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS I(1)(a) AND (b) OF FORM 10-K AND THEREFORE ARE FILING THIS FORM WITH THE REDUCED 
FILING FORMAT.  

   

Pepco Holdings, Pepco, DPL and ACE  

Audit Fees  

The aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for professional services rendered for the audit of the annual financial statements of 
Pepco Holdings and its subsidiary reporting companies for the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years, reviews of the financial statements included in the 
2009 and 2008 Forms 10-Q of Pepco Holdings and its subsidiary reporting companies, reviews of public filings, comfort letters and other attest 
services were $6,145,416 and $7,965,978, respectively. The amount for 2008 includes $184,984 for the 2008 audit that was billed after the 2008 
amount was disclosed in Pepco Holding’s proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting.  

Audit-Related Fees  

No fees were billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for audit-related services for the 2009 or 2008 fiscal years.  

Tax Fees  

The aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for tax services rendered for the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years were $504,814 and 
$284,678 respectively. These services consisted of tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.  

All Other Fees  

The aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for all other services other than those covered under “Audit Fees,” “Audit-Related 
Fees” and “Tax Fees” for the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years were $3,000 and $4,500, respectively, which represented the costs of training and 
technical materials provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.  

All of the services described in “Audit Fees,” “Audit-Related Fees,” “Tax Fees” and “All Other Fees” were approved in advance by the Audit 
Committee, in accordance with the Audit Committee Policy on the Approval of Services Provided by the Independent Auditor which will be 
attached as Annex A to Pepco Holdings’ definitive proxy statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which is expected to be filed 
with the SEC on or about April 1, 2010, and is incorporated herein by reference.  
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Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND  DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 
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Part IV  
   

(a) Documents List  

1. Financial Statements  

Pepco Holdings, Inc.  

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008  

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Consolidated Statements of Equity for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

Potomac Electric Power Company  

Statements of Income for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008  

Statements of Cash Flows for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Statements of Equity for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Notes to Financial Statements  

Delmarva Power & Light Company  

Statements of Income for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008  

Statements of Cash Flows for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Statements of Equity for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Notes to Financial Statements  

Atlantic City Electric Company  

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008  

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Consolidated Statements of Equity for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  
   

324  

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 
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2. Financial Statement Schedules  

The financial statement schedules specified by Regulation S-X, other than those listed below, are omitted because either they are not applicable 
or the required information is presented in the financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of 
this Form 10-K.  
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     Registrants 

Item    
Pepco  

Holdings    Pepco    DPL    ACE 

Schedule I, Condensed Financial Information of Parent Company     326    N/A    N/A    N/A 
Schedule II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts     330    330    331    331 
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Schedule I, Condensed Financial Information of Parent Company is submitted below.  

PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. (Parent Company)  
STATEMENTS OF INCOME  

   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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For the Year Ended  

December 31,   
     2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars, except share data)   

OPERATING REVENUE     $ —        $ —        $ —      
       

  
      

  
      

  

OPERATING EXPENSES         

Other operation and maintenance       5       5       3   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Total operating expenses       5       5       3   
       

  
      

  
      

  

OPERATING LOSS       (5 )      (5 )      (3 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)         

Interest and dividend income       —          2       1   
Interest expense       (87 )      (90 )      (91 )  
Income from equity investments       290       356       390   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Total other income       203       268       300   

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES       198       263       297   
INCOME TAX BENEFIT       (37 )      (37 )      (37 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

NET INCOME     $ 235     $ 300     $ 334   
       

  

      

  

      

  

EARNINGS PER SHARE         

Basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock     $ 1.06     $ 1.47     $ 1.72   
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PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. (Parent Company)  
BALANCE SHEETS  

   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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     As of December 31,   
     2009     2008   
     (millions of dollars, except share data)   

ASSETS      

Current Assets       

Cash and cash equivalents     $ 585     $ 556   
Prepayment of income taxes       8       4   
Accounts receivable and other       33       16   

       
  

      
  

     626       576   
       

  
      

  

Investments and Other Assets       

Goodwill       1,137        1,137    
Notes receivable from subsidiary companies       472        628    
Investment in consolidated companies       4,487        4,016    
Other       16        19    

       
  

      
  

     6,112        5,800    
       

  
      

  

Total Assets     $ 6,738      $ 6,376    
       

  

      

  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY      

Current Liabilities       

Short-term debt     $ 324      $ 50    
Current portion of long-term debt       450        —      
Accounts payable       —          4    
Interest and taxes accrued       60        34    

       
  

      
  

     834        88    
       

  
      

  

Deferred Credits       

Liabilities and accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions       —          1    
       

  
      

  

Long-Term Debt       1,648        2,097    
       

  
      

  

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 4)       

Equity       

Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 400,000,000 shares; 222,269,895 and 218,906,220 
shares outstanding, respectively       2       2   

Premium on stock and other capital contributions       3,227       3,179   
Accumulated other comprehensive loss       (241 )      (262 )  
Retained earnings       1,268       1,271   

       
  

      
  

Total equity       4,256       4,190   
       

  
      

  

Total Capitalization and Liabilities     $ 6,738     $ 6,376   
       

  

      

  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 2 of 2 
Page 2285 of 7002



Table of Contents  

PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC. (Parent Company)  
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

   

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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For the Year Ended  

December 31,   
     2009     2008     2007   
     (millions of dollars)   

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES         

Net income     $ 235     $ 300     $ 334   
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:         

Distributions from related parties less than earnings       (198 )      (170 )      (215 )  
Deferred income taxes       —          2       2   

Changes in:         

Prepaid and other       (24 )      (10 )      —      
Accounts payable       (4 )      16       10   
Interest and taxes       19       (5 )      (5 )  

Other assets and liabilities       16       (2 )      2   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net Cash From Operating Activities       44       131       128   
       

  
      

  
      

  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES         

Investment in property, plant and equipment       —          —          —      
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities       —          —          —      
       

  
      

  
      

  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES         

Dividends paid on common stock       (238 )      (222 )      (203 )  
Common stock issued for the Dividend Reinvestment Plan       31       29       28   
Issuance of common stock       18       287       200   
Issuance of long-term debt       —          —          450   
Capital distribution to subsidiaries       (255 )      (175 )      —      
Reacquisition of long-term debt       —          —          (500 )  
Decrease in notes receivable from associated companies       156       79       227   
Issuances (repayments) of short-term debt, net       274       50       (36 )  
Costs of issuances       (1 )      (10 )      (3 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net Cash (Used By) From Financing Activities       (15 )      38       163   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents       29       169       291   
Cash and cash equivalents at Beginning of year       556       387       96   

       
  

      
  

      
  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR     $ 585     $ 556     $ 387   
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

(1) BASIS OF PRESENTATION  

Pepco Holdings, Inc. is a holding company and conducts substantially all of its business operations through its subsidiaries. These condensed 
financial statements and related footnotes have been prepared in accordance with Rule 12-04, Schedule I of Regulation S-X. These statements 
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto of Pepco Holdings, Inc. included in Part II, Item 8 of 
this Form 10-K.  

Pepco Holdings, Inc. owns 100% of all significant subsidiaries.  

(2) RECLASSIFICATIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS  

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified in order to conform to the current period presentation.  

(3) DEBT  

For information concerning PHI’s long-term debt obligations, see Note (11), “Debt” to the consolidated financial statements of Pepco Holdings 
included in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  

(4) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

For information concerning PHI’s material contingencies and guarantees, see Note (17), “Commitments and Contingencies” to the consolidated 
financial statements of Pepco Holdings included in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  

(5) INVESTMENT IN CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES  

The Parent Company’s majority owned subsidiaries are recorded using the equity method of accounting. A breakout of the balance in Investment 
in consolidated companies is as follows:  
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     2009    2008 

Conectiv     $ 2,296    $ 2,114 
Potomac Electric Power Company       1,435      1,235 
Potomac Capital Investment Corporation       472      442 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc.       278      219 
PHI Service Company       6      6 

              

Total investment in consolidated companies     $ 4,487    $ 4,016 
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Schedule II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts, for each registrant is submitted below:  

Pepco Holdings, Inc.  
   

Potomac Electric Power Company  
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Col. A    Col. B    Col. C    Col. D     Col. E 
          Additions            

Description    

Balance at 
Beginning 
of Period    

Charged to 
Costs and  
Expenses    

Charged to  
Other  

Accounts (a)    Deductions(b)     

Balance  
at End  

of Period 
     (millions of dollars) 

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Allowance for 
uncollectible accounts - customer and other accounts 
receivable     $ 37    $ 51    $ 6    $ (49 )    $ 45 

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Allowance for 
uncollectible accounts - customer and other accounts 
receivable     $ 31    $ 44    $ 6    $ (44 )    $ 37 

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Allowance for 
uncollectible accounts - customer and other accounts 
receivable     $ 36    $ 34    $ 1    $ (40 )    $ 31 

  
(a) Collection of accounts previously written off. 
(b) Uncollectible accounts written off. 

Col. A    Col. B    Col. C    Col. D     Col. E 
          Additions            

Description    

Balance at 
Beginning 
of Period    

Charged to 
Costs and  
Expenses    

Charged to  
Other  

Accounts (a)    Deductions(b)     

Balance  
at End  

of Period 
     (millions of dollars) 

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Allowance for 
uncollectible accounts - customer and other accounts 
receivable     $ 15    $ 23    $ 1    $ (22 )    $ 17 

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Allowance for 
uncollectible accounts - customer and other accounts 
receivable     $ 13    $ 18    $ 1    $ (17 )    $ 15 

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Allowance for 
uncollectible accounts - customer and other accounts 
receivable     $ 17    $ 15    $ 1    $ (20 )    $ 13 

  
(a) Collection of accounts previously written off. 
(b) Uncollectible accounts written off. 
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Delmarva Power & Light Company  
   

Atlantic City Electric Company  
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Col. A    Col. B    Col. C    Col. D     Col. E 
          Additions            

Description    

Balance at 
 

Beginning 
 

of Period    

Charged to 
 

Costs and  
Expenses    

Charged to  
Other  

Accounts (a)    Deductions(b)     

Balance 
at End  

of Period 
     (millions of dollars) 

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Allowance for uncollectible 
accounts - customer and other accounts receivable     $ 10    $ 15    $ 3    $ (16 )    $ 12 

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Allowance for uncollectible 
accounts - customer and other accounts receivable     $ 8    $ 17    $ 3    $ (18 )    $ 10 

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Allowance for uncollectible 
accounts - customer and other accounts receivable     $ 8    $ 12    $ —      $ (12 )    $ 8 

  
(a) Collection of accounts previously written off. 
(b) Uncollectible accounts written off. 

Col. A    Col. B    Col. C    Col. D     Col. E 
          Additions            

Description    

Balance at 
 

Beginning 
 

of Period    

Charged to 
 

Costs and  
Expenses    

Charged to  
Other  

Accounts (a)    Deductions(b)     

Balance 
at End  

of Period 
     (millions of dollars) 

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Allowance for uncollectible 
accounts - customer and other accounts receivable     $ 6    $ 9    $ 2    $ (10 )    $ 7 

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Allowance for uncollectible 
accounts - customer and other accounts receivable     $ 5    $ 8    $ 2    $ (9 )    $ 6 

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Allowance for uncollectible 
accounts - customer and other accounts receivable     $ 6    $ 5    $ —      $ (6 )    $ 5 

  
(a) Collection of accounts previously written off. 
(b) Uncollectible accounts written off. 
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3. EXHIBITS  

The documents listed below are being filed herewith or have previously been filed and are incorporated herein by reference from the documents 
indicated and made a part hereof.  
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Exhibit No.    Registrant(s)    Description of Exhibit    Reference 

    3.1  
   

PHI 
   

Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filed in Delaware 
6/2/2005)    

Exh. 3.1 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/13/06. 

    3.2  
   

Pepco 
   

Restated Articles of Incorporation and Articles of 
Restatement (as filed in the District of Columbia)    

Exh. 3.1 to Pepco’s Form 10-Q, 5/5/06. 

    3.3  
   

DPL 
   

Articles of Restatement of Certificate and Articles of 
Incorporation (filed in Delaware and Virginia 02/22/07)    

Exh. 3.3 to DPL’s Form 10-K, 3/1/07. 

    3.4  
   

ACE 
   

Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filed in New 
Jersey 8/09/02)    

Exh. B.8.1 to PHI’s Amendment No. 1 to Form U5B, 
2/13/03. 

    3.5     PHI    Bylaws    Exh. 3 to PHI’s Form 8-K, 5/3/07. 

    3.6     Pepco    Bylaws     Exh. 3.1 to Pepco’s Form 10-Q, 5/5/06. 

    3.7     DPL    Bylaws    Exh. 3.2.1 to DPL’s Form 10-Q 5/9/05. 

    3.8     ACE    Bylaws    Exh. 3.2.2 to ACE’s Form 10-Q 5/9/05. 

    4.1  

   

PHI  
Pepco  

   

Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated July 1, 1936, of 
Pepco to The Bank of New York Mellon as successor 
trustee, securing First Mortgage Bonds of Pepco, and 
Supplemental Indenture dated July 1, 1936    

Exh. B-4 to First Amendment, 6/19/36, to Pepco’s 
Registration Statement No. 2-2232. 

      

Supplemental Indentures, to the aforesaid Mortgage and 
Deed of Trust, dated - December 10, 1939    

Exh. B to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 1/3/40. 

      

July 15, 1942 

   

Exh. B-1 to Amendment No. 2, 8/24/42, and B-3 to 
Post-Effective Amendment, 8/31/42, to Pepco’s 
Registration Statement No. 2-5032. 
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      October 15, 1947    Exh. A to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 12/8/47. 

      December 31, 1948    Exh. A-2 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 4/13/49. 

      December 31, 1949    Exh. (a)-1 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 2/8/50. 

      February 15, 1951    Exh. (a) to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 3/9/51. 

      February 16, 1953    Exh. (a)-1 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 3/5/53. 

      

March 15, 1954 and March 15, 1955 
   

Exh. 4-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
11627, 5/2/55. 

      March 15, 1956    Exh. C to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 4/4/56. 

      

April 1, 1957 
   

Exh. 4-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
13884, 2/5/58. 

      

May 1, 1958 
   

Exh. 2-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
14518, 11/10/58. 

      

May 1, 1959 
   

Exh. 4-B to Amendment No. 1, 5/13/59, to Pepco’s 
Registration Statement No. 2-15027. 

      

May 2, 1960 
   

Exh. 2-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
17286, 11/9/60. 

      April 3, 1961    Exh. A-1 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 4/24/61. 

      

May 1, 1962 
   

Exh. 2-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
21037, 1/25/63. 

      

May 1, 1963 
   

Exh. 4-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
21961, 12/19/63. 

      

April 23, 1964 
   

Exh. 2-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
22344, 4/24/64. 
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May 3, 1965 
   

Exh. 2-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
24655, 3/16/66. 

      June 1, 1966    Exh. 1 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 4/11/67. 

      

April 28, 1967 
   

Exh. 2-B to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to 
Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-26356, 5/3/67. 

      

July 3, 1967 
   

Exh. 2-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
28080, 1/25/68. 

      

May 1, 1968 
   

Exh. 2-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
31896, 2/28/69. 

      

June 16, 1969 
   

Exh. 2-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
36094, 1/27/70. 

      

May 15, 1970 
   

Exh. 2-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
38038, 7/27/70. 

      

September 1, 1971 
   

Exh. 2-C to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 2-
45591, 9/1/72. 

      

June 17, 1981 
   

Exh. 2 to Amendment No. 1 to Pepco’s Form 8-A, 
6/18/81. 

      November 1, 1985    Exh. 2B to Pepco’s Form 8-A, 11/1/85. 

      

September 16, 1987 
   

Exh. 4-B to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 33-
18229, 10/30/87. 

      

May 1, 1989 
   

Exh. 4-C to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 33-
29382, 6/16/89. 

      May 21, 1991    Exh. 4 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 3/27/92. 

      May 7, 1992    Exh. 4 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 3/26/93. 
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      September 1, 1992    Exh. 4 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 3/26/93. 

      November 1, 1992    Exh. 4 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 3/26/93. 

      

July 1, 1993 
   

Exh. 4.4 to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 33-
49973, 8/11/93. 

      February 10, 1994    Exh. 4 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 3/25/94. 

      February 11, 1994    Exh. 4 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 3/25/94. 

      

March 10, 1995 
   

Exh. 4.3 to Pepco’s Registration Statement No. 33-
61379, 7/28/95. 

      October 2, 1997    Exh. 4 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 3/26/98. 

      November 17, 2003    Exhibit 4.1 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 3/11/04. 

      March 16, 2004    Exh. 4.3 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 3/23/04. 

      May 24, 2005    Exh. 4.2 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 5/26/05. 

      April 1, 2006    Exh. 4.1 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 4/17/06. 

      November 13, 2007    Exh. 4.2 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 11/15/07. 

      March 24, 2008    Exh. 4.1 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 3/28/08. 

      December 3, 2008    Exh. 4.2 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 12/8/08. 

    4.2  

   

PHI  
Pepco  

   

Indenture, dated as of July 28, 1989, between Pepco and 
The Bank of New York Mellon, Trustee, with respect to 
Pepco’s Medium-Term Note Program    

Exh. 4 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 6/21/90. 

    4.3  
   

PHI  
Pepco     

Senior Note Indenture dated November 17, 2003 
between Pepco and The Bank of New York Mellon    

Exh. 4.2 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 11/21/03. 

      

Supplemental Indenture, to the aforesaid Senior Note 
Indenture, dated March 3, 2008    

Exh. 4.3 to Pepco’s Form 10-K, 3/2/09. 
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    4.4  

   

PHI  
DPL  

   

Mortgage and Deed of Trust of Delaware Power & 
Light Company to The Bank of New York Mellon 
(ultimate successor to the New York Trust Company), 
as trustee, dated as of October 1, 1943 and copies of the 
First through Sixty-Eighth Supplemental Indentures 
thereto    

Exh. 4-A to DPL’s Registration Statement No. 33-
1763, 11/27/85. 

      

Sixty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture 
   

Exh. 4-B to DPL’s Registration Statement No. 33-
39756, 4/03/91. 

      

Seventieth through Seventy-Fourth Supplemental 
Indentures    

Exhs. 4-B to DPL’s Registration Statement No. 33-
24955, 10/13/88. 

      

Seventy-Fifth through Seventy-Seventh Supplemental 
Indentures    

Exhs. 4-D, 4-E and 4-F to DPL’s Registration 
Statement No. 33-39756, 4/03/91. 

      

Seventy-Eighth and Seventy-Ninth Supplemental 
Indentures    

Exhs. 4-E and 4-F to DPL’s Registration Statement 
No. 33-46892, 4/1/92. 

      

Eightieth Supplemental Indenture 
   

Exh. 4 to DPL’s Registration Statement No. 33-49750, 
7/17/92. 

      

Eighty-First Supplemental Indenture 
   

Exh. 4-G to DPL’s Registration Statement No. 33-
57652, 1/29/93. 

      

Eighty-Second Supplemental Indenture 
   

Exh. 4-H to DPL’s Registration Statement No. 33-
63582, 5/28/93. 

      

Eighty-Third Supplemental Indenture 
   

Exh. 99 to DPL’s Registration Statement No. 33-
50453, 10/1/93. 

      

Eighty-Fourth through Eighty-Eighth Supplemental 
Indentures    

Exhs. 4-J, 4-K, 4-L, 4-M and 4-N to DPL’s 
Registration Statement No. 33-53855, 1/30/95. 

      

Eighty-Ninth and Ninetieth Supplemental Indentures 
   

Exhs. 4-K and 4-L to DPL’s Registration Statement 
No. 333-00505, 1/29/96. 
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Ninety-Fifth Supplemental Indenture 

   

Exh. 4-K to DPL’s Post Effective Amendment No. 1 
to Registration Statement No. 333-145691-02, 
11/18/08 

      One Hundred and Fifth Supplemental Indenture    Exh. 4.4 to DPL’s Form 8-K, 10/1/09. 

    4.5  

   

PHI  
DPL  

   

Indenture between DPL and The Bank of New York 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (ultimate successor to 
Manufacturers Hanover Trust Company), as trustee, 
dated as of November 1, 1988    

Exh. No. 4-G to DPL’s Registration Statement No. 33-
46892, 4/1/92. 

    4.6  

   

PHI  
ACE  

   

Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated January 15, 1937, 
between Atlantic City Electric Company and The Bank 
of New York Mellon (formerly Irving Trust Company), 
as trustee    

Exh. 2(a) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

Supplemental Indentures, to the aforesaid Mortgage and 
Deed of Trust, dated as of -    

      

June 1, 1949 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

July 1, 1950 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

November 1, 1950 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

March 1, 1952 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

January 1, 1953 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

March 1, 1954 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

March 1, 1955 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 
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January 1, 1957 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

April 1, 1958 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

April 1, 1959 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

March 1, 1961 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

July 1, 1962 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

March 1, 1963 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

February 1, 1966 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

April 1, 1970 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

September 1, 1970 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

May 1, 1971 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

April 1, 1972 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

June 1, 1973 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

January 1, 1975 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 
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May 1, 1975 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      

December 1, 1976 
   

Exh. 2(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement No. 2-
66280, 12/21/79. 

      January 1, 1980    Exh. 4(e) to ACE’s Form 10-K, 3/25/81. 

      May 1, 1981    Exh. 4(a) to ACE’s Form 10-Q, 8/10/81. 

      November 1, 1983    Exh. 4(d) to ACE’s Form 10-K, 3/30/84. 

      April 15, 1984    Exh. 4(a) to ACE’s Form 10-Q, 5/14/84. 

      July 15, 1984    Exh. 4(a) to ACE’s Form 10-Q, 8/13/84. 

      October 1, 1985    Exh. 4 to ACE’s Form 10-Q, 11/12/85. 

      May 1, 1986    Exh. 4 to ACE’s Form 10-Q, 5/12/86. 

      July 15, 1987    Exh. 4(d) to ACE’s Form 10-K, 3/28/88. 

      

October 1, 1989 
   

Exh. 4(a) to ACE’s Form 10-Q for quarter ended 
9/30/89. 

      March 1, 1991    Exh. 4(d)(1) to ACE’s Form 10-K, 3/28/91. 

      

May 1, 1992 
   

Exh. 4(b) to ACE’s Registration Statement 33-49279, 
1/6/93. 

      

January 1, 1993 
   

Exh. 4.05(hh) to ACE’s Registration Statement 333-
108861, 9/17/03 

      August 1, 1993    Exh. 4(a) to ACE’s Form 10-Q, 11/12/93. 

      September 1, 1993    Exh. 4(b) to ACE’s Form 10-Q, 11/12/93. 

      November 1, 1993    Exh. 4(c)(1) to ACE’s Form 10-K, 3/29/94. 
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      June 1, 1994    Exh. 4(a) to ACE’s Form 10-Q, 8/14/94. 

      October 1, 1994    Exh. 4(a) to ACE’s Form 10-Q, 11/14/94. 

      November 1, 1994    Exh. 4(c)(1) to ACE’s Form 10-K, 3/21/95. 

      March 1, 1997    Exh. 4(b) to ACE’s Form 8-K, 3/24/97. 

      April 1, 2004    Exh. 4.3 to ACE’s Form 8-K, 4/6/04. 

      August 10, 2004    Exh. 4 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 11/8/04. 

      March 8, 2006    Exh. 4 to ACE’s Form 8-K, 3/17/06. 

      November 6, 2008    Exh. 4.2 to ACE’s Form 8-K, 11/10/08. 

    4.7 

   

PHI  
ACE  

   

Indenture dated as of March 1, 1997 between Atlantic 
City Electric Company and The Bank of New York 
Mellon, as trustee    

Exh. 4(e) to ACE’s Form 8-K, 3/24/97. 

    4.8 
   

PHI  
ACE     

Senior Note Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2004, with 
The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee    

Exh. 4.2 to ACE’s Form 8-K, 4/6/04. 

    4.9 

   

PHI  
ACE  

   

Indenture dated as of December 19, 2002 between 
Atlantic City Electric Transition Funding LLC (ACE 
Funding) and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee    

Exh. 4.1 to ACE Funding’s Form 8-K, 12/23/02. 

    4.10 

   

PHI  
ACE  

   

2002-1 Series Supplement dated as of December 19, 
2002 between ACE Funding and The Bank of New 
York Mellon, as trustee    

Exh. 4.2 to ACE Funding’s Form 8-K, 12/23/02. 

    4.11 

   

PHI  
ACE  

   

2003-1 Series Supplement dated as of December 23, 
2003 between ACE Funding and The Bank of New 
York Mellon, as trustee    

Exh. 4.2 to ACE Funding’s Form 8-K, 12/23/03. 

    4.12 
   

PHI 
   

Indenture between PHI and The Bank of New York 
Mellon, as trustee dated September 6, 2002    

Exh. 4.03 to PHI’s Registration Statement No. 333-
100478, 10/10/02. 
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  10.1  
   

PHI 
   

Employment Agreement of Dennis R. Wraase dated 
July 26, 2007*    

Exh. 10.3 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 8/6/07. 

  10.2  
   

PHI 
   

Employment Agreement of William T. Torgerson dated 
August 1, 2002*    

Exh. 10.3 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 8/9/02. 

  10.3  
   

PHI 
   

Employment Agreement of Joseph M. Rigby dated 
August 1, 2008*    

Exh. 10.1 to PHI’s Form 8-K, 7/30/08. 

  10.4     PHI    Pepco Holdings, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan*    Exh. 10.5 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/2/09. 

  10.5  
   

PHI 
   

Pepco Holdings, Inc. Executive and Director Deferred 
Compensation Plan*    

Exh. 10.6 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/2/09. 

  10.6  
   

PHI  
Pepco     

Potomac Electric Power Company Director and 
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan*    

Exh. 10.22 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/28/03. 

  10.7  
   

PHI  
Pepco     

Potomac Electric Power Company Long-Term Incentive 
Plan*    

Exh. 4 to Pepco’s Form S-8, 6/12/98. 

  10.8  
   

PHI 
   

Conectiv Incentive Compensation Plan* 
   

Exh. 99(e) to Conectiv’s Registration Statement No. 
333-18843, 12/26/96. 

  10.9     PHI    Conectiv Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan*    Filed herewith. 

  10.10  
   

ACE 
   

Bondable Transition Property Sale Agreement between 
ACE Funding and ACE dated as of December 19, 2002    

Exh. 10.1 to ACE Funding’s Form 8-K, 12/23/02. 

  10.11  

   

ACE 

   

Bondable Transition Property Servicing Agreement 
between ACE Funding and ACE dated as of December 
19, 2002    

Exh. 10.2 to ACE Funding’s Form 8-K, 12/23/02. 

  10.12     PHI    Conectiv Deferred Compensation Plan*    Exh. 10.1 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 8/6/04. 

  10.13  
   

PHI 
   

Form of Employee Nonqualified Stock Option 
Agreement*    

Exh. 10.2 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 11/8/04. 

  10.14  
   

PHI 
   

Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option 
Agreement*    

Exh. 10.3 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 11/8/04. 

  10.15  
   

PHI 
   

Form of Election Regarding Payment of Director 
Retainer/Fees*    

Exh. 10.4 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 11/8/04. 

  10.16  
   

PHI 
   

Form of Executive and Director Deferred Compensation 
Plan Executive Deferral Agreement*    

Exh. 10.5 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 11/8/04. 

  10.17  
   

PHI 
   

Form of Executive Incentive Compensation Plan 
Participation Agreement*    

Exh. 10.6 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 11/8/04. 

  10.18     PHI    Form of Restricted Stock Agreement*    Exh. 10.7 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 11/8/04. 

  10.19  
   

PHI 
   

Form of Election with Respect to Stock Tax 
Withholding*    

Exh. 10.8 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 11/8/04. 

  10.20     PHI    Non-Management Directors Compensation Plan*    Exh. 10.21 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/2/09. 
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  10.21 
   

PHI 
   

Annual Executive Incentive Compensation Plan dated 
as of February 9, 2009*    

Exh. 10.22 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/2/09. 

  10.22 
   

PHI 
   

Non-Management Director Compensation 
Arrangements*    

Exh. 10.24 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 2/29/08. 

  10.23 
   

PHI 
   

Form of Election regarding Non-Management Directors 
Compensation Plan*    

Exh. 10.57 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/16/05. 

  10.24 
   

PHI  
Pepco     

Change-in-Control Severance Plan for Certain 
Executive Employees*    

Exh. 10.25 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/2/09. 

  10.25 

   

PHI  
Pepco  
DPL  
ACE  

   

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of 
May 2, 2007, between PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE, the 
lenders party thereto, Wachovia Bank, National 
Association, as administrative agent and swingline 
lender, Citicorp USA, Inc., as syndication agent, The 
Royal Bank of Scotland, plc, The Bank of Nova Scotia 
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as documentation 
agents, and Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC and 
Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as joint lead arrangers 
and joint book runners    

Exh. 10 to PHI’s Form 10-Q, 5/7/07. 

  10.26 
   

PHI 
   

Pepco Holdings, Inc. Combined Executive Retirement 
Plan*    

Exh. 10.28 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/2/09. 

  10.27 
   

PHI 
   

PHI Named Executive Officer 2008 Compensation 
Determinations*    

Exh. 10.33 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 2/29/08. 

  10.28 
   

PHI 
   

PHI Named Executive Officer 2009 Compensation 
Determinations*    

Exh. 10.30 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/2/09. 

  10.29 

   

DPL 

   

Transmission Purchase and Sale Agreement By and 
Between Delmarva Power & Light Company and Old 
Dominion Electric Cooperative dated as of June 13, 
2007    

Exh. 10.1 to DPL’s Form 10-Q, 8/6/07. 

  10.30 

   

DPL 

   

Purchase And Sale Agreement By and Between 
Delmarva Power & Light Company and A&N Electric 
Cooperative dated as of June 13, 2007    

Exh. 10.2 to DPL’s Form 10-Q, 8/6/07. 

  10.31 
   

DPL  
PHI     

Loan Agreement, dated as of March 20, 2008, between 
DPL and The Bank of Nova Scotia    

Exh. 10.1 to DPL’s Form 8-K, 3/24/08. 
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  10.32  
   

Pepco  
PHI     

Loan Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2008, between 
Pepco and Wachovia Bank, National Association    

Exh. 10.1 to Pepco’s Form 8-K, 5/6/08. 

  10.33  
   

PHI 
   

Amendment to Employment Agreement of Dennis R. 
Wraase effective August 1, 2008*    

Exh. 10.2 to PHI’s Form 8-K, 7/30/08. 

  10.34  
   

PHI 
   

Amendment to Employment Agreement of William T. 
Torgerson effective August 1, 2008*    

Exh. 10.36 to PHI’s Form 10-K, 3/2/09. 

  10.35  

   

PHI 

   

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated 
October 16, 2009, by and among Bank of America, 
N.A., Banc of America Securities, KeyBank National 
Association, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., SunTrust 
Bank, The Bank of Nova Scotia, Morgan Stanley Bank, 
N.A., Credit Suisse, Cayman Islands Branch, Wells 
Fargo Bank, N.A. and Manufacturers and Traders Trust 
Company    

Exh. 10.1 to PHI’s Form 8-K, 10/22/09. 

  10.36  
   

PHI 
   

Severance Agreement of Paul H. Barry dated June 12, 
2009*    

Exh. 10.1 to PHI’s Form 8-K, 6/12/09. 

  10.37  
   

PHI 
   

PHI Named Executive Officer 2010 Compensation 
Determinations*    

Filed herewith. 

  10.38  
   

PHI 
   

Employment Agreement of John U. Huffman dated 
November 23, 2009*    

Filed herewith. 

  10.39  
   

PHI 
   

Employment Agreement of Gary J. Morsches dated 
February 3, 2010*    

Filed herewith. 

  11  
   

PHI 
   

Statements Re: Computation of Earnings Per Common 
Share    

** 

  12.1     PHI    Statements Re: Computation of Ratios    Filed herewith. 

  12.2     Pepco    Statements Re: Computation of Ratios    Filed herewith. 

  12.3     DPL    Statements Re: Computation of Ratios    Filed herewith. 

  12.4     ACE    Statements Re: Computation of Ratios    Filed herewith. 

  21     PHI    Subsidiaries of the Registrant    Filed herewith. 

  23.1  
   

PHI 
   

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting 
Firm    

Filed herewith. 

  23.2  
   

Pepco 
   

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting 
Firm    

Filed herewith. 
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  23.3  
   

DPL 
   

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting 
Firm    

Filed herewith. 

  23.4  
   

ACE 
   

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting 
Firm    

Filed herewith. 

  31.1  
   

PHI 
   

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Executive 
Officer    

Filed herewith. 

  31.2  
   

PHI 
   

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Financial 
Officer    

Filed herewith. 

  31.3  
   

Pepco 
   

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Executive 
Officer    

Filed herewith. 

  31.4  
   

Pepco 
   

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Financial 
Officer    

Filed herewith. 

  31.5  
   

DPL 
   

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Executive 
Officer    

Filed herewith. 

  31.6  
   

DPL 
   

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Financial 
Officer    

Filed herewith. 

  31.7  
   

ACE 
   

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Executive 
Officer    

Filed herewith. 

  31.8  
   

ACE 
   

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Financial 
Officer    

Filed herewith. 

101. INS  
   

PHI, Pepco,  
DPL, ACE     

XBRL Instance Document 
   

Submitted herewith. 

101. SCH 
   

PHI, Pepco,  
DPL, ACE     

XBRL Taxonomy Extension  
Schema Document     

Submitted herewith. 

101. CAL 
   

PHI, Pepco,  
DPL, ACE     

XBRL Taxonomy Extension  
Calculation Linkbase Document     

Submitted herewith. 

101. DEF 
   

PHI, Pepco,  
DPL, ACE     

XBRL Taxonomy Extension  
Definition Linkbase Document     

Submitted herewith. 

101. LAB 
   

PHI, Pepco,  
DPL, ACE     

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label  
Linkbase Document     

Submitted herewith. 

101. PRE 
   

PHI, Pepco,  
DPL, ACE     

XBRL Taxonomy Extension  
Presentation Linkbase Document     

Submitted herewith. 

  
* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 
** The information required by this Exhibit is set forth in Note (14) of the Financial Statements of Pepco Holdings included in Part II, Item 8 

“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”  of this Form 10-K. 
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Conectiv in file number 001-13895  

Delmarva Power & Light Company in file number 001-1405  

Atlantic City Electric Company in file number 001-3559  

Atlantic City Electric Transition Funding LLC in file number 333-59558  

Certain instruments defining the rights of the holders of long-term debt of PHI, Pepco, DPL and ACE (including medium-term notes, unsecured 
notes, senior notes and tax-exempt financing instruments) have not been filed as exhibits in accordance with Regulation S-K Item 601(b)(4)(iii) 
because such instruments do not authorize securities in an amount which exceeds 10% of the total assets of the applicable registrant and its 
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Each of PHI, Pepco, DPL or ACE agrees to furnish to the SEC upon request a copy of any such instruments 
omitted by it.  

INDEX TO FURNISHED EXHIBITS  

The documents listed below are being furnished herewith:  
   

(b) Exhibits  
   

345  

Exhibit No.    Registrant(s)    Description of Exhibit 

32.1    PHI    Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

32.2    Pepco    Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

32.3    DPL    Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

32.4    ACE    Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 
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SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each of the registrants has duly caused this report to 
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
   

   
346  

  

PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC.  
(Registrant)  

February 26, 2010   By   / S /    J OSEPH M. R IGBY          

    
Joseph M. Rigby  

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer  

  

POTOMAC ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY (Pepco)  
(Registrant)  

February 26, 2010   By   / S /    D AVID M. V ELAZQUEZ          

    
David M. Velazquez,  

President and Chief Executive Officer  

  

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY (DPL)  
(Registrant)  

February 26, 2010   By   / S /  D AVID M. V ELAZQUEZ          

    
David M. Velazquez,  

President and Chief Executive Officer  

  

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COMPANY (ACE)  
(Registrant)  

February 26, 2010   By   / S /    D AVID M. V ELAZQUEZ          

    
David M. Velazquez,  

President and Chief Executive Officer  
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the 
above named registrants and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:  
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/ S /    J OSEPH M. R IGBY             Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of 
Pepco Holdings, Director of Pepco, DPL and ACE  
(Principal Executive Officer of Pepco Holdings)  

  February 26, 2010 
Joseph M. Rigby      

     

/ S /    D AVID M. V ELAZQUEZ             President and Chief Executive Officer of Pepco, DPL and ACE, 
Director of Pepco and DPL  
(Principal Executive Officer of Pepco, DPL and ACE)  

  February 26, 2010 
David M. Velazquez      

     

/ S /    A. J. K AMERICK             Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Pepco 
Holdings, Pepco, and DPL, Chief Financial Officer of ACE and 
Director of Pepco  
(Principal Financial Officer of Pepco Holdings, Pepco, DPL and 
ACE)  

  February 26, 2010 
Anthony J. Kamerick      

     
     
     

/ S /    R ONALD K. C LARK             Vice President and Controller of Pepco Holdings, Pepco and DPL 
and Controller of ACE  
(Principal Accounting Officer of Pepco Holdings, Pepco, DPL 
and ACE)  

  February 26, 2010 
Ronald K. Clark      
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Signature    Title   Date 

/ S /    J.B. D UNN             Director, Pepco Holdings   February 26, 2010 
Jack B. Dunn, IV      

/ S /    T. C. G OLDEN             Director, Pepco Holdings   February 26, 2010 
Terence C. Golden      

/ S /    F RANK O. H EINTZ             Director, Pepco Holdings   February 26, 2010 
Frank O. Heintz      

/ S /    P ATRICK T. H ARKER             Director, Pepco Holdings   February 26, 2010 
Patrick T. Harker      

/ S /    B ARBARA J. K RUMSIEK             Director, Pepco Holdings   February 26, 2010 
Barbara J. Krumsiek      

/ S /    G EORGE F. M AC C ORMACK             Director, Pepco Holdings   February 26, 2010 
George F. MacCormack      

/ S /    L AWRENCE C. N USSDORF             Director, Pepco Holdings   February 26, 2010 
Lawrence C. Nussdorf      

/ S /    F RANK R OSS             Director, Pepco Holdings   February 26, 2010 
Frank K. Ross      

/ S /    P AULINE A. S CHNEIDER             Director, Pepco Holdings   February 26, 2010 
Pauline A. Schneider      

/ S /    L ESTER P. S ILVERMAN             Director, Pepco Holdings   February 26, 2010 
Lester P. Silverman      

/ S /    K IRK J. E MGE             Director, Pepco and DPL   February 26, 2010 
Kirk J. Emge      

/ S /    W ILLIAM M. G AUSMAN             Director, Pepco   February 26, 2010 
William M. Gausman      

/ S /    M ICHAEL J. S ULLIVAN             Director, Pepco   February 26, 2010 
Michael J. Sullivan      

/ S /    S TANLEY A. W ISNIEWSKI             Director, Pepco   February 26, 2010 
Stanley A. Wisniewski      
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS FILED HEREWITH  
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Exhibit No.    Registrant(s)    Description of Exhibit 

10.37    PHI    PHI Named Executive Officer 2010 Compensation Determinations* 

10.38    PHI    Employment Agreement of John U. Huffman dated November 23, 2009* 

10.39    PHI    Employment Agreement of Gary J. Morsches dated February 3, 2010* 

12.1    PHI    Statements Re: Computation of Ratios 

12.2    Pepco    Statements Re: Computation of Ratios 

12.3    DPL    Statements Re: Computation of Ratios 

12.4    ACE    Statements Re: Computation of Ratios 

21    PHI    Subsidiaries of the Registrant 

23.1    PHI    Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

23.2    Pepco    Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

23.3    DPL    Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

23.4    ACE    Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

31.1    PHI    Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Executive Officer 

31.2    PHI    Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Financial Officer 

31.3    Pepco    Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Executive Officer 

31.4    Pepco    Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Financial Officer 

31.5    DPL    Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Executive Officer 

31.6    DPL    Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Financial Officer 

31.7    ACE    Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Executive Officer 

31.8    ACE    Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certificate of Chief Financial Officer 
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Exhibit No.    Registrant(s)    Description of Exhibit 

32.1    PHI    Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

32.2    Pepco    Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

32.3    DPL    Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

32.4    ACE    Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 
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Exhibit 10.37 

NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION DETERMINATIONS   

2010 Named Executive Officer Compensation Determinations  

The following is a description of certain compensation decisions made on January 28, 2010, by the Pepco Holdings, Inc. (“PHI”) Board of 
Directors or the Compensation/Human Resources Committee (the “Committee”) with respect to the compensation payable to the PHI executive 
officers identified below, each of whom is an executive officer listed in the Summary Compensation Table included in PHI’s proxy statement for 
its 2009 Annual Meeting (a “Named Executive Officer”), and with respect to Anthony J. Kamerick, who became Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer in June 2009. As to each executive officer listed below, the decisions consisted of (i) the establishment of base salary for 
2010, (ii) the establishment of the executive’s 2010 annual bonus opportunity and (iii) the establishment of the executive’s award opportunities 
for the period 2010-2012 pursuant to the Performance Stock Program and Restricted Stock Program under the Pepco Holdings, Inc. Long-Term 
Incentive Plan (the “LTIP”).  
   

   

           
2010 Long-Term  

Incentive Plan Awards (2) 

Name    Title     

2010  
Base  

Salary    

Target 2010  
Annual Bonus 
Opportunity as 

 
a Percentage of 

 
Base Salary (1)     

Performance Stock  
Program Award  
Opportunity (# of  

shares) (3)    

Restricted  
Stock  

Program  
Award (# of 

 
shares) (4) 

Joseph M. Rigby 
   

Chairman, President and Chief 
Executive Officer    

$ 880,000 
   

100 %  
  

Target 
Maximum    

68,516 
137,032    

34,258 

David M. Velazquez 
   

Executive Vice President 
   

$ 484,000 
   

60 %  
  

Target 
Maximum    

18,842 
37,684    

9,421 

Anthony J. Kamerick 
   

Senior Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer    

$ 484,000 
   

60 %  
  

Target 
Maximum    

18,842 
37,684    

9,421 

(1) An executive can earn from 0 to 180% of this percentage of his base salary as a cash bonus depending on the extent to which the 
preestablished performance goals are achieved. See “Executive Incentive Compensation Plan”  below for 2010 performance goals. 

(2) The shares of PHI common stock, $.01 par value (“Common Stock”) constituting (i) target award opportunity under the Performance Stock 
Program and (ii) share award under the Restricted Stock Program in the aggregate had a market value on December 31, 2009 equal to the 
following percentage of the executive’s 2010 base salary: 200% for Mr. Rigby; 100% for Messrs. Velazquez and Kamerick. 

(3) See “Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards — Performance Stock Program” below for a description of the Performance Stock Program. 
(4) See “Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards — Restricted Stock Program” below for a description of the restricted stock awards. 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 2 of 2 
Page 2309 of 7002



Executive Incentive Compensation Plan  

Each of the executive officers listed in the table above is a participant in the PHI Executive Incentive Compensation Plan. On January 28, 
2010, the Committee established as the performance goals to be used for the determination of 2010 cash bonus awards for each of the executive 
officers. For Messrs. Rigby and Kamerick: (1) earnings relative to the corporate plan, (2) cash flow, (3) electric system reliability, (4) customer 
satisfaction, (5) diversity and (6) safety. For Mr. Velazquez: (1) Power Delivery earnings relative to plan, (2) capital expenditures, (3) operation 
and maintenance spending, (4) electric system reliability, (5) customer satisfaction, (6) diversity and (7) safety.  

Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards  

On January 28, 2010, the Committee established award opportunities pursuant to the Performance Stock Program and made awards of 
restricted stock under the Restricted Stock Program under the LTIP. Participants in the LTIP are key executives of PHI and its subsidiaries 
selected by the Chairman of the Board of PHI and approved by the Committee, including each of the executive officers listed in the table above.  

Performance Stock Program  

The award opportunities established under the Performance Stock Program accounts for two-thirds of each participant’s aggregate 2010 
Long-Term Incentive Plan award opportunity. Depending on the extent to which the preestablished performance goal, which is based on PHI’s 
total shareholder return relative to a group of peer companies over a three-year period beginning in 2010 and ending in 2012, the participant can 
earn from 0 to 200% of the target award in the form of shares of Common Stock. If during the course of the three-year performance period, a 
significant event occurs, as determined in the discretion of the Compensation/Human Resources Committee, which the Committee expects to 
have a substantial effect on total shareholder performance during the period, the Committee may revise such measures. The target award 
opportunity and maximum award opportunity (representing 200% of the target award opportunity) of each listed executive officer are shown in 
the table above.  

Restricted Stock Program  

Under the Restricted Stock Program, each listed executive officer has received a grant of shares of restricted stock, which accounts for one-
third of the executive’s aggregate 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan award opportunity. The shares of restricted stock are subject to forfeiture if 
the employment of the executive terminates before January 28, 2013, except that in the event of death, disability or retirement, the award is 
prorated to the date of termination. During the vesting period, the executive has all rights of ownership with respect to the shares, including the 
right to vote the shares and the right to receive dividends on the shares, which dividends the executive will be entitled to retain whether or not the 
shares vest.  
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Exhibit 10.38 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the” Agreement”) is made as of November 23, 2009 between Pepco Holdings, Inc. (“PHI”; the 
“Company”) and John U. Huffman (the “Executive”).  

WHEREAS, the Company desires to retain the employment of the Executive as a key member of the Company’s management team, and 
the Executive desires to serve the Company in such capacity; and  

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to set forth their agreement with respect to the terms and provisions of the Executive’s employment 
with the Company.  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and agreements of the parties set forth in this 
Agreement, and of other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, 
intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:  

1. Term of this Agreement.  

The Company hereby agrees to employ the Executive and the Executive hereby agrees to continue to serve the Company, in accordance 
with the terms and conditions set forth herein, until December 31, 2010, commencing as of the date set forth above, subject, however, to earlier 
termination as expressly provided herein.  

On or after December 31, 2010, this contract shall expire and the employment of Executive by the Company shall be subject to similar 
terms and conditions as other similarly situated key members of the Company’s management team with similar levels of responsibility as 
Executive and, as such, shall continue on an at-will basis.  

Any obligations of the Company or the Executive hereunder which have not been satisfied as of the last day of the Term of this Agreement 
shall survive the expiration of the Term of this Agreement and shall remain in effect until such time as all such obligations have been satisfied. 
No additional payments are required by the termination of this Agreement.  

2. Duties.  

During the term of this Agreement, the Executive agrees to serve in a key management position with the Company. The Executive (a) will 
devote his knowledge, skill and best efforts on a full-time basis to performing his duties and obligations to the Company (with the exception of 
absences on account of illness or vacation in accordance with the Company’s policies and civic and charitable commitments not involving a 
conflict with the Company’s business), and (b) will comply with the directions and orders of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company, or any designee thereof, with respect to the performance of his duties.  
   

1  
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3. Affiliates .  

Employment by an Affiliate of the Company or a successor to the Company will be considered employment by the Company for purposes 
of this Agreement, and the Executive’s employment with the Company shall be considered terminated only if the Executive is no longer 
employed by the Company or any of its Affiliates or successors. The term “Company” as used in this Agreement will be deemed to include 
Affiliates and successors. For purposes of this Agreement, the term” Affiliate” means the subsidiaries of the Company and other entities under 
common control with the Company. If the Executive is employed by an Affiliate or a successor, the term “Board of Directors” as used in this 
Sections 4 and 5 means the Board of Directors of the Executive’s employer.  

4. Compensation and Benefits.  

As remuneration for all services to be rendered by the Executive during the term of this Agreement, and as consideration for complying 
with the covenants herein, the Company shall pay and provide to the Executive the following:  

4.1. Base Salary . The Company shall pay the Executive a Base Salary in an amount which shall be established from time to time by 
the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board’s designee provided; however, that, subject to Section 5.4 (a), such Base Salary shall not be 
less than the base salary of the Executive as of the date of this Agreement. Base Salary shall be paid to the Executive in periodic installments at 
such times as salaries are generally paid to other key members of the Company’s management team and consistent with the normal payroll 
practices of the Company.  

The Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed at least annually during the term of this Agreement to ascertain whether, in the 
judgment of the Board or the Board’s designee, such Base Salary should be increased, based primarily on the performance of the Executive 
during the year and the market pay for similarly situated professionals performing similar duties to the Executive.  

4.2. Incentive Award . The Executive will be entitled to receive incentive awards if and to the extent that the Board of Directors 
determines in good faith that the Executive’s performance merits payment of an award according to the terms of any incentive compensation 
plans applicable to key members of the Company’s management team.  

4.3. Other Cash Remuneration . Except as set forth in Section 5, in addition to the remuneration set forth herein, if the Executive 
remains employed through December 31, 2010, the Company shall make a payment to the Executive in the amount of $100,000.  

Payments by the Company to the Executive made pursuant to this Section 4.3 shall be made as soon as possible after the applicable 
date and in a lump sum, less applicable taxes as determined by the Company.  
   

2  
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4.4. Other Benefits.  

During the Term of this Agreement, while the Executive is employed by the Company, the Executive will be eligible to participate in a 
similar manner as other key members of the Company’s management team in retirement plans, fringe benefit plans, supplemental benefit plans 
and other plans and programs provided by the Company for its executives or employees from time to time.  

5. Termination of Employment.  

5.1. Disability or Death. If the Executive dies during the term of this Agreement, the Company shall pay to the Executive’s estate, in 
a lump sum and as soon as practicable after the date of death, a pro rata share of the payment due to the Executive under Section 4.3 of this 
Agreement, if the Executive had remained employed through December 31, 2010. Such payment shall be based on the number of full months the 
Executive was actively employed from the effective date of this Agreement to the date of the Executive’s death. If the Executive becomes 
disabled during the term of this Agreement and is found to be entitled to long-term disability benefits under the Company’s disability plan or 
policy, the Company shall pay to the Executive a pro rata share of the payment due to the Executive under Section 4.3 of this Agreement, if the 
Executive had remained actively employed through December 31, 2010. Such payment shall be based on the number of full months the 
Executive was actively employed from the effective date of this Agreement to the date of the Executive’s disability.  

5.2. Involuntary Termination by the Company without Cause . The Board may terminate the Executive’s employment, as 
provided under this Agreement, at any time, for reasons other than death, Disability, Retirement, or for Cause, by notifying the Executive in 
writing of the Company’s intent to terminate, at least thirty (30) calendar days prior the effective date of such termination.  

Upon the effective date of such termination, following the expiration of the thirty (30) day notice period, the Company shall pay to the 
Executive a pro rata share of the payment due to the Executive under Section 4.3 of this Agreement, if the Executive had remained employed 
through December 31, 2010. Such payment shall be based on the number of full months the Executive was actively employed from the effective 
date of this Agreement to the date of the Executive’s termination.  

Any payment to the Executive under this Section 5.2 shall be in addition to any other payment the Executive may be eligible to receive 
under the PHI Change in Control Severance Plan.  

5.3. Termination for Cause . Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the Board from terminating the Executive’s 
employment under this Agreement for “Cause.” For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Cause” means (i) intentional fraud or material 
misappropriation with respect to the business or assets of the Company, (ii) persistent refusal or willful failure of the Executive to perform 
substantially his duties and responsibilities to the Company, which continues after the Executive receives notice of such refusal or failure, 
(iii) conduct that constitutes disloyalty to the Company, and that materially damages the property, business or reputation of the Company, or 
(iv) conviction of a felony involving moral turpitude. If the Executive is terminated for Cause, no payments will be due under this Agreement.  
   

3  
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5.4. Termination by Executive for Good Reason. At any time during the term of this Agreement, the Executive may terminate this 
Agreement for Good Reason (as defined below) by giving the Board of Directors of the Company thirty (30) calendar days written notice of 
intent to terminate, which notice sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for such termination.  

Upon the expiration of the thirty (30) day notice period, the Good Reason termination shall become effective, and the Executive shall be 
entitled to receive the same payments and benefits as he would be entitled to receive following an involuntary termination of his employment by 
the Company without Cause, as specified in Section 5.2 herein within thirty (30) calendar days following the effective date of employment 
termination.  

Good Reason shall mean, without the Executive’s express written consent, the occurrence of any one or more of the following:  

(a) A reduction by the Company of the Executive’s base salary in effect on the date of this Agreement, or as the same shall be 
increased from time to time, unless such reduction is (i) replaced by an incentive opportunity of equal value; or (ii) is consistent and proportional 
with an overall reduction in management compensation due to extraordinary business conditions, including but not limited to reduced 
profitability and other financial stress;  

(b) The assignment of the Executive to duties materially inconsistent with the Executive’s authorities, duties, responsibilities, and 
status (including offices, titles, and reporting requirements), or a reduction or alteration in the nature or status of the Executive’s authorities, 
duties, or responsibilities from those in effect during the immediately preceding fiscal year, other than an insubstantial and inadvertent act that is 
remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of notice thereof given by the Executive;  

(c) The Company requires the Executive to be based at a location which is at least fifty (50) miles further from the Executive’s 
residence than is such residence from the Company’s current headquarters, except for required travel on the Company’s business to an extent 
substantially consistent with the Executive’s business obligations;  

(d) A failure by the Company to meet any obligation under Section 4 herein.  

(e) The failure of the Company to obtain a satisfactory agreement from any successor to the Company to assume and agree to 
perform this Agreement.  

6. Fees and Expenses .  

The Company will pay all reasonable fees and expenses, if any, (including, without limitation, legal fees and expenses) that are incurred by 
the Executive to enforce this Agreement and that result from a breach of this Agreement by the Company, unless such fees and expenses result 
from a claim made by the Executive that is deemed by an arbitrator, mediator, or court, as applicable, to be frivolous or made in bad faith, in 
which case each party shall pay its own fees and expenses.  
   

4  
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7. Assignment.  

The rights and obligations of the Company under this Agreement will inure to the benefit of and will be binding upon the successors and 
assigns of the Company. If the Company is consolidated or merged with or into another corporation, or if another entity purchases all or 
substantially all of the Company’s assets, the surviving or acquiring corporation will succeed to the Company’s rights and obligations under this 
Agreement. The Executive’s rights under this Agreement may not be assigned or transferred in whole or in part.  

8. Rights Under this Agreement .  

The right to receive benefits under the Agreement will not give the Executive any proprietary interest in the Company or any of its assets. 
Benefits under the Agreement will be payable from the general assets of the Company, and there will be no required funding of amounts that 
may become payable under the Agreement. The Executive will for all purposes be a general creditor of the Company. The interest of the 
Executive under the Agreement cannot be assigned, anticipated, sold, encumbered or pledged and will not be subject to the claims of the 
Executive’s creditors.  

9. Notice.  

For purposes of this Agreement, notices and all other communications to the Executive must be in writing addressed to the Executive or his 
personal representative at his last known address. All notices to the Company must be directed to the attention of the Chief Executive Officer. 
Such other addresses may be used as either party may have furnished to the other in writing. Notices are effective when mailed if sent by United 
States registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices sent otherwise are effective when received. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, notices of change of address are effective only upon receipt.  

10. Miscellaneous.  

To the extent not governed by federal law, this Agreement will be construed in accordance with the laws of the District of Columbia 
without reference to its conflict of laws rules. No provisions of this Agreement may be modified, waived or discharged unless such waiver, 
modification or discharge is agreed to in writing and the writing is signed by the Executive and the Company. A waiver of any breach of or 
compliance with any provision or condition of this Agreement is not a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions. The invalidity or 
unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement will not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which 
will remain in full force and effect. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which will be considered one and the 
same agreement.  
   

5  
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11. Entire Agreement.  
   

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes the terms of any agreements or understandings, oral or 
written, between the parties hereto, or between the Executive and the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and, further, supersedes any right to 
benefits of the Executive under any executive benefit plan of the Company or any of its subsidiaries with respect to the subject matter hereof.  

WITNESS the following signatures:  
   
   

   
6  

Pepco Holdings, Inc.  
   
JOSEPH M. RIGBY  
       

Executive  
   
JOHN U. HUFFMAN  
   

By:   /s/ Joseph M. Rigby     By:   /s/ John U. Huffman 

  

Chairman, President, and Chief  
Executive Officer        

        
        

Date:   11/23/09     Date:   11/23/09 
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Exhibit 10.39 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made as of February 3, 2010 between Pepco Holdings, Inc. (“PHI”; the 
“Company”) and Gary J. Morsches (the “Executive”).  

WHEREAS, the Company desires to retain the employment of the Executive as a key member of the Company’s management team, and 
the Executive desires to serve the Company in such capacity; and  

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to set forth their agreement with respect to the terms and provisions of the Executive’s employment 
with the Company.  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and agreements of the parties set forth in this 
Agreement, and of other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, 
intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:  

1. Term of this Agreement.  

The Company hereby agrees to employ the Executive and the Executive hereby agrees to continue to serve the Company, in accordance 
with the terms and conditions set forth herein, until December 31, 2010, commencing as of the date set forth above, subject, however, to earlier 
termination as expressly provided herein.  

On or after December 31, 2010, this contract shall expire and the employment of Executive by the Company shall be subject to similar 
terms and conditions as other similarly situated key members of the Company’s management team with similar levels of responsibility as 
Executive and, as such, shall continue on an at-will basis.  

Any obligations of the Company or the Executive hereunder which have not been satisfied as of the last day of the Term of this Agreement 
shall survive the expiration of the Term of this Agreement and shall remain in effect until such time as all such obligations have been satisfied. 
No additional payments are required by the termination of this Agreement.  

2. Duties.  

During the term of this Agreement, the Executive agrees to serve in a key management position with the Company. The Executive (a) will 
devote his knowledge, skill and best efforts on a full-time basis to performing his duties and obligations to the Company (with the exception of 
absences on account of illness or vacation in accordance with the Company’s policies and civic and charitable commitments not involving a 
conflict with the Company’s business), and (b) will comply with the directions and orders of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company, or any designee thereof, with respect to the performance of his duties.  
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3. Affiliates.  

Employment by an Affiliate of the Company or a successor to the Company will be considered employment by the Company for purposes 
of this Agreement, and the Executive’s employment with the Company shall be considered terminated only if the Executive is no longer 
employed by the Company or any of its Affiliates or successors. The term “Company” as used in this Agreement will be deemed to include 
Affiliates and successors. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Affiliate” means the subsidiaries of the Company and other entities under 
common control with the Company. If the Executive is employed by an Affiliate or a successor, the term “Board of Directors” as used in this 
Sections 4 and 5 means the Board of Directors of the Executive’s employer.  

4. Compensation and Benefits.  

As remuneration for all services to be rendered by the Executive during the term of this Agreement, and as consideration for complying 
with the covenants herein, the Company shall pay and provide to the Executive the following:  

4.1. Base Salary. The Company shall pay the Executive a Base Salary in an amount which shall be established from time to time by 
the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board’s designee provided; however, that, subject to Section 5.4 (a), such Base Salary shall not be 
less than the base salary of the Executive as of the date of this Agreement. Base Salary shall be paid to the Executive in periodic installments at 
such times as salaries are generally paid to other key members of the Company’s management team and consistent with the normal payroll 
practices of the Company.  

The Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed at least annually during the term of this Agreement to ascertain whether, in the 
judgment of the Board or the Board’s designee, such Base Salary should be increased, based primarily on the performance of the Executive 
during the year and the market pay for similarly situated professionals performing similar duties to the Executive.  

4.2. Incentive Award. The Executive will be entitled to receive incentive awards if and to the extent that the Board of Directors 
determines in good faith that the Executive’s performance merits payment of an award according to the terms of any incentive compensation 
plans applicable to key members of the Company’s management team.  

4.3. Other Cash Remuneration. Except as set forth in Section 5, in addition to the remuneration set forth herein, the Company shall 
make a payment to the Executive in the amount of $351,000 in the following increments and times:  

4.3.1 One third ( / 3 ) of the amount specified in 4.3 at the earlier of the time that the Executive completes the first phase of 
such mutually agreed upon performance goals that are established between the Executive and the Chief Executive Officer, and 
12/31/2010.  
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4.3.2 Two thirds ( / 3 ) of the amount specified in 4.3 at the earlier of the time that the Executive completes the second phase 
of such mutually agreed upon performance goals that are established between the Executive and the Chief Executive Officer, and 
12/31/2010.  

Payments by the Company to the Executive made pursuant to this Section 4.3 shall be made within 30 days of the applicable date and in a 
lump sum, less applicable taxes as determined by the Company.  

4.4. Other Benefits.  

During the Term of this Agreement, while the Executive is employed by the Company, the Executive will be eligible to participate in a 
similar manner as other key members of the Company’s management team in retirement plans, fringe benefit plans, supplemental benefit plans 
and other plans and programs provided by the Company for its executives or employees from time to time.  

5. Termination of Employment.  

5.1. Disability or Death. If the Executive dies during the term of this Agreement, the Company shall pay to the Executive’s estate, in 
a lump sum and as soon as practicable after the date of death, a pro rata share of the payment due to the Executive under Section 4.3 of this 
Agreement, if the Executive had remained employed through December 31, 2010. Such payment shall be based on the number of full months the 
Executive was actively employed from the effective date of this Agreement to the date of the Executive’s death. If the Executive becomes 
disabled during the term of this Agreement and is found to be entitled to long-term disability benefits under the Company’s disability plan or 
policy, the Company shall pay to the Executive a pro rata share of the payment due to the Executive under Section 4.3 of this Agreement, if the 
Executive had remained actively employed through December 31, 2010. Such payment shall be based on the number of full months the 
Executive was actively employed from the effective date of this Agreement to the date of the Executive’s disability.  

5.2. Involuntary Termination by the Company without Cause. The Board may terminate the Executive’s employment, as 
provided under this Agreement, at any time, for reasons other than death, Disability, Retirement, or for Cause, by notifying the Executive in 
writing of the Company’s intent to terminate, at least thirty (30) calendar days prior the effective date of such termination.  

Upon the effective date of such termination, following the expiration of the thirty (30) day notice period, the Company shall pay to the 
Executive a pro rata share of the payment due to the Executive under Section 4.3 of this Agreement, if the Executive had remained employed 
through December 31, 2010. Such payment shall be based on the number of full months the Executive was actively employed from the effective 
date of this Agreement to the date of the Executive’s termination.  
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Any payment to the Executive under this Section 5.2 shall be in addition to any other payment the Executive may be eligible to receive 
under the PHI Change in Control Severance Plan.  

5.3. Termination for Cause . Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the Board from terminating the Executive’s 
employment under this Agreement for “Cause.” For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Cause” means (i) intentional fraud or material 
misappropriation with respect to the business or assets of the Company, (ii) persistent refusal or willful failure of the Executive to perform 
substantially his duties and responsibilities to the Company, which continues after the Executive receives notice of such refusal or failure, 
(iii) conduct that constitutes disloyalty to the Company, and that materially damages the property, business or reputation of the Company, or 
(iv) conviction of a felony involving moral turpitude. If the Executive is terminated for Cause, no payments will be due under this Agreement.  

5.4. Termination by Executive for Good Reason . At any time during the term of this Agreement, the Executive may terminate this 
Agreement for Good Reason (as defined below) by giving the Board of Directors of the Company thirty (30) calendar days written notice of 
intent to terminate, which notice sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for such termination.  

Upon the expiration of the thirty (30) day notice period, the Good Reason termination shall become effective, and the Executive shall be 
entitled to receive the same payments and benefits as he would be entitled to receive following an involuntary termination of his employment by 
the Company without Cause, as specified in Section 5.2 herein within thirty (30) calendar days following the effective date of employment 
termination.  

Good Reason shall mean, without the Executive’s express written consent, the occurrence of any one or more of the following:  

(a) A reduction by the Company of the Executive’s base salary in effect on the date of this Agreement, or as the same shall be 
increased from time to time, unless such reduction is (i) replaced by an incentive opportunity of equal value; or (ii) is consistent and proportional 
with an overall reduction in management compensation due to extraordinary business conditions, including but not limited to reduced 
profitability and other financial stress;  

(b) The assignment of the Executive to duties materially inconsistent with the Executive’s authorities, duties, responsibilities, and 
status (including offices, titles, and reporting requirements), or a reduction or alteration in the nature or status of the Executive’s authorities, 
duties, or responsibilities from those in effect during the immediately preceding fiscal year, other than an insubstantial and inadvertent act that is 
remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of notice thereof given by the Executive;  

(c) The Company requires the Executive to be based at a location which is at least fifty (50) miles further from the Executive’s 
residence than is such residence from the Company’s current headquarters, except for required travel on the Company’s business to an extent 
substantially consistent with the Executive’s business obligations;  

(d) A failure by the Company to meet any obligation under Section 4 herein.  
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(e) The failure of the Company to obtain a satisfactory agreement from any successor to the Company to assume and agree to 
perform this Agreement.  

6. Fees and Expenses.  

The Company will pay all reasonable fees and expenses, if any, (including, without limitation, legal fees and expenses) that are incurred by 
the Executive to enforce this Agreement and that result from a breach of this Agreement by the Company, unless such fees and expenses result 
from a claim made by the Executive that is deemed by an arbitrator, mediator, or court, as applicable, to be frivolous or made in bad faith, in 
which case each party shall pay its own fees and expenses  

7. Assignment.  

The rights and obligations of the Company under this Agreement will inure to the benefit of and will be binding upon the successors and 
assigns of the Company. If the Company is consolidated or merged with or into another corporation, or if another entity purchases all or 
substantially all of the Company’s assets, the surviving or acquiring corporation will succeed to the Company’s rights and obligations under this 
Agreement. The Executive’s rights under this Agreement may not be assigned or transferred in whole or in part.  

8. Rights Under this Agreement.  

The right to receive benefits under the Agreement will not give the Executive any proprietary interest in the Company or any of its assets. 
Benefits under the Agreement will be payable from the general assets of the Company, and there will be no required funding of amounts that 
may become payable under the Agreement. The Executive will for all purposes be a general creditor of the Company. The interest of the 
Executive under the Agreement cannot be assigned, anticipated, sold, encumbered or pledged and will not be subject to the claims of the 
Executive’s creditors.  

9. Notice.  

For purposes of this Agreement, notices and all other communications to the Executive must be in writing addressed to the Executive or his 
personal representative at his last known address. All notices to the Company must be directed to the attention of the Chief Executive Officer. 
Such other addresses may be used as either party may have furnished to the other in writing. Notices are effective when mailed if sent by United 
States registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices sent otherwise are effective when received. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, notices of change of address are effective only upon receipt.  
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10. Miscellaneous.  

To the extent not governed by federal law, this Agreement will be construed in accordance with the laws of the District of Columbia 
without reference to its conflict of laws rules. No provisions of this Agreement may be modified, waived or discharged unless such waiver, 
modification or discharge is agreed to in writing and the writing is signed by the Executive and the Company. A waiver of any breach of or 
compliance with any provision or condition of this Agreement is not a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions. The invalidity or 
unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement will not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which 
will remain in full force and effect. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which will be considered one and the 
same agreement.  

11. Entire Agreement.  

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes the terms of any agreements or understandings, oral or 
written, between the parties hereto, or between the Executive and the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and, further, supersedes any right to 
benefits of the Executive under any executive benefit plan of the Company or any of its subsidiaries with respect to the subject matter hereof.  

WITNESS the following signatures:  
   

   
6  

Pepco Holdings, Inc.     Executive 

JOSEPH M. RIGBY     GARY J. MORSCHES 

By:   /s/ JOSEPH M. RIGBY      By:   /s/ G. J. MORSCHES  
  Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer       

Date:   2/4/10      Date:   2/3/10  
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Exhibit 12.1 Statements Re. Computation of Ratios  

PEPCO HOLDINGS, INC.  
   

   

     For the Year Ended December 31,   
     2009     2008     2007     2006     2005   
     (millions of dollars)   

Income before extraordinary item (a)     $ 233     $ 305     $ 324     $ 245     $ 369   
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Income tax expense (b)       110       168       188       161       255   
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Fixed charges:             

Interest on long-term debt, amortization of discount, premium and expense       382       341       348       343       341   
Other interest       23       24       25       19       20   
Preferred dividend requirements of subsidiaries       —          —          —          1       3   

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total fixed charges       405       365       373       363       364   
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Nonutility capitalized interest       (4 )     (6 )      (2 )     (1 )     (1 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Income before extraordinary item, income tax expense, fixed charges and capitalized 
interest     $ 744     $ 832     $ 883     $ 768     $ 987   

       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Total fixed charges, shown above       405       365       373       363       364   
Increase preferred stock dividend requirements of subsidiaries to a pre-tax amount       —          —          —          1       2   

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Fixed charges for ratio computation     $ 405     $ 365     $ 373     $ 364     $ 366   
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred dividends       1.84       2.28       2.36       2.11       2.70   
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

(a) Excludes income/losses on equity investments. 
(b) Concurrent with the adoption of FIN 48 in 2007, amount includes interest on uncertain tax positions. 
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Exhibit 12.2 Statements Re. Computation of Ratios  

POTOMAC ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY  
   

   

     For the Year Ended December 31, 
     2009    2008    2007    2006    2005 
     (millions of dollars) 

Net income     $ 106    $ 116    $ 125    $ 85    $ 165 
                                   

Income tax expense (a)       76      64      62      58      128 
                                   

Fixed charges:                 

Interest on long-term debt, amortization of discount, premium and expense       103      95      86      77      83 
Other interest       11      11      12      13      14 
Preferred dividend requirements of a subsidiary trust       —        —        —        —        —   

                                   

Total fixed charges       114      106      98      90      97 
                                   

Income before income tax expense and fixed charges     $ 296    $ 286    $ 285    $ 233    $ 390 
                                   

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges       2.60      2.70      2.91      2.59      4.04 
                                   

Total fixed charges, shown above       114      106      98      90      97 

Preferred dividend requirements, adjusted to a pre-tax amount       —        —        —        2      2 
                                   

Total fixed charges and preferred dividends     $ 114    $ 106    $ 98    $ 92    $ 99 
                                   

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred dividends       2.60      2.70      2.91      2.54      3.94 
                                   

(a) Concurrent with the adoption of FIN 48 in 2007, amount includes interest on uncertain tax positions. 
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Exhibit 12.3 Statements Re. Computation of Ratios  

DELMARVA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY  
   

   

     For the Year Ended December 31, 
     2009    2008    2007    2006    2005 
     (millions of dollars) 

Net income     $ 52    $ 68    $ 45    $ 43    $ 75 
                                   

Income tax expense (a)       16      45      37      32      58 
                                   

Fixed charges:                 

Interest on long-term debt, amortization of discount, premium and expense       45      41      44      41      35 
Other interest       2      2      2      3      3 
Preferred dividend requirements of a subsidiary trust       —        —        —        —        —   

                                   

Total fixed charges       47      43      46      44      38 
                                   

Income before income tax expense and fixed charges     $ 115    $ 156    $ 128    $ 119    $ 171 
                                   

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges       2.45      3.63      2.78      2.70      4.48 
                                   

Total fixed charges, shown above       47      43      46      44      38 

Preferred dividend requirements, adjusted to a pre-tax amount       —        —        —        1      2 
                                   

Total fixed charges and preferred dividends     $ 47    $ 43    $ 46    $ 45    $ 40 
                                   

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred dividends       2.45      3.63      2.78      2.62      4.28 
                                   

(a) Concurrent with the adoption of FIN 48 in 2007, amount includes interest on uncertain tax positions. 
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Exhibit 12.4   Statements Re. Computation of Ratios  

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COMPANY  
   

   

     For the Year Ended December 31, 
     2009    2008    2007    2006    2005 
     (millions of dollars) 

Income from continuing operations     $ 41    $ 64    $ 60    $ 60    $ 51 
                                   

Income tax expense (a)       17      30      41      33      41 
                                   

Fixed charges:                 

Interest on long-term debt, amortization of discount, premium and expense       69      64      66      65      60 
Other interest       3      3      3      3      4 
Preferred dividend requirements of subsidiary trusts          —        —        —        —   

                                   

Total fixed charges       72      67      69      68      64 
                                   

Income before extraordinary item, income tax expense and fixed charges     $ 130    $ 161    $ 170    $ 161    $ 156 
                                   

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges       1.81      2.40      2.46      2.37      2.45 
                                   

Total fixed charges, shown above       72      67      69      68      64 

Preferred dividend requirements adjusted to a pre-tax amount       —        —        1      1      1 
                                   

Total fixed charges and preferred dividends     $ 72    $ 67    $ 70    $ 69    $ 65 
                                   

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred dividends       1.81      2.40      2.44      2.35      2.43 
                                   

(a) Concurrent with the adoption of FIN 48 in 2007, amount includes interest on uncertain tax positions. 
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Exhibit 21 Subsidiaries of the Registrants  
   

Name of Company    

Jurisdiction of  
Incorporation  

or Organization 

Pepco Holdings, Inc.     DE 
Potomac Electric Power Company     DC and VA 

Gridco International LLC (Dissolved 10/8/2008)     DE 
Microcell Corporation     NC 
Pepco Energy Services, Inc.     DE 

Pepco Building Services Inc.     DE 
W.A. Chester, L.L.C.     DE 

W.A. Chester Corporation     DE 
Chester Transmission Construction Canada, Inc.     Canada 

Severn Construction Services, LLC     DE 
Chesapeake HVAC, Inc. (f/k/a Unitemp, Inc.)     DE 

Conectiv Thermal Systems, Inc.     DE 
ATS Operating Services, Inc.     DE 
Atlantic Jersey Thermal Systems, Inc.     DE 
Thermal Energy Limited Partnership I     DE 

Eastern Landfill Gas, LLC     DE 
Blue Ridge Renewable Energy, LLC     DE 
Distributed Generation Partners, LLC     DE 
Rolling Hills Landfill Gas, LLC     DE 
Potomac Power Resources, LLC     DE 
Fauquier Landfill Gas, L.L.C.     DE 
Pepco Energy Services - Suez Thermal, LLC     DC 
Pepco Government Services LLC     DE 
Pepco Enterprises, Inc.     DE 

Electro Ecology, Inc.     NY 
Pepco Energy Cogeneration LLC     DE 
Bethlehem Renewable Energy, LLC     DE 

Potomac Capital Investment Corporation     DE 
PCI Netherlands Corporation     NV 
PCI Queensland, L.L.C.     NV 
AMP Funding, L.L.C.     DE 
RAMP Investments, L.L.C.     DE 

PCI Air Management Partners, L.L.C.     DE 
PCI Ever, Inc.     DE 

Friendly Skies, Inc.     Virgin Islands 
PCI Air Management Corporation, a Nevada Corporation     NV 

American Energy Corporation     DE 
PCI-BT Investing, L.L.C.     DE 

Linpro Harmans Land LTD Partnership     MD 
Potomac Nevada Corporation     NV 

Potomac Delaware Leasing Corporation     DE 
Potomac Equipment Leasing Corporation     NV 
Potomac Leasing Associates, LP     DE 
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Potomac Nevada Leasing Corporation     NV 
PCI Engine Trading, Ltd.     Bermuda 
Potomac Capital Joint Leasing Corporation     DE 

PCI Nevada Investments     DE 
PCI Holdings, Inc.     DE 

Aircraft International Management Company     DE 
Potomac Nevada Investment, Inc., a Nevada Corporation     NV 
PCI Energy Corporation     DE 

PHI Service Company     DE 
Conectiv     DE 

Delmarva Power & Light Company     DE and VA 
Atlantic City Electric Company     NJ 

Atlantic City Electric Transition Funding LLC     DE 
Conectiv Properties and Investments, Inc.     DE 

DCTC-Burney, Inc.     DE 
Conectiv Solutions LLC     DE 

ATE Investment, Inc.     DE 
Enertech Capital Partners, LP     DE 
Enertech Capital Partners II, LP     DE 

Blacklight Power, Inc.     DE 
Millennium Account Services, LLC     DE 
Conectiv Services, Inc.     DE 

Atlantic Generation, Inc.     NJ 
Vineland Ltd., Inc.     DE 

Vineland Cogeneration Limited Partnership     DE 
Vineland General, Inc.     DE 
Pedrick Gen., Inc. (Dissolved 9/25/2009)     NJ 
Project Finance Fund III, L.P.     DE 

Conectiv Communications, Inc.     DE 
Atlantic Southern Properties, Inc.     NJ 
Conectiv Energy Holding Company     DE 

ACE REIT, Inc.     DE 
Conectiv Atlantic Generation, L.L.C.     DE 
Conectiv Bethlehem, LLC     DE 

Conectiv Delmarva Generation, LLC     DE 
Conectiv Pennsylvania Generation, LLC     DE 

Conectiv Energy Supply, Inc.     DE 
Conectiv North East, LLC     DE 

Energy Systems North East, LLC     DE 
Delta, LLC     DE 

Conectiv Mid Merit, LLC     DE 
Delaware Operating Services Company     DE 
PHI Operating Services Company     DE 

Tech Leaders II, L.P.     DE 
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Exhibit 23.1 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-161147, 333-145691 and 333-
129429) and the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-96675, 333-121823 and 333-131371) of Pepco Holdings, Inc. of our report 
dated February 26, 2010 for Pepco Holdings, Inc. relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedules and the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.  

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  
Washington, DC  
February 26, 2010  
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Exhibit 23.2 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-145691-03) of Potomac Electric Power 
Company of our report dated February 26, 2010 for Potomac Electric Power Company relating to the financial statements, financial statement 
schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.  

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  
Washington, DC  
February 26, 2010  
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Exhibit 23.3 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-145691-02) of Delmarva Power & 
Light Company of our report dated February 26, 2010 for Delmarva Power & Light Company relating to the financial statements, financial 
statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.  

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  
Washington, DC  
February 26, 2010  
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Exhibit 23.4 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-145691-01) of Atlantic City Electric 
Company of our report dated February 26, 2010 for Atlantic City Electric Company relating to the financial statements, financial statement 
schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.  

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  
Washington, DC  
February 26, 2010  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 2 of 2 
Page 2332 of 7002



Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATION  

I, Joseph M. Rigby, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Pepco Holdings, Inc. 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchanges Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed 

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

  
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 26, 2010   /s/ JOSEPH M. RIGBY  

  

Joseph M. Rigby  
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer  
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Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATION  

I, Anthony J. Kamerick, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Pepco Holdings, Inc. 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchanges Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed 

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

  
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 26, 2010   /s/ A. J. KAMERICK  

  

Anthony J. Kamerick  
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  
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Exhibit 31.3 

CERTIFICATION  

I, David M. Velazquez, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Potomac Electric Power Company. 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchanges Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed 

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

  
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 26, 2010   /s/ DAVID M. VELAZQUEZ  

  

David M. Velazquez  
President and Chief Executive Officer  
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Exhibit 31.4 

CERTIFICATION  

I, Anthony J. Kamerick, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Potomac Electric Power Company. 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchanges Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed 

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

  
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 26, 2010   /s/ A. J. KAMERICK  

  

Anthony J. Kamerick  
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  
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Exhibit 31.5 

CERTIFICATION  

I, David M. Velazquez, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Delmarva Power & Light Company. 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchanges Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed 

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

  
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 26, 2010   /s/ DAVID M. VELAZQUEZ  

  

David M. Velazquez  
President and Chief Executive Officer  
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Exhibit 31.6 

CERTIFICATION  

I, Anthony J. Kamerick, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Delmarva Power & Light Company. 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchanges Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed 

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

  
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 26, 2010   /s/ A. J. KAMERICK  

  

Anthony J. Kamerick  
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  
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Exhibit 31.7 

CERTIFICATION  

I, David M. Velazquez, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Atlantic City Electric Company. 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchanges Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed 

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

  
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 26, 2010   /s/ DAVID M. VELAZQUEZ  

  

David M. Velazquez  
President and Chief Executive Officer  
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Exhibit 31.8 

CERTIFICATION  

I, Anthony J. Kamerick, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Atlantic City Electric Company. 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchanges Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed 

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

  
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

  
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 26, 2010   /s/ A. J. KAMERICK  

  

Anthony J. Kamerick  
Chief Financial Officer  
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Exhibit 32.1 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer  

of  

Pepco Holdings, Inc.  

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350)  

I, Joseph M. Rigby, and I, Anthony J. Kamerick, certify that, to the best of my knowledge, (i) the Report on Form 10-K of Pepco Holdings, Inc. 
for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof fully complies with the 
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the information contained therein fairly 
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Pepco Holdings, Inc.  
   

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Pepco Holdings, Inc. and will be retained by Pepco 
Holdings, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  

February 26, 2010   /s/ JOSEPH M. RIGBY  

  

Joseph M. Rigby  
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer  

February 26, 2010   /s/ A. J. KAMERICK  

  

Anthony J. Kamerick  
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  
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Exhibit 32.2 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer  

of  

Potomac Electric Power Company  

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350)  

I, David M. Velazquez, and I, Anthony J. Kamerick, certify that, to the best of my knowledge, (i) the Report on Form 10-K of Potomac Electric 
Power Company for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof fully complies 
with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the information contained therein 
fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Potomac Electric Power Company.  
   

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Potomac Electric Power Company and will be retained 
by Potomac Electric Power Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  

February 26, 2010   /s/ DAVID M. VELAZQUEZ  

  

David M. Velazquez  
President and Chief Executive Officer  

February 26, 2010   /s/ A. J. KAMERICK  

  

Anthony J. Kamerick  
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  
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Exhibit 32.3 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer  

of  

Delmarva Power & Light Company  

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350)  

I, David M. Velazquez, and I, Anthony J. Kamerick, certify that, to the best of my knowledge, (i) the Report on Form 10-K of Delmarva 
Power & Light Company for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof fully 
complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the information contained 
therein fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Delmarva Power & Light Company.  
   

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Delmarva Power & Light Company and will be retained 
by Delmarva Power & Light Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  

February 26, 2010   /s/ DAVID M. VELAZQUEZ  

  

David M. Velazquez  
President and Chief Executive Officer  

February 26, 2010   /s/ A. J. KAMERICK  

  

Anthony J. Kamerick  
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 2 of 2 
Page 2343 of 7002



Exhibit 32.4 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer  

of  

Atlantic City Electric Company  

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350)  

I, David M. Velazquez, and I, Anthony J. Kamerick, certify that, to the best of my knowledge, (i) the Report on Form 10-K of Atlantic City 
Electric Company for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof fully complies 
with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the information contained therein 
fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Atlantic City Electric Company.  
   

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Atlantic City Electric Company and will be retained by 
Atlantic City Electric Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  

February 26, 2010   /s/ DAVID M. VELAZQUEZ  

  

David M. Velazquez  
President and Chief Executive Officer  

February 26, 2010   /s/ A. J KAMERICK  

  

Anthony J. Kamerick  
Chief Financial Officer  
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